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To shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), we are
pleased to present the annual results and the annual report
for the year ended 31st December 2017 of China Star
Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as “the Group”) to the shareholders.

During the year, the Group took stock of the situation to
resolutely reconstruct and reposition its operations, including
the disposal of the Nam Pei Hong operations in the first half
of 2017 and the completion of the disposal of the hotel and
gaming service operations earlier this year, so as to reallocate
its resources to other businesses with a brighter prospect.

Taking stock of the situation was hinged on how we made
analysis and judgments in respect of business disposition
adapting to economic situations in Macau and Hong Kong
as well as relevant policies promulgated by the State, which
involved the disposal of the underperforming Nam Pei Hong
operations and, in light of the recovery of the gaming industry
and the economy of Macau, the cashing-in on Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau that was considered to be not in tune with the
prevailing trend of development. The reasons for which were,
as propounded in relevant circular and the interim report, that”
following new resort hotels being opened in Cotai in recent
years, there is keen competition among hotels in Macau. The
Macau government wants to attract more families and mass-
market visitors interested in non-gaming entertainment as
part of its program of economic diversification which favors
those resort hotels in Cotai”, but not Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau, which “is a casino oriented hotel and its hotel rooms
are designed to serve and satisfy demands from casino
patrons”, and that “there is no sign that the performance in
such segment will have substantial improvement in the short
term, and will encounter uphill challenges in the near future.”.
As a result, the Group decided to reallocate it investment in
property development operations that are expected to remain
robust. Henceforth, the Group’s operations during the year
could be classified into the discontinued operations and the
remaining operations. We believe this is a sensible act in
view of the recovery of the gaming industry and the continued
buoyancy of the property market, which is explicated more
below.
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The promising prospect of the economy of Macau relies on
the State’s policies to incorporate Macau and Hong Kong in
the construction of the Greater Bay Area, as indicated in the
report of the 19th National Congress, with an aim to “support
the integration of Hong Kong and Macau into the greater
layout of the State’s development pivoting on the construction
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the
cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao
and the cooperation among the Pan Pearl River Delta Region
to promote at all front the mutually beneficial cooperation
between the Mainland and Hong Kong and Macau by drawing
up policies and measures perfecting and facilitating residents
of Hong Kong and Macau to develop in the Mainland”. In this
regard, the “Opinions on issues regarding the entitlement to
housing fund treatment for compatriots of Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan working in Mainland China” was promulgated
thereafter, which not only facilitates the development of Macau
residents in the mainland, but also provides some practical
operational guidelines for Macau’s integration into the greater
layout of the State’s development. At this point, there are
scholars proffering that Macau as a highly open micro-
economic entity that lacks resources and yields insignificant
results of its policies concerning apposite diversification
of economy has no alternative but to integrate itself into
the overall layout of the State’'s development and optimize
regional cooperation with the backing of the Motherland to
realize apposite diversification of economy and sustainable
development. Another powerful argument supporting the
economic upturn in Macau came from the Government as
Chui Sai On the Chief Executive of Macau stated in his Policy
Address released on 14th November 2017 that, irrespective of
lingering uncertainties, he was cautiously optimistic about the
prospect of Macau and anticipated that Macau’s economy will
continue its steady and continuous growth momentum with an
expected growth rate of 7% for next year.
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According to the “Review on the Property Market of Macau
in 2017” issued by Jones Lang LaSalle, Inc., Macau saw
a recovery in its economy and gaming industry last year
as a number of residential projects drew desirable sales
performance with buoyant investment sentiments in the market.
Figures from The Statistics and Census Service of Macau also
recorded a total of 9,789 transactions of residential properties
for the first 11 months of the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 9.8%. The rise was mainly driven by residential
transactions recorded in the first half of the year, though
dampened by Typhoon Hato with certain drop in the second
half. As to the residential lease market, rental values of high-
end residential properties and small to medium residential
properties recorded year-on-year increases of 8.4% and 8.1%
respectively, thanks to the slight turnaround of the number of
expatriate workers and the recovery of the VIP rooms table
gaming business. Another booster for the property market of
Macau in the future is the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge
that involves a total investment of over HK$70 billion and a
construction period of six years and is expected to be open to
traffic in the second quarter of 2018, which represents a real
highlight in the construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. According to analysis, the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge will become a strategic passage
for realizing the economic unification of the Pearl River Delta
and the one-hour traffic circle of the three big cities across the
eastern and the western shores of the Pearl River, remarkably
enhancing the regional accessibility of cities within the same.
Improvement in the traffic conditions of Hong Kong, Zhuhai
and Macao implies a shorter travel time, an economic mutual
complement effect for the region as well as an expanded
market scale, and the favorable impacts of which on properties
in Macau situated at the connecting/landing point of the Bridge
are self-evident.
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After identifying clearly the situation and implementing
business reconstruction and repositioning, the property
development operations is bound to be the Group’s principal
business, such that we will focus our resources and efforts
in expediting the investment and development of properties
in Macau and Hong Kong. Macau Properties refers to the
Group’s 50% indirect beneficial interest in a lot of land named
Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia Grande
(the “Property C7”) and the 100% indirect beneficial interest
in Lot C, D and E in Quarteirao 6 Zona de Aterros do Porto
Macau (ZAPE) (the “Combined Site”).
the acquisition of Property C7 was completed on 6th April

Exterior, Specifically,
2017 and, owing to its prime location, will be developed
into high-end residential properties and car parks and the
development blueprint of which is being prepared for review
and approval by the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau
of Macau (“DSSOPT”"); while the Combined Site will have a
luxury residential and commercial complex of two towers with
spacious apartment units erected on it. The development plan
of the Combined Site has obtained approval of DSSOPT and
the development period has been approved to be extended to
20th December 2019 with its construction work commenced in
June 2017 and expected to complete in 2019. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to identify and invest in properties
when suitable opportunities arise.

With respect to the film related business operations, despite
that no new film was distributed during the year, there is
one film in the later period of shooting and is expected to
be distributed by the end of 2018, in addition to a script for
internet television drama series being in the pipeline. The
Group will continue to proceed with investment and production
of films and television drama series on its own or co-financing

with other production companies in a cautious manner.

AN |
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Looking forward to the year of 2018, the Board believes that,
after a self-refining transformation, the Group will be able to
exercise greater flexibly in giving play of its own strengths
and grasping opportunities for development of the remaining
operations and maximization of shareholder values and returns
against the backdrop of a new situation characterized by
intensifying integration and co-existence between Macau and
the Mainland in terms of economic development. Last but
not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
immense appreciation to the shareholders for their relentless
support, our staff force for their unremitting spirit, and our
business partners for their cooperation and support.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2018
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group recorded
revenue from continuing operations of HK$9,272,000,
representing a decrease of 97% as compared to
HK$266,420,000 for the year ended 31st December 2016.

Profit for the year amounted to HK$73,336,000 as compared
to a loss of HK$335,611,000 in the previous year. The
improvement in performance is mainly attributable to (i) the
substantial increase in the recognition of unrealised gain of
HK$210,791,000 arising on change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as compared to
unrealised loss of HK$18,879,000 recognised in the previous
year which mainly represented the increase in market values
of the Group’s equity securities listed in Hong Kong as at 31st
December 2017 and (ii) the absence of substantial gross loss
incurred in the new film released in the previous year in the
amount of HK$222,933,000.

Profit for the year from continuing operations amounted to
HK$110,031,000 as compared to a loss of HK$291,928,000
in the previous year. Loss for the year from discontinued
operations amounted to HK$36,695,000, representing a
decrease of 16% as compared to HK$43,683,000 for the year
ended 31st December 2016.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2017 amounted to HK$73,312,000 as
compared to a loss of HK$335,609,000 in the previous year.

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017 (2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operations

The Group has two continuing reportable segments — (1) film
related business operations; and (2) property development
operations.
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Of the total revenue for the year, HK$9,264,000 was generated
from film related business operations, HK$8,000 was
generated from property development operations.

Film Related Business Operations

Film related business operations included investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series and provision of other film related services

including artist management services.

In year 2017, revenue from film related business operations
amounted to HK$9,264,000 (2016: HK$266,240,000) and its
segment profit amounted to HK$3,817,000 (2016: segment loss
of HK$257,264,000).
2017, the Group did not distribute any new film. The Group

During the year ended 31st December

has been engaging in the film business for more than 20
years. Film production normally involves three stages including
pre-production, production or shooting and post-production.
From the pre-production stage to theatrical release of Chinese
film in Hong Kong, it normally takes more than one year and
sometimes several years to complete. The majority of revenue
in film will record within the following two years after the film
is released. As such, it is the characteristic of film production
and distribution that revenue is not recognised evenly with
time. Shooting for a new film which tentatively named “i&2
52" has started in mid-October 2017. The plot of this film is
about love story. The shooting of this film commenced in mid-
October 2017 and has completed in February 2018. The post
production period will take around a few months and the film is
expected to release before end of 2018. More films production
will commence in coming years so long as the feasibility study
for new films is satisfactory.

Recently, there is increasing demand for television drama
series contents in China and investors have approached the
Group for its interest in television drama series. Following the
establishment of the production line in the television drama
series in the beginning of 2017, the Group is in the preliminary
stage of preparing the story board for its first production in
television drama series after for more than 10 years from
its last production in television drama series. This television
drama series will be around 36 episodes which is expected to
be released in internet platform. Shooting for this first television
drama series is expected to start before end of 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

& P ww 2k & 43t Management Discussion and Analysis

MERBKEXBRRERERABUNRPIRBBEZME -

ZT—F MERELCEEB 2 R8,0008 T (=
—7~4F 1 180,000/ 7T) 9 ¥8 % 1 £3,935,0007% 7T (=
— N H¥EE5835,840,0008 ) - D EEEF EB K
BEANBRIREME 2 A TEBEEEEF4,120,000/8 7T -
MBE=Z2—AR"F+ZA=+—"HLFEZHEEBRE]

A NH%

B fE R & ) 3R 2 A F B 2 3) &5 1833,440,0007 7T P
By oo
AEER-_FT-—EtEFWNARNAZKERECTME (EE R

AX) - RBEBREGEHE CTHESEREEEREE
Rz EABFRAFASERBKRIEAK R EKFA
WAL R A558ME (TRERES) - HMAERE —%1
S BNERRSERUCTHENERER UGB
Mt IBEAR ([T IHR) B T EREE

cRE-BEOEMARZEEY HEEEEEE (K
FFORED) B 526,047 R FE 55,200 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

Property Development Operations

Property development operations included investment and
development of properties in Macau and Hong Kong.

In year 2017, revenue from property development operations
amounted to HK$8,000 (2016: HK$180,000) and its segment
profit amounted to HK$3,935,000 (2016: segment loss of
HK$35,840,000).
the recognition of gain on fair value change of investment

The segment profit mainly contributed by

properties of HK$4,120,000 during this year and the segment
loss for the year ended 31st December 2016 was due to
the recognition of loss on fair value change of investment
properties of HK$33,440,000.

The Group completed the acquisition of the Property C7
(as defined herein) on 6th April 2017. Under the Urbanistic
Conditions Plan, the Property C7 will be developed for
residential and parking purpose, with the maximum allowed
height of the building of 34.5 meters above sea level and
maximum utilization rate of 5.58 (parking not included). An
architect has been engaged and is still in the process to
compile a development plan of the Property C7 in accordance
with the parameters for submission to The Land, Public Works
and Transport Bureau of Macau (“DSSOPT") for approval. The
very preliminary development plan is to develop a building
under strata title with gross floor areas (in square meters) for
residential of 26,047 and parking of 5,200.

11
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Development of properties in Macau also included properties
located in Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de
Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”). Lot 6B is in
trapezium shape with a site area of 1,420 square meters
next to Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau and Lot 6C, Lot 6D and
Lot 6E are in rectangular shape with each site area of 1,292
square meters next to Lot 6B and adjacent of each other
with three six-meter width roads dividing them separately. In
order to enhance the commercial value of the Sites, the Group
has decided to build a luxury residential and commercial
complex of two towers with spacious apartment units in Lot
6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E (the “Combined Site”) and Lot 6B will
be developed into recreational area between the Combined
Site and Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau, which is expected to
have higher selling prices than the existing development
plan of the individual Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E. This
development plan also respond strongly to the local planning
authorities requirements for connectivity with the existing
city and thus considerable portions of the area of the Sites
have been dedicated to public use. DSSOPT has approved
the combination of development of the Combined Site of Lot
6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E in July 2016. The total gross floor area
of the Combined Site are expected to be (a) residential —
28,422 square meters, (b) clubhouse — 1,927 square meters,
(c) commercial — 4,132 square meters and (d) parking —
11,508 square meters. The expiry date of land concession of
Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E is 20th December 2019 and the
development period of the Combined Site has also granted
an extension until 20th December 2019. Construction works
has started in June 2017 and is expected to complete in 2019.
Based on a property valuation performed by an independent
property valuer for accounting purpose as at 31st December
2017, the market value of the Combined Site is approximately
HK$2,288 million.
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Immediately after the acquisition of the property leasehold
rights of the Sites, the Group held meetings with various
departments of Macau Government to seek their views on the
proposed development of the Sites as the Combined Site. In
May 2012, the Group submitted the architectural design and
drawings of the Combined Site to the DSSOPT for approval.
Following the submission, meetings have been held with
various departments of Macau Government for following up
the proposed development plan. Given that the location of the
Sites is adjacent to Macao Polytechnic Institute and several
tourist spots, Forum de Macao, Grand Prix Museum, Wine
Museum and Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple of blocks
away from Macau Fisherman’s Wharf and Sands Casino, it
is believed that the Macau Government required longer time
to study the impacts of the proposed development of the
Combined Site on traffic, environment and cultural heritage
in the surrounding area, before the grant of an approval.
Besides, Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E are properties
classified as those of 65 properties which non-development
are not the responsibility of the land concessioner announced
in year 2011. Owing to the delay by the Macau Government
in granting the proposed development of the Combined Site,
the land concession of Lot 6B has expired on 25th December
2014. DSSOPT has started the administration work to reclaim
it on dispatch 50/2016 published in the Official Gazette no.
47, 11, of 23rd November 2016 according to Macau new
Land Law effective in March 2014 for the reason that Lot 6B
is undeveloped land on the expiry of the land concession
on 25th December 2014. The Group has filed an appeal to
the President of the Macau Second Instance Court on 30th
December 2016 and the Second Instance Court has not
ruled on this matter as at the date of this report. According
to the legal opinion obtained by the Company, the Group
has strong legal ground to seek for a legal compensation for
legal damages to the Macau Government and the Court will
necessary have consider and rule taking into account all the
essential points regarding the delays caused by the Macau
Government.

As stated above, Lot 6B is planned to develop into
recreational area besides the Combined Site. The action
by the Macau Government is considered to have minimal
effect on the development value of the Combined Site and
it is now uncertain that what ruling will be obtained from the
Macau Government on Lot 6B. The Group will closely monitor
the development on the Combined Site at this moment and
consider that the development of the Combined Site with
higher development value can secure the recovery of its
investment cost on the project and will contribute higher
investment return to the Group. Lot 6B is now served for
storage purpose.
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Discontinued Operations
Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau which was recorded
in an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF”); services
provided to the casino situated in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
(“Casino LKF”) which was recorded in an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Classic Management &
Services Company Limited (“Classic”) and other ancillary
services provided in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau presents a total of 209 guest rooms, casino
situated in the ground, first and 18th floor, restaurants, flower
shop, retail shop and spa centre.

Casino LKF is run by license holder Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A. (“SJM”). Classic has entered into service and site
license agreements with SUM. Under the agreements, Classic
has granted to SUM a right to occupy and use spaces in Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau to operate Casino LKF and Classic is
responsible for the provision of marketing, promotion, publicity,
customer development and introduction, co-ordination of
activities and other services as agreed between Classic and
SJM from time to time in Casino LKF. In return, Classic will
shared a fixed percentage of service income from SJM based
on the monthly gross gaming wins of the mass market and VIP
table gaming and slot machines in Casino LKF. Casino LKF
operates a total of 84 gaming tables, targeting both for the VIP
rooms table gaming and the mass market table gaming. It also
operates a total of 65 slot machines.

The LKF Disposal (as defined herein) has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 11th December 2017 and completed on 3rd January
2018. Accordingly, the financial results of the Disposal Group
(as defined herein) have been classified as discontinued
operation in the consolidated financial statements and
the assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group have been
classified as held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position in this year.
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The Group had shared revenue and segment loss of
HK$640,689,000 (2016: HK$686,431,000) and HK$36,965,000
(2016: HK$44,958,000) from the hotel and gaming service
operations, decrease of 7% and 18% respectively.

Nam Pei Hong Operations

Nam Pei Hong operations included sales of Chinese and other
medicines pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng
and dried seafood products to wholesalers and retailers as
well as Chinese clinical services which held by the group
headed by Ace Season Holdings Limited (“Ace Season”). One
of the group’s subsidiary, Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs
Company Limited has engaged in the business of trading
and retail of “Sum Yung” and dried seafood products since
year 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” is highly
recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

The NPH Disposal (as defined herein) was completed on
30th June 2017. Upon completion of the NPH Disposal, the
Company ceased to have any interests in Ace Season and
its subsidiaries and their financial results were no longer
be consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and thus classified as discontinued operation in
the year.

During the period from 1st January 2017 to 30th June 2017
(completion date of the NPH Displosal), the Group had shared
revenue of HK$74,805,000 (2016: HK$149,613,000), segment
profit of HK$869,000 (2016: segment loss of HK$1,255,000)
and shared a loss on disposal of HK$599,000.
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Gaming Promotion Operations

Pursuant to a profit acquisition agreement dated 16th August
2007 (the “Profit Acquisition Agreement”) among Mr. Ng Cheuk
Fai (“Mr. Ng”), Best Mind International Inc. (“Best Mind”) and
Ocho Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), Mr. Ng, as
beneficial owner, has agreed to sell and/or assign to Best
Mind absolutely Mr. Ng’s right, title and interest and benefits
in 100% of the sharing of profit streams from the gaming
promotion business which represented the rights in sharing
of 0.4% of rolling turnover generated from Ocho (the “Profit
Streams”) commencing from 16th August 2007. Ocho is one
of the gaming promoters at one of the VIP rooms at the Grand
Lisboa Casino in Macau.

Gaming promotion operations represented the revenue in
sharing of Profit Streams. One of the characteristic of the VIP
rooms table gaming is that the majority of the business volume
is highly volatile. Ocho had lost its competitive advantage as
it cannot offer a better than market commission to its quality
sub-junkets or customers as they were attracted by other large
and well equipped new hotels and casinos in Macau. Thus, its
segment results in recent years were unsatisfactory.

On 25th October 2016, the parties to the Profit Acquisition
Agreement agreed to terminate the Profit Acquisition
Agreement and received an amount of HK$10,000,000 and the
termination was completed on 30th October 2016. Accordingly,
the gaming promotion operations were treated as discontinued
operation in the financial statements of the Group as at 31st
December 2016.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, the Group had
shared revenue of HK$3,874,000 and segment profit of
HK$2,410,000 and gain on derecognition of intangible assets
of HK$120,000 from the gaming promotion operations.
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Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments from the continuing operations,
revenue of HK$768,000 or 8% (2016: HK$4,448,000 or
2%) was sourced from Hong Kong, HK$2,260,000 or
24% (2016: HK$252,252,000 or 95%) was sourced from
China, HK$1,723,000 or 19% (2016: HK$9,409,000 or 3%)
was sourced from Southeast Asia including Taiwan and
HK$4,521,000 or 49% (2016: HK$311,000 or 0%) was sourced
from other territories.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2017, administrative
expenses from continuing operations amounted to
HK$68,931,000 (2016: HK$76,066,000),
decrease of 9%. The decrease was mainly caused by the net

representing a

foreign exchange loss of HK$15,989,000 in the previous year
which is a gain in this year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had total assets
of HK$5,099,803,000 and a net current assets of
HK$3,012,777,000,
9.6). The Group had cash and bank balances and time
deposits of HK$424,355,000 (2016: HK$769,939,000). As
at 31st December 2017, the Group had total borrowings of
HK$844,170,000, of which HK$670,353,000 were included in
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale.

representing a current ratio of 2.8 (2016:

Total borrowings comprised the promissory note with carrying
amount of HK$173,817,000 (the “Promissory Note”), a secured
bank term loan with remaining balance of HK$670,000,000
(the “Term Loan”) and obligations under finance leases of
HK$353,000.

The Promissory Note with outstanding principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 issued to Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (“Ms.
Chen”), a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company which carry interest at the rate of 5% per annum,
unsecured and has maturity at a fixed term of 24 months from
the date of issue of the Promissory Note. Included in liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale, the Term
Loan was secured by the Disposal Group’s leasehold land and
buildings with carrying amount of HK$520,791,000,
bearing at 1.75% per annum below the Hong Kong Prime rate

interest

quoted by the bank and repaid on 3rd January 2018 upon
completion of the LKF Disposal.
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As at 31st December 2017, the Group had banking facilities
amounting to HK$1,001,000,000 which were utilised to
the extent of HK$1,000,000,000. The Group’s gearing was
acceptable during the year with total debts of HK$844,170,000
for continuing operations and discontinued operations
against equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$3,281,574,000. This represents a gearing ratio, calculated
in the basis of the Group’s total borrowings over owners’ equity
of 26% (2016: 25%).

As at the date of this annual report and 31st December
2017, the fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed
in Hong Kong held as at 31st December 2017 (excluded
one suspended trading security as at 31st December 2017)
was approximately HK$257,938,000 and HK$508,237,000
respectively.

During the year, the Group did not acquired or disposed any
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The gain arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss included an amount of HK$224,939,000 which
was resulted from change in fair values of equity securities
listed in Hong Kong between the year ended 31st December
2016 and 31st December 2017. As at 31st December 2017,
the fair value of one of the equity securities, Kingston Financial
Group Limited (“Kingston”) accounted for approximately
9.5% of the total assets of the Group. Kingston is principally
engaged in the provision of a wide range of financial
services which includes securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering financing,
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and
asset management services. Kingston also provides gaming
and hospitality services in Macau. Detailed information of
Kingston held by the Group are as follows:

Stock name: Kingston Financial Group Limited
Stock code: 1031
Number of shares held as

at 31st December 2017: 64,580,000

Fair value held by the
Group as at 31st
December 2017:

Gain arising on change in
fair value recognised in
the year:

Percentage of its
shareholding held by
the Group:

HK$484,350,000

HK$268,007,000

0.47%
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As at 31st December 2017, the net proceeds from the issue
and allotment of 150,600,000 placing shares at a price of
HK$0.53 per share on 28th October 2016 of approximately
HK$77,767,000 were used for film production as intended.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group had
received loan receivables in principal amount of HK$625
million which matured during the year. All interest due from
loan receivables were received in accordance with the terms
in their corresponding agreements on due date. No new loan
receivables were granted during the year.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, 75,731 share
options and 4,022,129 share options were expired and lapsed
respectively and no share options of the Company were
granted, exercised or cancelled.

EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Macau Pataca, United
States Dollar and Renminbi. The exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates in Renminbi mainly arises from receipts
and expenditure incurred in film investment, production and
distribution. The Group has closely monitors its exposure to
this fluctuation and consider appropriate hedging activities if
necessary. The exposure to fluctuation in other currencies is
considered to be minimal and no hedge activity is considered

necessary.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2017, outstanding commitments by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,261,645,000, of which
HK$1,218,512,000 as project costs for the Combined Site
and Property C7, and HK$43,133,000 for film rights, films in
progress and film deposits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2017,
contingent liability.

the Group had no material
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited and the
Property C7

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo Limited (“Best Combo”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Chen
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement (the
“C7 Agreement”) pursuant to which Best Combo has agreed
to purchase and Ms. Chen has agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited (the “Modern
Vision”) and the sale loan due by Modern Vision to Ms. Chen
upon completion at a purchase price of HK$1,000 million
(subject to adjustment). The major asset of Modern Vision is its
50% equity interests in Over Profit International Limited (“Over
Profit”).
in a lot of land with the area of 4,669 square meters, named

Over Profit indirectly owns 100% beneficial interest

Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia Grande,
located in the Nam Van Lakes Zone, at Avenida Doutor Stanley
Ho, registered with Macau Land and Real Estate Registry
under no. 23070 (the “Property C7”). The purchase price was
satisfied by Best Combo by: (i) the payment of initial deposit
of HK$400 million upon signing of the C7 Agreement and (ii)
the issue of a 2-year term 5% coupon promissory note in the
principal sum of HK$600 million by the Company to Ms. Chen
upon completion.

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Ms. Chen, pursuant
to which (i) Best Combo has agreed to grant a loan in the
principal amount of HK$500 million (subject to the adjustment)
to Ms. Chen for a term of 60 months from the date of
drawdown (the “Loan”); and (ii) Ms. Chen has agreed to grant
an option to Best Combo to require Ms. Chen to sell the entire
issued share capital of Reform Base Holdings Limited, which
shall be exercisable by Best Combo at any time within 60
months after the date of drawdown of the Loan at a price of
the principal amount of the Loan (subject to adjustment) (the
“Call Option”). The Loan is interest bearing at 5% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears. The major asset of
Reform Base Holdings Limited is its 25% equity interests in
Over Profit.
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Details of the C7 Agreement and the Loan Agreement were
set out in the Company’s circular dated 10th March 2017.
The transactions contemplated in the C7 Agreement and
the Loan Agreement constitute very substantial acquisitions
and connected transactions of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and were approved
by the independent shareholders in a special general meeting
of the Company held on 31st March 2017. The transactions
contemplated in the C7 Agreement and the Loan Agreement
were completed on 6th April 2017. After that, Modern Vision,
Over Profit and its subsidiaries become subsidiaries of the
Company and were consolidated into the result of the Group
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

Disposal of Ace Season and the Nam Pei Hong Operations

On 29th March 2017, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“CSBVI") entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “NPH Agreement”)
with an independent third party in relation to the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Ace Season and the sale loan
owed by Ace Season to CSBVI on completion at consideration
of HK$85,000,000 (the “NPH Disposal”). Ace Season and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales of Chinese and
other medicines pharmaceutical products, health products,
ginseng and dried seafood products to wholesalers and
retailers as well as Chinese clinical services which represented
the business segment of Nam Pei Hong operations of
the Group. The NPH Disposal constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and the
completion of the NPH Disposal was subject to the satisfaction
of the terms and conditions as set out in the NPH Agreement.
The NPH Disposal was completed on 30th June 2017. Upon
completion of the NPH Disposal, the Company ceased to have
any interests in Ace Season and its subsidiaries and the Nam
Pei Hong operations and their financial results were no longer
be consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and thus classified as discontinued operation for
the year ended 31st December 2017.
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Disposal of Rainbow Profit Limited

On 18th July 2017, the Group had completed the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Rainbow Profit Limited and
the sale loan due by Rainbow Profit Limited at consideration of
approximately HK$6,800,000. Rainbow Profit Limited’s major
asset is an investment property.

Disposal of Charming Era Investment Limited, Exceptional
Gain Profits Limited and Most Famous Enterprises Limited
and the Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

On 10th October 2017, CSBVI and Mr. Chan Meng Kam
(the “Buyer”) entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “SP Agreement”) pursuant to which CSBVI
has agreed to sell and the Buyer has agreed to buy the entire
issued share capital of each of Charming Era Investment
Limited, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited and Most Famous
Enterprises Limited and their subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”) and the related loans outstanding and owing to CSBVI
as at completion at sale price of HK$2,000 million (subject to
adjustment in accordance with the terms of the SP Agreement)
(the “LKF Disposal”).
adjusted sale price in accordance with the SP Agreement is

After the relevant adjustment, the

approximately HK$2,034.4 million. The Disposal Group is the
owner and operator of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau and is also
the owner of 18 residential units in Macau, which are used as
staff quarters.

The LKF Disposal constitutes very substantial disposal
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and is
subject to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. The SP Agreement and the transactions contemplated
have been approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a special general meeting held on 11th December 2017.
Subsequent to the reporting date, the LKF Disposal completed
on 3rd January 2018. After that, the Disposal Group will cease
to be subsidiaries of the Group and their financial results
will cease to be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. As such, the hotel and gaming
service operations are classified as discontinued operation for
the year ended 31st December 2017. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the Disposal Group have been classified as
held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position in this year.
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Other than those described above, there were no other
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2017, the Group employed 54 staff (2016:
50 staff) with employee benefit expenses of HK$40,789,000
(2016: HK$37,125,000) from the continuing operations. The
directors believe that the quality of its employees is the single
most important factor in sustaining the Group’s reputation and
improving its profitability. The staff are remunerated based on
their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
industry practices. Apart from basic salaries, pension fund,
housing allowances, meal allowances, medical schemes and
discretionary bonuses, share options are awarded to certain
staff according to the assessment of individual performance.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company completed
the LKF Disposal on 3rd January 2018. After that, the
Disposal Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and
their financial results would not be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. According
to the completion accounts of the Disposal Group and the
working capital statement prepared by the Company and
reviewed and confirmed by the Buyer, the adjustment of the
actual working capital on the completion date on 3rd January
2018 was approximately HK$34.4 million. Accordingly, the
sale price of the SP Agreement is adjusted to approximately
HK$2,034.4 million.

On 18th January 2018, the Company had early redeemed
the remaining outstanding Promissory Note with the principal

amount of HK$200,000,000 to Ms. Chen.

Other than those described above, there is no other significant
event took place subsequent to end of the reporting date.

23



hiEl 2 BB AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B P g i X J 73t Management Discussion and Analysis

Al &=

MESTHESETKE ARECEREOIHREBEE
REBEHEN RUKTFERERBTER  AYE
BRMEREXGREZHBARHREERE -

BRAHMBLCTOEDAEBEARRERFINERRE -
EHMBER-_T-—LFXNAMKRELIR AEESE
FERR-_ZE-NFRAMHBENIER - CTOERA
EEHTHRARE —BExRAgRXGL IR
e TE  RFIEENEM G2 REBERBS - &EN
BRI HERBR  TMHREFR  AEEHAME
WETSHBERRE YRERMFEFRER A&
ERA MEERIRERERBENRE  JHFHAKX
WARE -HZFERERE  FEERHABFTRREK
BEBRAXERGERBLRBEE - 1IN WBEE
BE AEEREENETREDE -

FENXERREEREANMAANZEERER] - &
BE EBBELRESSHT [MEAMIETEHER
LHEREMERRANBERESES 2BREZXVEY
RERRG - RORE—E2RK  AEEREERE
RERACAABNEZRERE - AKETER-F
—LENEKEREERRERM URFELRET
MEE - UEHEREITERERR - BERMEREEY
EREEBINREY BREEBITXERILIFHELT
BEngR AERFECEEEY EREBEBTE
—EHEHE SFAEERARMOEEMDR -

REAKAGEREEFINERRERBEER &
REAMNES BRARESADRL SRELQEK -

24

PROSPECT

Following the completion of the LKF Disposal, the Group has
finished its recent restructure and repositioning of business
and now focuses its resources to the remaining business, the
property development and investment operations and the film
related business operations.

The development of the Combined Site and the Property C7
is our group’s major future investment in Macau. After the
construction work of the Combined Site has started in June
2017, the Group has concentrated its resources to complete
the project of the Combined Site in year 2019. Property C7
is in the process of preparing the development plan and will
submit to DSSOPT for approval once ready. In recent years,
the residential property market of Macau shows a general
growth trend. Given that land is a scarce resource in Macau
and the land supply of Macau is limited, the Group is positive
on the Macau property market and believes that there is
strong demand for housing in Macau. The Group considers
that property development and investment are more stable
investment for maintaining stable future revenue. In regard to
these development and investment, the Group is expected
that substantial cash resources are required to invest in this
business operation in the next few years. Besides, the Group
will continue to source and invest in properties if proper
opportunity arises.

China’s culture and entertainment industry has entered into
an unprecedented “golden age”. Driven by policy, internet,
and capital, “new giants” are emerging, in particular, internet
companies have used resource advantages to gradually
penetrate the entertainment industry and build an ecosystem.
In respond to this golden age, the Group will continue its
furtherance and development of its already well established
film production business. The Group has also formed its
television drama series department in the beginning of
year 2017 and has invited experienced staffs to join for the
production and distribution of television drama series. Given
our experience in production of film/television drama series
and the distribution network in the film/television drama
series industry, the Group is confident in capture this golden
opportunities in the film/television drama series industry and
maximizing our value and return.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strive to achieve
healthy and stable growth by enhancing profitability, maximize
its investment return and position to appropriate business
opportunity.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 69, is the Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He is the husband of Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Vice Chairman and executive director
of the Company. He has over 30 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries. He was the founder
of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’'s”) and One Hundred
Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred Years”), which
produces films recommended by audiences and distributors
around the world. He is also the honorable chairman and
director of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Heung was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 61, is the Vice Chairman
and executive director of the Company and the wife of Mr.
Heung Wah Keung. She has over 25 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries and over 10 years of
experience in property development. Ms. Chen has produced
a number of blockbuster films for Win's and One Hundred
Years. In 2003, she was selected as one of 2003 Women
in Entertainment — International Power by The Hollywood
Reporter. For the years from 2006 to 2010, Ms. Chen was
involved in the planning, monitoring and management of the
renovation and operation of “Beijing Jianguo Apartment” into
serviced apartment by Beijing Shama Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd. Ms. Chen was responsible for all planning and
monitoring of the purchase of Macau Kingsway Hotel in 2007
and then renovated and designed it into two years later’s Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau that launched in August 2009. Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with several international
accolades, which included the “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 - Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China”
and the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012 Winner —
Trendiest”. In respect of promoting the notion of environmental
protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF
Asia Awards 2010 — Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the
“Macao Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”. The result
has been obvious and encouraging. Other than the duties
and responsibilities of the Vice Chairman, Ms. Chen is also
responsible for implementation, monitoring and management
of the approval, planning and development of the property
development projects of the Group. Ms. Chen was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.
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Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 50, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 77, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. He was also appointed as a consultant of the China Film
Association. Mr. Hung is also a member of the 1,200-member-
HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the Cultural
Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (EERE Bi#RA VER
EE(FEELZEERITEEE), and was elected the vice-
chairman of Film Association of Guangdong, China for the
period from November 2016 to November 2021. Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong film industry. Mr. Hung was appointed by the
HKSAR as a member of the Working Group on Manufacturing
Industries, Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative
Industries under the Economic Development Commission
on an ad personam basis for a term of two years on 17th
January 2013, and renewal for a term of two years twice on
2015 and 2017 respectively. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of Hengten Networks Group Limited
(formerly known as Mascotte Holdings Limited) and Freeman
FinTech Corporation Limited (formerly known as Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited), all companies are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), during the period from 9th January 2013
to 26th October 2015 and 22nd January 2013 to 25th January
2017 respectively. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited and
Miko International Holdings Limited since 10th October 2014
and 14th April 2016 respectively, and was appointed as an
executive director of Universe International Financial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Universe International Holdings
Limited) since 16th October 2013. All these companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
was also appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Koala Financial Group Limited (formerly known as Sunrise
(China) Technology Group Limited), and an executive director
of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (formerly known as Jia
Meng Holdings Limited) since 15th May 2015 and 23rd May
2016 respectively. Mr. Hung was also the chairman of the
board of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited during the period
from 23rd May 2016 to 20th November 2017. Both companies
are listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in
1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 66, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is the managing
partner of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited and Ngai
Hing Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 67, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Oi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau.
Mr. Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 53, is the Legal Administration
Manager of the Group. She has over 15 years of experience
in the TV & Film Industry. Ms. Tsang has extensive
experience across production, distribution and library content
management of the Film & TV business and expertise in legal
related aspects in Film & TV production, distribution and
copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang oversees the Department
of Legal Administration, Film & TV Distribution and Content
Library Management of the Group. Ms. Tsang also involves
negotiation on Film & TV production and distribution projects
and took on responsibility of Film & TV production, distribution
and copyright legal-related aspect for the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Tsang worked at the Legal Department
of Hong Kong Hospital Authority and TVBI International
Limited.
studies and had been studied LLB of University of London

Ms. Tsang has completed Company Secretary
and a graduate of Diploma for Legal Studies. Ms. Tsang has
achieved the qualification to use the benchmark as Legal
Executive of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang joined
the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 55, is the Film and TV Consultant of the
Group. Mr. Wai is a renowned Film and TV Producer, Director
and Scriptwriter, he has produced, directed and script-written
films and TV drama for more than 20 years. Mr. Wai's Feature
Films Production has been invited by Worldwide Film Festival
for screening and nomination for awards, many of Mr. Wai's
Feature Film earned awards in Hong Kong and Worldwide.
Mr. Wai’s TV series “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” is hugely popular on the premiere run, after many years,
re-run of these TV series is also a hit and has pull in lots of
new generation audience. The feature films produced and/or
directed by Mr Wai include “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”,
“Fat Choi Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All
Seasons”, “Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”,
“Mad Detective”, “Written By” etc. Mr. Wai joined the Group
since the year of 2000.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 52, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. She
graduated from the City Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy in 1990. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001,

Ms. YEUNG Porlin, age 52, is the Regional Director of the
Company. She has over 15 years experience in TV and
film industry and as of 2006 she has extend her scope of
services to serviced residences, hotel operations and project
development in Beijing and Macau. In 2013, Ms. Yeung was
appointed as the Executive Director of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau. She graduated from the University of Leicester,
UK with a MBA and is an Advanced Certification holder
in Hospitality Management at the Hong Kong Polytechnic

University. Ms. Yeung joined the group in 1997.
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Mr. TODD Evan, aged 52,
of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He graduated from Cornell

is the Chief Operating Officer

University in the U.S. with a bachelor degree in 1989. Over
the years, he has worked for Andersen Consulting and
Swire Pacific Limited. He first joined our Group in 1995 and
worked over five years in the area of film distribution in the
PRC.
the operation of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. Mr. Todd was

In 2009, he rejoined our Group and began involved in

appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau in 2013.

Ms. SHAW Lai King, Sandy, aged 57,
(Network and TV) of the Group. She has over 30 years of

is the Controller

experience in television and movie creation and production.
Her television drama works such as “The Justice Of Life”, “At
the Threshold of An Era”, “Off Pedder”
and so on were well received in terms of approbation and

“Best Selling Secrets”,

viewership. Her movie creations included “A Roof with a view”,
“The Heroic Trio”, “A Moment of Romance IlII” and etc., and
among them, “Justice, My Foot” was once nominated for the
Best Screenplay of the Hong Kong Film Awards. Ms. Shaw
was also the producer of “Come Home Lover: Dinner At 87, a
long television drama series, and “Sky of Love”, a movie, and

so forth. Ms. Shaw joined the Group in 2017.
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INTRODUCTION

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed
to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2017, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions laid down
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) save for one deviation, details
of which will be explained in the section “Deviation from the
Code” in this report. The Board has, since the amendments
to the Listing Rules regarding corporate governance
practices were first proposed by the Stock Exchange,
continued to monitor and review the Group’s progress
in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year and
where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were
issued to directors and senior management of the Group to
ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition

As at 31st December 2017, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 25 to 29.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide
to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience
so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest,
serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, scrutinising the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting

of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive) are separate and not performed by
the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division of
responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of power
and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.



B
BERETRY ARRAB=LBUFATEE  HhE
PR BUFNPTEZEREEVHERFEENE - &

SECERESBUFRATESCFEBUMERE - R
ELEMRANFEIBEMEES ARARRREESY
RBULATL -

FFEBAESFHRAZARBAT HERAZBBIUIF
WOTESZH0 W BRARAEIRAEREERE
TRERARLLZLKRI  EESKNB ML BERRE -

wEE<FRI 2= 18
2 E—+tF+ A=+ —HLEFER AR2R—H
BSF EMARAIM SR TR AT REESERS -

s

RETHZALITIEY  FRTEE EAREHEE
- AABTENRE AT 2RBIHRTES
930 AR AT EZEIR I A FB R TR A A R 2 B
FAFAR LBARIREZENES - KAAARAE
R I - BEAL T2 AR AT LT A
TEEE-

BRBIUFNTEFEZME /B 120,000 7T °

34

Py

b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

& ¥ #t ¥ Corporate Governance Report

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2017, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following deviation:

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. However, all the independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides Directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least three days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

REEFERN 2RfT\iEExeez sFHENS - During the year under review, eight board meetings were
EEghHABZES e 2HBOT held. Details of the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:
HEERRE
Number of meetings attended
RREF Exg BREES FWESE REEEE
& =L g3 = =E
Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination
BExps General Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BITES
Executive Directors
BT 11 8/8* TEA TiE 1
Heung Wah Keung N/A N/A
BREAZE 1/1 717 TEA 11 TEA
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany N/A N/A
TR i 717 TEA TiEmA TEA
Li Yuk Sheung N/A N/A N/A
BYFHITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE 11 8/8* 2/2 11 111
Hung Cho Sing
fES 11 8/8* 2/2 TiE A TEHR
Ho Wai Chi, Paul N/A N/A
EDZAR 1/1 8/8* 2/2 1/1 171
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
* Hp—NEEe eSS meseTEEeanmssy Included a Board meeting where the Chairman of the Board

BzER T RBIFMITERET -
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met with independent non-executive Directors, without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
Drafts of

board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and

raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).

approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to

request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the
Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each
newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the Group,
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals
update materials regarding laws and regulation and the Listing
Rules, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The participation by individual director in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a
listed company in 2017 is recorded in the following table.

FHEEERE SHENMRBEBER
BHER mieE EE
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
EEHA Name of Director updates programmes
BITES Executive Directors
BEE: Heung Wah Keung v/
GEEES Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany v/
TEE Li Yuk Sheung v/
BAUFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE Hung Cho Sing v/
fAfE®E Ho Wai Chi, Paul v v/
L=\ Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert v v
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Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and
nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2017, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of
the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy,
determining the remuneration of executive Directors
and members of senior management of the Group. This
committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice
if deemed necessary. The remuneration committee is also
provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.
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The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held one meeting to determine the remuneration package for
the staff of the Group. No Director is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2017 by band is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

Further details of the executive Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31st December 2017 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2017, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee

are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.
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During the year under review, the nomination committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and to review the Board Diversity Policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
2013. The key terms of the Policy are set out as follows:

1. Purpose

The Policy aims to set out the approach to diversity on
the Board.

2. Scope

The Policy applies to the Board. It does not apply to
diversity in relation to the employees of the Company,
nor the board of directors and the employees of any
subsidiary of the Company.

3. Policy Statement

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage.

The nomination committee will review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. In relation to reviewing and assessing the
Board composition, the nomination committee will
consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry and regional experience.

4. Measureable Objectives

The nomination committee will discuss and agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company’s business growth.
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Monitoring and Reporting

A summary of the Policy and where applicable, the
measureable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementation of the Policy should be disclosed
annually in the Company’s Corporate Governance
Report.

Review of the Policy

The nomination committee will review the Policy
annually and where appropriate, recommend revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written

terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule

3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee

must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors

only, at least one of them should be independent non-

executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications

or accounting or related financial management expertise. The

main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a)

To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated

procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific

terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s

website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient

resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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As at 31st December 2017, the audit committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of
the existing auditing firm of the Company within one year on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held two meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Group’s external auditors is HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has written to
the Audit Committee confirming that they are independent
with respect to the Company and that there is no relationship
between HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and the
Company which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain the external auditors’
independence, it would only be employed for non-audit
work if the work does not compromise the external auditors’
independence and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the external auditors provided
audit services and non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Non audit
services include services such as issuance of special audit
reports or interim review or other regulatory purposes.
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The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2017 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, the fees paid and
payable in respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
amounted to approximately HK$1,002,000 and approximately
HK$1,207,000 respectively.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent with
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval
and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2017. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

The directors’ interests in shares of the Company and its
associated corporations are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 49 to 61.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 62 to 69 set out
the reporting responsibilities of the auditors of the Company
for the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The company secretary reports to the
Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders
and the management. Ms. Wong Shuk Han has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from December 2001 and Ms. Wong has complied with
the training requirement of the Listing Rules during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2017, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.
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The Group has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, including areas covering financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year under review. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is
exposed and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day
operation of business. The system can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within
the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time to
time.

The Group had engaged Infinity Assurance Limited, external
professional consultant, to conduct independent internal
control review for the year ended 31st December 2017 and the

review is completed as at the date of this annual report.

the Board
considered the Group’s internal control system as adequate

For the year ended 31st December 2017,

and effective and that the Company has complied with the
code provisions on internal control of the Code.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking
any actions.

45



1 ¢

EXeEFRVNESEERTIAZBEZMARY
RZEERENDRE  UHEHARFARREEN -

EERERITHAEEER

ARFRIEEREFEIRERARAIETEXNELSR
EEERBEERSRITHABEER  HRIEH R A
RECE -

E R R 2 B1&
ARAEEEREKTZERE LR AN R
BEEABAN HATRERSEAMBERL A
B2 AETESFEGIRY -

EEERNARERRSERE BRRBEFARSAREH
—EERzAwWFE  AHEFEERRIRER -

IRMEGR2EBELRERT T LFRRAEX
g RREREAAUBEESS ERRBEFRE L
IRAESRBERHEER2BILAER

BRREFREZHREFREFHIRRE - UERALQFE
KHECEERTH RREFAGBEEHNBITRRE
FAEHAPR -+ —BEERTERER  EPHAMER
EBARBRZIFAR RERRZERF (BRELET
RERRZEF) REMABER -RARRZ-F—L
FRRBEFREGL MARBROURESARR M
ARBIZBBBRNEPERIRBETRELRETHER
RE DIXRBREFEREURREHZARE -BRZ
BAERBERAGLERRARABZRETRERRZEFR
R ABMAA -

46

Py

hiEl 2 BB AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

f $it % Corporate Governance Report

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the Board members and senior
management members of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2017 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to
the best practices regarding corporate governance. The
annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to all
shareholders at least twenty-one days prior to the holding of
the annual general meeting, sets out the details in relation
to each resolution proposed, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. At the Company’s 2017 annual general
meeting, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged
as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted. The
rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting are contained in
the Bye-laws.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

1 3 & 78 # & Corporate Governance Report

ARRTEBFRETHBESHRRAB-EF A7
WMESEMBEE AREEEXNENERRRRRES
Z R {EH R R B fE o

B RAE R

BREFARREBEIAE(RREINAE) 2BF

=

BRETNIPRARAR A Z —HRBRABECANMAE R
BRI EMFIAZR R ZETERE  EFGAY
BVt BB RS AE -

VA

WEESUARRAHEERELAHMEFS —_+ - AREH
BRFHAE  AIREZERALTRBEERHERY
FRRERZEMALTATARABRRERIAE @ #E
AEERTENRAZREH A PEF =ZEARET -

BRROEESFEHEAZERF

BRABEREEEARBIANEAVAXIARAWE
MEEGRE  RAAMEZBAHBOT :

BB

F 7 &7 168-200%%
BEPLAREIMEIE

{5 : (852) 2313 1888

B #H : mail@chinastar.com.hk

BADTRARARRAE FRAEERIENEN -

BEREEZRAE

RARBOMBEREBEELAHRERBERELCEE
B RARBRAFREFPHREURBE RHLEX
ARRENEENESEERYBERE - AR HUH
(www.chinastar.com.hk) B AR &R E—(EERFE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the
shareholders of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company upon which all calls or other sums then due
have been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3409, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2313 1888

Email: mail@chinastar.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.
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%ﬁﬁiﬁ: CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

HEZT—tF+-A=+—RALEFEARN AATZEF During the year ended 31st December, 2017, there had

BN EEMERNELE) - been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

"n%ﬁ CONCLUSION

KARRAE  ROFCEERHBIBREEELOLBRNE The Company believes that good corporate governance is

CMEREEE -TREEAINNBEARKEARNEE 2R significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting

EERITE o investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in investment, production
and distribution of films and television drama series, provision
of artist management services and properties development
and investment.

The activities of its subsidiaries and joint venture are set out in
notes 53 and 25 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2017 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 70
and 71 and page 72 respectively.

The financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2017
is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on

pages 73 and 74.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017.

49



s

£ A )

FEBZEBOE FEEER C2XRARUBHAR
2Rt EAMARRBE-_S—+E+-_A=+—H1It
FERBEMPIRASENEZZEHAFE  DHHERE
AB R E8H  FIOEEF24E RFE2L0EEF2518 K[ £
FBwE] [BERERARAMIRIAFHBHEIA-
Lt ERARE 2 — 55 -

HES BEFRHEBZBE

AEEEXBZRARFEXSZEAEEZAEZTE  BFA
BE EPhHEENBEER -EFSRE RBEDAEALE
Bz HASEREE - ARABRNBRELEER 25N
RFEBETERENRENTRES - BEEHFMBER
HXBRER - REGNFAREERAFRIEEEHLNR
DT —EB

o EEZETHEREARAEF RHEENRHE
ERE EREUAKEEBEHERDMEROER -
REMS ARAEBEREPRHEERE LI NE
AAEBTENRROBERMESHEPHEERME
HEPRT -

HEBREMAZEALLEBNEE R - AMANHRERD
BREIREZ T2 KA HE IfRAEEZE
REE -AEEHESERHERNITIHERGZ &
THREREZINEMBEERTEAERAINREMER -

50

b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

# % & # 4 Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and analysis of the
development, operating performance and financial position
and particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31st December
2017 are set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 4 to 8, pages 9 to 24 and pages
250 to 251 respectively. Such discussions constitute part of
this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including the
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Board believes that the employees are one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company will strive to ensure
that the remuneration level of its employees is in line with
relevant industry practices and prevailing market conditions.
Remunerations of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Details of employees benefits are included in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Company’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of the
Group’s businesses. Generally, the Group strengthen its
customer service by providing superior quality service to the
users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the relevant industry.

Supply chain is a critical part of all our operations. Our
suppliers must meet our selection criteria, which include
security, safety, cost, quality, delivery and reliability. The
Group will enter into suppliers’ agreements with qualified
suppliers in order to secure our services and products are
being supplied to our standard within our budgeted costs.
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The Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The possible business risks and uncertainties, interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk facing by the Group are set
out in section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 24. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operating its various business
segments in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting
a “green” environment. The Board believes that operating
the Company’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling the Company’s corporate social
responsibilities.

Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in the
hotel and offices of the Group. Such initiatives include energy
saving measures and water saving practices, use of recycling
papers, recycling of used papers and encourage paperless
environment.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of
the Group will be disclosed in our environmental, social and
governance report to be published before 30th June 2018.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended
31st December 2017, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group. Furthermore, as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company is also subject to the rules and requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Securities and
Futures Ordinace (the “SFQO”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2017 is set out on pages 250 to 251.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to
the financial statements respectively.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in stock of properties of
the Group are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements during the year in bank borrowings,
promissory note and obligations under finance leases of
the Group are set out in notes 39, 40 and 41 to the financial
statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

As at 31st December 2017, the total issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 903,703,493 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 75 to 77. Movements during the year in the reserves of
the Company are set out in note 54 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,350,225,000 as at 31st December 2017
(2016: HK$2,444,070,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2017, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 83% of the Group’s revenue and revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 48% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group were less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Heung
Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and Ms. Li Yuk
Sheung shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 29.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable
accounting principles. These mainly relate to transactions
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business,
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s
length basis. Particulars are set out in note 52 to the financial
statements.

No transaction constitutes “continuing connected transaction”
of the Group that need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions also constituted “Connected Transactions” of
the Group that need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) On 29th November 2016, Best Combo and Ms. Chen
entered into the C7 Agreement. As Ms. Chen is a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, the transaction in the C7 Agreement
constituted a very substantial acquisition and a
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction was completed
on 6th April 2017.
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(b) On 29th November 2016, Best Combo entered into
the Loan Agreement with Ms. Chen. As Ms. Chen is a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, the transactions contemplated under
the Loan Agreement constituted a very substantial
acquisition and a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Loan and the Call Option were drawn and granted on
6th April 2017 respectively.

The transactions constituted in the C7 Agreement and
the Loan Agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in a special general
meeting held on 31st March 2017. Details of the
transactions are set out in the Company’s circular dated
10th March 2017.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed
that the terms of the C7 Agreement and the Loan
Agreement were fair and reasonable and the
transactions constituted in the C7 Agreements and the
Loan Agreement were in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The C7 Agreement and the Loan Agreement as set out in the
paragraph “Connected Transactions” in this report constitute
a contract of significance of Ms. Chen, the executive director
and substantial shareholder of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of
more than one year, or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations and other donation
during the year of approximately HK$30,000.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2017, the interests of the directors
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register (“Register
of Interests”) maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

AATEERES Interests in ordinary shares of the Company
PR
ERaed -
FrislRBEE Approximate
BEEnE g4 Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interests held
A2 58 5 £ REEE 2 R 186,448,146* 20.63
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Interest of controlled corporation
PREAZEZ £ REEE s R 186,448,146* 20.63
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany Interest of controlled corporation
LR AR o All interests stated above represent long positions.
* HER D E 186,446,502 MDA A &£ R+ * These shares are held as to 186,446,502 shares by Heung

2 B 2 $150% K 50%H# & 2 A BlHeung Wah Keung
Family Endowment Limited#$ 5 &1,6440% 8% 17 B BR %
TRALED P EEZHEFE0%RI0%EREZ NEZE
RAFRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen) and
as to 1,644 shares by Dorest Company Limited (a company
beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as to 40% by
Mr. Heung).
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Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2017, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2017, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

NHHERTEEZ 2 EHN UWTITREEEALFEE  the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
TR AE% S IA £ 2 e in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the

Company:
RO SEBRAHE FEEEE LA
Number of shares Approximate
8 g% or underlying percentage of
Name Capacity shares held interests held
Heung Wah Keung Family EE#EEA 186,446,502 20.63

Endowment Limited Beneficial owner
LiigEmERIHE -

BREXHBEBEEN RZFE—F+ZA=+—H K
RRAMARENEFEERNEMALTHEEARRDEITRAES%
KA b2 KA o
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All interests stated above represent long positions.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2017.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

# # & #t 4 Directors’ Report

iR K 18 7 5t &

AEEZRAKRAGEFBHER M BRKRME6 -

BE HERBEAATZL®
=%

REBEE-Z—+tF+-_A=+-—"BLFER AQA%K
HEMWMBRAAMERE HELBEBRENARFZ L

B BUR
AEEEEFHEESFHERERBRENE B
BRABAE -

P

ARREZZHMEMFMEESSRRKRENARAZR
BENEAMERE EEZMEFEERUBRERMZE5 -

ARAFMNEREAEERHEERABREEZEM
BRARBZ BRI FBEHEN Y BHRRMES -

MR R i 160
BRAREEEE B ADAMETIN
EEFEZREHBHAETN S S ATRER
B3 38 38 8 AR 2 R AT SZ AT AT 163 3 i 5 & K AT
AT ©

Pk
BT

F
ZAUN
RRERALD

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company. Details of the emoluments
of the directors are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 51
to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year, except for the share
option schemes of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2017 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as such term is defined under the Companies

Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective close
associates had any interest in a business which competes with
or may compete with the business of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
30 to 48.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2018
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

&E 31st Floor
PIREITH115R Gloucester Tower
BihEi5 The Landmark
ERTITKE3E 11 Pedder Street

Central
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 70 to 249, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31st December 2017, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31st December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FAREXER

BREESCEXAE BREZZRARESZERAYME
MERMBRRTEREENEE ESEBREANT
BRI BMERBRRRELEEERE NI tEER
HEBERER -

BREREE
Key Audit Matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

EECEGIRNMNEEERERSEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WEFEZIKREE

Carrying amounts of stock of properties

AR MBI SRR KT 527 -

Refer to note 27 to the financial statements.

IRRPIZMERE

BEREEER

RZE—+tF+=-A=+—8
2 BRE B 4) /52,107,376,000/8 7T + ¥
BEBEKX-

At 31st December 2017, the carrying amounts
of stock of properties located in Macau was
approximately HK$2,107,376,000, which was
significant to the Group’s total assets.

RZZT—+FWHANRE - BEBEETHKKEModern
Vision (Asia) Limited &% E & 2 7] ([Modern Vision
SE]) 22 ERAEE - B R {EH1,000,000,0007 7T °
Modern VisionE Bz X ZEEBSM NIRRTz WE
FE -

On 6th April 2017, the Group had completed to
acquire the entire equity interest in Modern Vision
(Asia) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Modern Vision
Group”) at total consideration of HK$1,000,000,000.
The major assets of Modern Vision Group consist of
stock of properties located in Macau.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

EEEMEREUYEGE Y EEENTE 2 BREFAER
RERA :

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to:

e BREERENGHEAFMATERS —
checking the consistency of management’'s calculations
against the methodology used in the prior years;

o HEVEERE HEESzRLHBAMBEZELER
HEELLE
evaluating the properties areas by comparing them with
the areas which were verified and confirmed by the
relevant institution;

e BBRMEEB HEAEKEBIEMENTREE RIS
AERMORFREEER LR :
examining the estimated sales price by comparing it with
the recent sales price and recently available public sales
information of neighbouring properties;

o FHEFAEMIRBRHAEMLRISE M

assessing the fairness and appropriateness of the source
of information used;
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HREEXSEE(E

BAREXSEEE)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EECETIFNMEEREEREER (&)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

WEFEZIKREE (#)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

R P RITT IR BUR (DRPIBUR ) &R A RERR
I RINBIEE mof = 6B ER ([FeBHER ) 2 W%
BERARRRE  MSEFEAMIHESHERREOFA
FEICRPIBFR AU E it 2 TR T - JARE Rl
B ERADMEER - BRI E AR AR E6eBi R 2 ik
BEKRINZE -

The development of the property located in Lot B in
Quarteirdo 6 (“Lot 6B”) at Zona de Aterros do Porto
Exterior (*ZAPE”) could not commence development
due to the delays caused by the government of
Macau Special Administrative Region (the “Macau
Government”) and the Macau Government has
started the administrative work to reclaim it as a
consequence of ongoing litigation in respect of the
terms of the land lease. Any unfavourable outcome
of the court proceedings may have an adverse

impact on the valuation of Lot 6B thereof.

EREN2REMMEIPNEEREEERIME
EMEFENAIETFEE - Eh Py R EIBENHE &
5t e

Management determined the net realisable values
of stock of properties by reference to recent sales
price of similar properties less selling expenses,
which involve managements’ judgement and
estimation.
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~
N

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (Continued)

e IMEGEFEMSERUBERERET TAXZEED
BREE T MERTEEF
conducting site visits to stock of properties projects
to observe the development progress and evaluating
whether the development progress for each project was
consistent with the development plan;

o W BEHEBEUTEEHEFBMRZ LHEREERDE
RFHNERMBEINSEERER REE AR R H A
"
inspecting the external legal opinion received by
the Group and other documentation referred to by
management in its assessment of the outcome of the
court proceedings in relation to the litigation in respect of
the land lease for the Lot 6B;

e ZERARESENMAZSBBHRENARHERS
3
evaluating the construction costs to be incurred and
selling expenses by reference to information such as
project budgets; and
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BRERSE(E

BRERSE(Z)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EE2EH I NN EEERERSE(F)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

WEFEZIKREE (#)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

BEAHEREYMEFEZRAENTGZEZEFRR/RETER

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s

-~
N—

assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (Continued)

o FEHINEAEMIEERM BUUELRIESR UBEES
2R B A R BRSNS ik (E AP AT E (R E L8 -
assessing the objectivity, independence and expertise of
the external valuers, and compared out test results with
the valuations made by the external valuers.

BEERBAMEFEZRAES A ERNBREEAE

We found the carrying amounts of stock of properties were
supported by the available evidence.

65



b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

¥ 37 % B #k 5 Independent Auditors’ Report

H i E

BERAREFAHEMERAREL HUEHBREERN
FHRZBEH ETEEGAMBRRLREST ZREM K
E(THEMER]) -

BEUGAMBREAMELERL TRERMLEN M
BEETEHEMBRNBEREMPANETLER
HRESERGAUBHRERME 5% ffi%?ﬁ%ﬁ’“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
AR tMZEEEMENESBEAMBRRAE

8RR A0 & B e B AT - ST A
BMML o WEBSENERTL TIERARBER S
REAERRL BEARSAWER TS B
B -

ﬂﬂ

EEREREERS
* EWEE

EXREERBEESHMAGSEMN BT ENBREE
AR ERBRRABKINREER  REAEMT S
WRRERNGAMBERE UHER//EMBERER
BB T AN R R T G B AR AP
FHONAZEHEE

WA S MR

N\
I]]]-I

KL

iz

ERESEAMEHREE EFAAETE ESKERA
Bamgeh LEBERB /RT%&%Eﬁi?ii“%“Mﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂé
HoRIFEFHS BEEEBRABIULEE K
SN EEMERATHOERTER  TRARAUFEL
ERETAR -

ERENMBERERRE -

66

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report

thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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MABERGRE W BHRREAR

AUDITORS’
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

STATEMENTS (Continued)

FEEERARABETRENRG
AR RENAE M

BEURELERE o

HESRABELE RS ERNBEEIELE
i WARBAMERMNETRE BERS AL N
ZENEREANERTEEN M8

# BERENRELCERNELERRE -WE
ERRFEERTEEN - BIA N EEZEA R
SHRFEAEIBRGMBRETOEFIRE -
HEMBEBEIR  BEERIBERBER -&F
FEwDERBEZYMBE B BIEAIUSHET
R o A *%%EEX’E)REJ%\ B E&H
BERBERE -

SEGANBRRORBZRSR  ABRAT . .
BERBEN  UREAVERERAH SR
AR HMEE -

B BERBECZERKEXBEHOMBENERT o
REEENENEE URHEEAUBRRER
ER-BZREBEEBHNOIA  EEMHT -

BERBRERAERYAME -

HEZZEEN (EFERE) Frt TIEMNTEHE -
BREXEFGBRAR ERESEETERT
VYN R E M ERERRK -

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practicing Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 26th March 2018
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k=3
Notes

BEREER Continuing operations
Ui & Revenue 7
65 B AR Cost of sales
ERM(EB) Gross profit/(loss)
H U e B H Ath Y A Other revenue and other income 8
THHAX Administrative expenses
BITHX Distribution expenses
BBBEEARFEENEZ Gain/(loss) arising on change in

CRMEEZATEEZY fair value of financial assets

FrE£ZHEF, (Ei8) at fair value through profit or loss
Hi g gmx Other operating expenses
mERw (BB Profit/(loss) from operations
LS YN Finance costs 9
EE—HEELEERA Share of result of a joint venture
BB ADRR (BB Profit/(loss) before tax 10
Fris i > Income tax expense 11
BRESEEKZ Profit/(loss) for the year from

FERA, (FHEB) continuing operations
DRIEEEEKE Discontinued operations 13

ERIEREXRBZFEBR

FEERR (BE)

UTATEEFE
R (ER)

ARBEHEERA

ElFelh e 5

70

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
Fox FH&TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
9,272 266,420
(8,402) (487,593)
870 (221,173)
96,385 102,933
(68,931) (76,066)
(2,392) (4,650)
210,791 (18,879)
(63,014) (43,783)
173,709 (261,618)
(63,896) (30,220)
223 (90)
110,036 (291,928)
(5) -
110,031 (291,928)
(36,695) (43,683)
73,336 (335,611)
73,312 (335,609)
24 (2)
73,336 (335,611)
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HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

—ZE-RF
2016
M iF AL
Notes HK cents
BREFN(EH) Earnings/(loss) per share 14
REFELER From continuing and discontinued
BRIEREEK operations
AR Basic 8.10 (42.98)
g Diluted 8.10 (42.98)
REFESEER From continuing operations
HK Basic 12.16 (37.38)
e Diluted 12.16 (37.38)
RECKRIELEER From discontinued operations
BN Basic (4.06) (5.60)
BE Diluted (4.06) (5.60)
BE Mt 2 B EERE B I B I T3k 2 — 304 o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BHE-ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HBILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERA(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 73,336 (335,611)
Httz2m (FE) WA Other comprehensive (loss)/income
BHETHEEH 7 BZE Items that may be reclassified subsequently
HEWAKZEE : to consolidated income statement:
HEFI EEEEZ Exchange differences arising on translation of
[E 7 ZRE - foreign operations:
FAEECELER Exchange differences arising during the year (60) 14
FRNEEBIEBEH Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign
EpiakE ik operations disposed of during the year 58 -
EEHMEE(EE) KA  Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 2) 14
FE2HEWA(EE)HE  Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 73,334 (335,597)
UTFTATEGNEEZE Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
WA (E518) 85 : attributable to:
ZN/NEIEZEDN Owners of the Company 73,310 (335,595)
FEIEIR Non-controlling interests 24 (2)
73,334 (335,597)
BEM 2 B sE Akt SR SRR 2 — 81D © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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NZZE—+F+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2017

B it
Notes
FRBEE Non-current assets
WE - #EE R Property, plant and equipment 17
AE TR Interests in leasehold land 18
"EME Investment properties 19
AT EeREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21
kS Goodwill 22
mEEE Intangible assets 23
RETFT—REFZEX Loan to a director 24
MEEENike Deposit paid for investment 32
R—HEELEZER Interest in a joint venture 25
mEEE Current assets
FE Inventories 26
MEFE Stock of properties 27
BRI Film rights 28
BIERER Films in progress 29
BRIRE Investment in film 30
B 5 R 3K Trade receivables 31
Re -  BNREK Deposits, prepayment and
H fth & W kI8 other receivables 32
FRBERARATEERE Financial assets at fair value through
Rz SR EE profit or loss 33
FEWE K Loan receivables 34
T HATFE 3K Time deposits 35
e RRITHEH Cash and bank balances 36
DEABELECEE Assets classified as held for sale 37
HmEE Total assets
EXRFEE Capital and reserves
N Share capital 38
1 Reserves
AATEEABEESR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
E Non-controlling interests
s Total equity

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

=2t WL STT
2017 2016
T8 T
HK$°000 HK$'000
12,190 361,857
55,282 395,297
81,100 82,620
173 -

- 7,682

293,371 -

- 400,000

384 161
442,500 1,247,517
- 66,006
2,107,376 583,240
12,049 21,446
168,992 81,461

- 11,325

3,099 231,777
289,981 152,560
725,816 286,933
200,000 825,000
155 -
424,200 769,939
3,931,668 3,029,687
725,635 -
4,657,303 3,029,687
5,099,803 4,277,204
9,037 9,037
3,272,537 3,199,325
3,281,574 3,208,362
(114) (435)
3,281,460 3,207,927
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R-ZZE—+F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2017

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
B it FERT AT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
IRITIEE Bank borrowings 39 - 670,000
AN Promissory note 40 173,817 -
REMESEER Obligations under finance leases 41 - 353
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 42 - 82,948
173,817 753,301
REEE Current liabilities
RITEE Bank borrowings 39 - 133,513
MEMERS Obligations under finance leases 41 - 231
B ENRR Trade payables 43 26,589 43,820
BUEZES -« EFIEA & Deposits received, accruals and
H &~ 508 other payables 44 294,070 138,202
JE 1 FE 158 AR HE 2 R 1B Amounts due to non-controlling
interests 45 503,116 210
823,775 315,976
PEAFIELEZ Liabilities associated with assets
BEZEHABE classified as held for sale 37 820,751 -
1,644,526 315,976
EEAE Total liabilities 1,818,343 1,069,277
EEkaBEEH Total equity and liabilities 5,099,803 4,277,204
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,012,777 2,713,711
HEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 3,455,277 3,961,228
EAMBREN-_ZE—NE=A -+ ~BHHES=<H#,E The consolidated financial statements were approved and
&&*gﬁjggjzmTﬁuﬁ%ﬁﬁggg : authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26th March
2018 and are signed on its behalf by:
LE: FoR B &
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EZE EZE
Director Director
BEM 2 B sE Ak Il Sz 2 — 510 o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Pas 34 &4 . . .
%5 & B 45 3% B) % Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017
RSN PN
Attributable to owners of the Company
WRORR  AHTE  BRHE DEER
Bk BOEE HABR  EXEG  LEBE  2RUERE  REZER BE Bk EHER @it FERER E2 3
Bonus
Share-based ~ convertible Capital  Property Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Exchange  Statutory  payment bonds duction  revaluation lated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total equity
i ThT TR AT T TAR FEL FEL ThL ThT T AT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
(Wia)  (Wito) () (WEe)  (Wie) () (Wdg)  (Win)
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note g) (note &) (note f) (note g) (note h)
RZE-7"%-A-8 At 1st January 2016 7531 1411925 1925439 733 291 88,834 1,132 316,008 48171 (333,874) 3,466,190 (433) 3,465,757
EEER Loss for the year - - - - - - - - - (335609) (335,609 2 (33,611)
FEERZENA Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 14 - - - - - - 14 - 14
EER2ERA/(FE)EE  Total comprehensive
incomef(loss) for the year - - - 14 - - - - - (335,609)  (335,595) () (335,597)
B El Expiry of share options - - - - - (12,690) - - - 12,690 - - -
REFK Placement of new shares 1,506 78312 - - - - - - - - 79818 - 79818
EIRHER Share issuing expenses - (2,051) - - - - - - - - (2,01) - (2.051)
RZE-RET2A At 31st December 2016
SH-BRAZE-LE  andat fst January 2017
-A-A 9037 1488186 1925439 47 291 76,144 1,132 316,008 48171 (656,793) 3,208,362 (435) 3,207,927
3340 Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 73312 73312 % 73,33
FEEMZAER Other comprehensive
loss for the year - - - (2) - - - - - - @ - @2
FF2E(FR) /RALE  Total comprehensive
(loss)fincome for the year - - - 2 - - - - - 73312 73310 24 73,334
hE-EHEAAZ Acquisition of additional
BMER interests in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (%) (98) (58) (156)
WEEL 2 EnRER Non-controling interests
arising on acquisition - - - - - - - - - - - (70) (70)
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 425 425
BREXH Lapsed of share options - - - - - (6,284) - - - 6,284 - - -
EiEL Expiry of share options - - - - - (14,195) - - - 14,195 - - -
RoB-t§ At 31st December 2017
+ZB=1-A 9,037 1,488,186 1,925,439 745 291 55,665 1,132 316,008 48,1m (563,100) 3,281,574 (114) 3,281,460
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b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

&% 7 BE 12 5% B) & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE_T—

BEBRE-NAN-FRREEER) R2RAZERM
ER AERMRARR ZRETRN - AERBURARE
TFARRBER -

AEBZANBARBRDERR _TZ_FAA+RE
B2 AR BB S BAR 2 IR B AR T 48 B AR A BR 2 B

BEBRE-NN—FQRNE(KIER]) - SIARBITH
DIk o AT - RATIER  ARATEFERARBRIE

HAIE © ()R A& B SRR 1% 4 (82 5 B i &
BEZEE: S()AAREEZIZBRESAEMERE
BfE-

RERESAREEI R FEERAIRER R
i$%la§ﬂ%’i“¥(ﬁﬂ%n( AL BHEZERZE
BoMEAEZBRDERNEMG2EKRAERIL N E XL H
BRI - ZERNERBBRITZERZERHEEIIE
BEEFORERL -

R R Fﬂ?ﬁiﬂﬂ%:ﬁﬂﬁéi C AR BV RRPY R A S 2

MTE BRFE TR ZE5%BEEETERHE -
1%%1%%5@%ﬁ$@@250%7%ﬂ: B RAFES
CEERETITUAREREFEMEADIE

B Xt 2 RERE - HERRHEABERERGR
AREEGBBENRSZREZATFEE  EE8Y
NEHEORHEBREZ ATEERESE - ZRERHY
M8 AIREERBREZ A FEEEHEEED
B (EE) NBAE  TIERRMEEHEAR AR
W AR FE R B AR 00 ST 2 SRIA R -

Notes:

(a)

TtFE+ZA=+—RLFE

For the year ended 31st December 2017

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders

of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and

various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable value of

its assets would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“HK$")) are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign

operations.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during

the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-based

payment reserve.
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BEARRAR-ZF-—F+A-TRBERITZERRES
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AR HE o
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f % 5 B) % Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—+F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

Notes: (Continued)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 25th October
2012 in relation to the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive bonus convertible bonds
(“Bonus CBs”) in lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs can be
converted into ordinary shares at initial conversion price of
HK$0.01 per share were issued by the Company. The Bonus
CBs are recognised as equity and are presented in “bonus
convertible bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights entitling the
bondholders to convert into an equivalent number of shares
as the number of bonus shares which the bondholders would
otherwise be entitled to receive under the bonus issue had the
shareholder not elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting of shareholders
of the Company. The bondholders can exercise the conversion
rights at any time after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject to the
terms and conditions of the applicable deed poll constituting
the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims
on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying
off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied.

Property revaluation reserve relates the property transferred
from owner-occupied to investment property. The excess
amount between the fair value and the carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is included in the property
revaluation reserve, and will be transferred to accumulated

losses upon the retirement or disposal of the relevant property.

d
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b EEBBIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

£ Bl 4 i & # Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

—§-t%
2017

Wiz TERT
Notes HK$’000

REXBRERE

RBREXBZRBA
i (BR)
ERIEEEEBRBAER

BRATEAMERE
BEKA
FSWA
REWA
B MERH
TG 1 3 25 8

NE - BERRBINE

BREZMEZR
BRREER
EREVEEZD
BRREER
BRARETER 2
EHRRERR
ERRL-RHAELEREL
EHRBEER

BRAE 5 R 2
ERAAERE

FRENES BERNRER
HinERTIR 2 CHER
BEBE

ARESRRENZ
EERREBRRED

ERENRE REMEEREL
EERRESERD

BBERURTEEIRZ
ERMEEZATEEED
FrE®Ez Carl) /B

REMELAFEEED
(& #l) /B8

HEMF  BERRELZ
(&71) /BR

HEMB DA 25 A

BRIEBRREVEEZRHN

REBODANRZER

BE-MAELXESE
BEFEHOR

78

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations
Loss before tax from
discontinued operations
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Amortisation of film rights
Amortisation of interests in
leasehold land
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of film rights
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of films in progress
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of amount due from
a joint venture
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of deposits, prepayment
and other receivables
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
trade receivables
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of deposits paid
and other receivables
(Gain)/loss arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Gain)/loss on fair value change of
investment properties
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on derecognition of intangible assets
Loss on early redemption of
promissory note
Share of result of a joint venture
Write-down of obsolete inventories

110,036
(36,683)
63,961
(78,616)
(1,722)
8,373
21,649
59,814

1,024

(135)

(3,152)

(210,791)
(4,120)

(732)
(551)

66,110
(223)
30

ZE-RF
2016
FTHT
HK$'000

(291,928)
(43,683)
30,543
(99,725)
(1,679)
487,578
23,158
70,110
4,877
449

422

1,143

3,900

18,879

33,440

886

(120)

90
58
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b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

%% & Bl £ i & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

SE—LF —E-REF
2017 2016
itz3 THET TAET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEECEEH Operating cash flows before
meBRens movements in working capital (5,728) 238,410
FERL Decrease in inventories 10,175 4,145
MEFELN Increase in stock of properties (136,051) (15,267)
SUEREREM Increase in films in progress (87,531) (202,633)
BYRERD Decrease in investment in film 11,325 -
BHRYEF RS/ (E10) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 175,530 (113,493)
Re BAFEK Increase in deposits, prepayment and other
H ity e SR IEE receivables (156,307) (97,597)
JE UL SEIE R i 25 TR (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
(gm /my non-controlling interests (371) 329
Z SR BEZIE N Increase in trade payables 18,839 4172
BEES - EFTIEA R Decrease in deposits received, accruals
H o EN IR and other payables (9,015) (138,996)
EN—HEERERERD Decrease in amount due to a
joint venture - (25)
T IRk 300E (Decrease)/increase in amounts
CRA) /41 due to non-controlling interests (210) 210
HEMARS Cash used in operations (179,344) (320,745)
(BR) /REHHE Tax (paid)/refund (17) 153
REXEMARSEE Net cash used in operating activities (179,361) (320,592)
REXBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B E Dividend received 1,722 1,679
T H A Interest received 58,122 107,930
REHEF—REZEZER Loan advanced to a director (500,000) _
REEENES Deposit paid for investment - (400,000)
HORIERLEEBERL Deposit received associated
Blize with the discontinued operation 200,000 -
REBHABB=EAZ Increase in time deposits with original
THFEZEM maturities more than three months (155) -
BRUENBARAMBEEEL Net cash outflow for acquisition of assets
Remt s through acquisition of subsidiaries 46(b) (172) -
HEWE  BERREMERE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 1,089 7,535
HEBUHERCEEKMENE Proceeds from disposal of
gaming promotion operations - 10,000
HEMBARIEE2HSRAEE  Net cash inflow arising on
disposal of subsidiaries 47 72,298 -
BEAME HELREZIE Payments for purchases of property,
plant and equipment (11,339) (13,755)
BEEWRER Repayment of loan receivables 625,000 400,000
REEBHBHERE Net cash generated from investing activities 446,565 113,389
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£ Bl 4 i & # Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

3

Notes

MEXBZRERE

BERHE
EEANE
HRBRITEE
BITHB A S 30R
EEREREES

BRRITEE
BIRNAX

RMEZBAACREFE

RERASEERERD
BERIRERREEHEER

ENSRESEAR

EHEZEE
HAEEREH o HE

BERARZRERASEEER

Re RRTHEH

BEMT < M X R SM B MK 2 — &1

80

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid
Repayment of promissory note 40
New bank borrowings raised
Proceeds from issue of new shares
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Repayment of bank borrowings
Share issuing expenses

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the reporting period
Reclassification to assets classified as
held for sale 37
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the reporting period
Cash and bank balances 36

financial statements.

N .
2017 2016
TEx FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(37,860) (30,681)
(400,000) -
- 63,439

- 79,818

(231) (235)
(133,513) (184,854)
- (2,051)
(571,604) (74,564)
(304,400) (281,767)
769,939 1,051,692
(41,350) -
11 14
424,200 769,939

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

1.

—REE
RARRBFEEFMKN I 2B R ERAF -
HROEBBHERSMARAR ([BXFA])
FH-ARRAZAMBERERFELEME Y
4k 55 Bl ACanon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda & & T & & 1 168-
20097 5 12 0 FE E341209F ©

WEFBRRABT (BT FIE BLTHAR
RAZNEEE - BRABAHAEIN  FAEEED
AHEERIZTRHE(TET) -

AEBZIBEBR/RE HERBETEFRE
REER  REBAEERBARYEME LK

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun Tak
Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong respectively.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are investment,
production and distribution of films and television
drama series, provision of artist management services
and properties development and investment.

31
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b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

N

REEITEERE
| (BEEMBHREE

ERR-Z2-—tF-B-RERZHIK
RETEBUBREER
AEERNAFEERERETEBGFD
S(EREMAE]) Bz THIHRT
RGBT - BRI ARRE (RBRIH
RGBT ERMBREER])  ARA
SEE-_T—tF A BFRRZMBF
BEY - ARERB T REEBITER
MHmREERNZBREHINNT

G

3 ]Jlls

N

BEERERETR  IDBE
(A%

BEGIERE 12 HARBEBERTCETH
(A% BEE

BEMBRELER BANBASEN-F -1
(BFT%) FE-T-NEREZE

R (BEEAMBR
HERE12RRE M
BEZ RELIER)

BB ERETH (ETF) THHE

ARECRAFEEREAZEEIA -
RERAZRERFELEE  UWBMHER
ROEAEAFERETBMSIZNEE
B BEASRIFRSEL - I
TREENRERECKIERKRER
ERFARERHNRSRER - ZEFT
ANMBREARBEERCHEENED -

ABME - RSETABREETIIEHE:
(VRERSRBOED : ()G LEEN
WA A E 2 B0
(M R BTE + (V)2 T EED
28 RVELLD -

2.

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations
(collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning from 1st January 2017. A summary
of the new and revised HKFRSs applied by the
Group is set out as follows:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle relating to
amendments to HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments
for the first time in the current year. The
amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows
will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the
following to be disclosed: (i) changes from
financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.
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B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2017 (Continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

A reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of these items is provided in
note 55 to the financial statements. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 55 to the financial
statements, the application of these amendments
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Except as described above, the application
of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and financial positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+E+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2017

= BB EHBEFE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
& % B (r§ S B 3R 4 HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
) (& STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

G
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ﬂ
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(b)

EHEMENRERZHTRBETEEY

BREER

AREYEEFEABTICEBMAERRE
BT REERTBEAMBIRERER

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

BB EEBT REERARRAELEZRE HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term interests in Associates and
(# nﬁr‘) B Joint Ventures?
EERR I EERENE HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfer of Investment Property’
CHES)
EAMBREEN EENBRERN-_T-NF HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(B3TR) é:?—xiaﬂiﬁﬁﬁraﬂz 2014-2016 Cycle except HKFRS 12
€ (BRBREER (Amendments)’
E12% (BT R) Kb
FAYRRSEE EAMKGERE -1 HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
CHES) ETLFERIEEN 2017 Cycle?
2
BB RS E DRATRRHCABR HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement of
EACHES! GE! Share-based Payment Transactions'
B BREE ERERHBREENER HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
45 (B3TK) THTARERYRREE with HKFRS 4 /nsurance Contracts'
B S5 RB LY
EANBREENZGE  SBIA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
BRUBHEEANFE  AEARBEZRAETEW HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with Negative
CHES) Compensation?
EAMBREENEI0R RAEREBELALAE HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
REBQIENZNE  CEMZEEMEREAN (Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
CHES) Venture*
EAMBREENE S REEEPANINER HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
EEPHEN and the related Amendments’
EANBRERANZ R HE HKFRS 16 Leases?
EANBREENETR  RRAL HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
FEERMBASRE  MERFRBARE HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
ZE88)-¢ %1%227? Advance Consideration'
A ERMERERE  FMEHERE THEER HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
é%@)—%%&%m%ﬁ
! RZE-N\F—-—A—BdzE&RBBz ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
FEHBEN  TATREER- after 1st January 2018, with earlier application
permitted.
2 RZE-NF-A—-—BszEFRBEZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

FEMBMEES AR REER - after 1st January 2019, with earlier application
permitted.

3 RZZE_—F—-A—BszERBEZ s Effective for annual periods beginning on or

FEBRENR IR FRPER - after 1st January 2021, with earlier application
permitted.

¢ REERB v ERB s FERBE 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

e

after a date to be determined.
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B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant
to the Group are:

. all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair
value at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss;
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

EHEMEMRERZHTRKETEEY
BREER (&)

ERYBHREEAFIELHT A (F) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. REeEBMEEZREMS  BFE
SR EANFRBETREELRE
ERRRAGERAR BAMB
BERNERAERAREES
BREAFE -BHEEFRREA
REBRBRERERESEIIE
EEBEZERBEEERR
BAR ARBEERR E@m
BANRzZES -T2 HAE

in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting

period to reflect changes in credit risk

BREEEEEHITBRREEES since initial recognition. In other words, it
B is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
ENAEBER_E—+tF+A=+—H Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
MERTERBEBREREBRR  KARAGES risk management policies at 31st December

BEIRERBAMBHREL LR
BEZEMT

2017, the directors of the Company anticipate
the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement:

° Debt security classified as available-
for-sale financial assets carried at cost
less impairment as disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements: this security
qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the
Group plans not to elect the option for
designating this security to be measured
at FVTOCI and will measure this security
at fair value with subsequent fair value
gains or losses to be recognised in profit
or loss.

o All other financial assets and financial
liabilities will continue to be measured
on the same bases as are currently
measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company also
anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other
items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.
However, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will have material
impact to the opening accumulated losses at 1st
January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: |dentify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when

(or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already
recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

At 31st December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$20,280,000 as disclosed in note 48 to the
financial statements. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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2.

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of approximately
HK$1,428,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

Except disclosed above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
a material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial positions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

3. FESHHEMRE

REZEVBERRARBZ I EGHHREHRTIM
T -BREBERAEN ZERRENAAEZRE
EEHER -

() HEHEH
ZERBRRDIREBEMBEREEME R
HEA(REREB St AgmMBnmZ
FrEERENEEMBRELEN BEE
FEA(EBEGHEN]D RRE) REE
RRZETRAIMARR LI ZEFRH
WRBEBIMES LR T LETR
ANREZERRERRREBRAG
2 BHERTE -

(b) HEHEREE
ZENBRERCRELRAEERS  #
BREMERET 2R IARBRERR A
FEEFERN ERTXEI NS K
EANRE -

BERA—BRAERERERIB2REZ

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rule”)
on the Stock Exchange and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.
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3. FEESHHEHE£Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) EREXE(Z) (b)  Basis of preparation (Continued)

o M HHREMS  AFEEFER In addition, for financial reporting purposes,

BAVEBEFECAAHMBIEREER fair value measurements are categorised into

AFEENEZOASBHERE EE level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which

MAEAE R E-_RRE=FH 15 the inputs to the fair value measurements are

PO observable and the significance of the inputs to

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. E-—RBUABERRERBNHEH . Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
A RS HREERAGBERE (unadjusted) in active markets for
BTS2 ME CREFHE) identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o E_RBABBANEESAE . Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
ERYEEHBE 2§ AR quoted prices included within level 1, that
(F—HRBEZHRERIN K are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. E=BWARBREELBEEL . Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
A ER R g A\ Bk o for the asset or liability.

(c) RER%E (c) Basis of consolidation

EAMBRREBARRFRARE REMH
BARIMESN 2 ERZHMBEER - EAR
AINA N TERE - AIBUSEHHE

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. AEHREHRITEEN . has power over the investee;
. E2 A RERMmAEE . is exposed, or has rights, to variable

mHzEBRLFREF &

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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3. FEESHHEHE£Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() #®HEEEHE) (c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amounts of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

3. E‘EE%E‘I’B{%HE (/ﬁ/ég) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
d) EBastE) (d)  Business combinations (Continued)

RUEE R - BTUCHE 2 AT AR & 2 R AT i At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets

JEBERESE AT EERER  ETHIE acquired and the liabilities assumed are

B BRI - recognised at their fair value, except that:

J RELEHIEEEREERERER . deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
FMLHEBcEEXBED IR assets or liabilities related to employee
BEBEFERFI12RAEZH R benefit arrangements are recognised and
R GFIERFE195E 5 45 7/ measured in accordance with HKAS 12
RREE Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

J EEYAEEETAENEKERR . liabilities or equity instruments related
78 B 7R 5 [ DA R 19 32 A9 SR TE S IA to share-based payment arrangements
BHSZNHREERTFHRWER 2 of the acquiree or share-based payment
ZHDIREEBM B RS ERF2 arrangements of the Group entered
ARG T AFE D & into to replace share-based payment

arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition

date; and
. REEEW G RELERESRAFE . assets (or disposal groups) that are
HEZHREEERBKIALE classified as held for sale in accordance
EEEDBEBEEHEZEE (B H with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
BHE) DIRBZEAGE - for Sale and Discontinued Operations

are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to stock of properties and financial assets at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3. TEEHKERE L) 3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) (GRS (f) Goodwill

WREXEMELCABIRNBERERKE
AZHARRHREEBR(MA) IR

E

SREARTNE  WBELZHESENR
ERHABRBzHBRAREES c AEE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-

EReEFBM([BeEEENM]) (3R generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUs)
CELAEMNESR) B that is expected to benefit from the synergies

CBIAREEIEE
EEEBZHREKFEIRREE DS

o

of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.

ENoEmEzREeELEN (NAEELE A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
BUAES) @BFIRNERRBTZEN been allocated is tested for impairment annually
T%Eﬁiﬁdﬁ%{ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]i}ﬁiﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁ 0 or more frequently when there is indication that
BHREMRANREMEECHE  BHED the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
%ZIE@EE%&(QZE@EEEM%H%) on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
R ERATETRENR - M kE (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
THEENEREE  BIREEBES LHE allocated is tested for impairment before the

BEEAAEEME CREE  HRAK
ZEM(FReELEUAS) NBEE
ERAECHIDEEHEMEE

HERBERCELBMR BEZEED

end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the

ERETHEZSEN (AAEEEREHE attributable amount of goodwill is included in
IS RReEFENEENTRNRSESL the determination of the amount of profit or loss
BA)ZEESBERMAGE on disposal (or any of the CGU within group of
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CGUs in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
venture are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an interest in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
interest in a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the interest. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the interest subsequently

increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion
of an investment, in an associate or joint venture,
the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are
met, and the Group discontinues the use of the
equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when
the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs of disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods and
services supplied, net of value-added tax,
gaming tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

° Artist management service income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.

° Consultancy service income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

. Distribution fee income from the licensing
of the distribution rights of films and
television drama series is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements, is usually upon the master
materials have been delivered or the
sharing of the relevant revenue have been
reliably ascertained.

o Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to received payment
is established.

° Income from investment in film is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement
to such payment has been established,
which is subject to the terms of the
relevant agreements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from financial asset is
accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business is recognised when
the right to receive profit is established.

Rental income, net of any incentives
given to the lessee, is recognised over
the periods of the respective leases on a
straight-line basis.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food
and beverage sales and other ancillary
hotel services are recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered.

Revenue from sales of health products
are recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products
are delivered to customers and title is
passed.

Service income from mass marketing,
table gaming operations, VIP rooms table
gaming operations and slot machines
operations are recognised over the
periods for which right to occupy and
use spaces are established according to
the license and site agreements and are
based on certain percentage of monthly
gross gaming wins in the mass market,
VIP table gaming and slot machines in
the casino.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

TESHEBME(E)

3.

1)

BIEE
185 i 2 T B E

ERKEY ABEERAIERFHZELE
ETREKARREERRTREER
Stk - BEBRACAFHZELEELZ
BHEREGA A ERFRNERERER -
fAEt A EAF R ENSRERR
TRAER - ARt EEMEZS  EHEA
fReERMBYAE I EENEAFHZ
B EETVRRAR IR ERRERES
BAK-

REBEHRBZREEE

REBEHEB 2BV EEEREN FE
REBEERNRBEER 2 AFEEESTIR
BRERBEIMA) °

EBattPREYAEAERABAFHZ
B EERTIAREREIZBENKE 2 &
WEERRZEE  URARR R #HE R
REtREBRI - REBA G UNEL
BETHEAERFMZzZENEETENK
ARAEAERRFREBRAR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset

is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:

2%-5%
20%-33%
10%-50%
15%-20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furnitures, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the consolidated income
statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Interests in leasehold land

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are classified
and accounted for as investment properties and
are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in the
consolidated income statement for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit/(loss) before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. FESHHREME &) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) H®EE) (o)  Taxation (Continued)
FEEHE (&) Deferred tax (Continued)
BEHRBEEZ FEERSEREHKE The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
et WS [ se & B B 50 FE -2 5 5% A 1k reviewed at the end of each reporting period
BB MO EERAEREAR - and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
BRERBEERBEDNERBRRSHARE Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
EMIABERIMERTE  REES at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
HaBESERUEER  KEtAEHES period in which the liability is settled or the asset
MEATEAE - is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

BLEREEENEEZ A ERBERRE The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
HRBRBERNEEFRETAKEBSEEH assets reflects the tax consequences that would
EENMEBBEEREHEZHARZBEBER - follow from the manner in which the Group

expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

BURFEEEAAEREMEZELER For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
BAEME  BEZSEWELKRBMANR investment properties that are measured using
HEPZEWDE - BRIFBEHRE LB SE the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
Al BIREMEANHITE  WIREBKE such properties are presumed to be recovered
RFEZSYE HENERESEERIE entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
EMEMBENBRNEDEEFZE (M rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
FEFBEE)  ZBREFKME - investment properties are depreciable and are

held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale.
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3. FEESHHEHE£Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

116

(o) HEME) (0)  Taxation (Continued)
FEEFXHRELHE Current and deferred tax for the year
AP MEEHRERIBEER  EZER Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
ftb 2 T U BX B 9% A M 2 T 7 Zlﬁﬁ*ﬁ_eﬁ or loss, except when they relate to items that
B EUBER T ABREEHRBEIS D are recognised in other comprehensive income
FIRNEMEERAREENEZER - B or directly in equity, in which case, the current
EBEHORETREREERNHAIELT and deferred tax are also recognised in other
BIE BMBAFEF A AZERAHZEHE comprehensive income or directly in equity
A o respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination
(p) fMBEMEK (p) Borrowing costs

REFUE BRERLERBREERE
R hE TR EERA %
ERAERRINMEZBEERAE  BEEZSE
BEANINESHBERST 2 REREIH
EZEBREAIL -

FrEREMEERNEAREEBRGE
%ﬁgwu °

WA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the

consolidated income statements in the period in
which they are incurred.
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3. E\Egg'ﬁ'ﬂzﬁmg (/{éﬁ) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT .
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) MERFE (q) Stock of properties
FERHEZMEREDRKA R ERF Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
BEMEREETR - AR SR FER are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
INTERE : value. Cost and net realisable value are

determined as follows:
BEHEZZREBYE Properties under development held for sale
BIEHEZERTWEZRABE  LE The costs of properties under development
EHEAKARBE T 2 WA - %S held for sale comprises specifically identified
A R ARE R MR R ftE - T costs including the acquisition cost of land,
B HEMEERERINEE D 2 —RITH aggregate cost of development, borrowing
EH BTN IES2EAATER costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
BEPHEMEZLEMGRIE - HER other direct expenses and an appropriate
A EEERNSTREE TR 2 TBHK proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
K- BERERBRTMAEL GG E determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
B properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

(r) 7K (r) Inventories
FEDNEKANRAZIEERE 7BIEKE Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
ABR o EE MK AR % A S H B g net realisable value. Costs of inventories are

BE(ER)FE - IR FERFER
AHEERTEAMETTIHE 2 M BEFTAA

EFEELE  REFEIRAERER
BERRGEHRAERBEERAR T IARER -
BEEMRETERFELERRFELZ
FrABERNHRBERELMEANIERE
ERARTHAX (REERE) TNE
W o (T B MURL 2 A o 988 [ 70 8 [0 E A
HEARHEERRNREH -
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determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted
average method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales or administrative expenses as appropriate
in the period the write-down or loss occurs as
appropriate. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is offset against the
cost of sales in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by
the Group. Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group begins amortisation
of the capitalised costs of film rights when a film
is released and it begins to recognise revenue
from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total
projected revenue and total production costs of
film rights at the end of each reporting period.
If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue from the
period when such changes in estimates take
place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation
of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Amortisation expense is charged to the
consolidated income statement based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the sale
of film rights. The amortisation of film rights will
not exceed twenty years. In the case where there
is any impairment in value, the carrying amount
is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(u)

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs
associated with the production of films including
remuneration for the film director, casts and
production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup
and hairdressing as well as rental of camera
and lighting equipment. Films in progress
is transferred to film rights when the film is
released.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in other
revenue and other income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it
is designated as at FVTPL.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading

if:

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term;

on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL

upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
income statements excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the other revenue line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in
note 5 to the financial statement.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified
as loans and receivables or financial assets at
FVTPL.

AFS debt security that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including deposit
paid for investment, investment in film, trade
receivables, deposits paid, other receivables,
loan receivables, time deposits and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60-
90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in
the consolidated income statements. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through consolidated income
statement to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt security, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank
borrowings, promissory note, obligations
under finance leases, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance) and amounts due
to non-controlling interests) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

3.

3.

TESHEBME(E)

(u)

SRIA(E)

ARIER

REBEERBEEERRER ZEHNER
R IASEEEREEREEMA
BRI ER R EREET S — (@8
KR RREREE - WAEE W REE
AR A 2 @A R & B - i
REBEHCHEEE ASESRE
BANREEZREERD  THRRAAEAX
Mz HBRE - HARERECERSR
BEMARE ZBAHBMHRR KB ® - AR
SEEERRZEMEE TR HI
ZHBRERRERER -

RUIEEREREER EEREERZEK
REBRENRREMEER(ERE
MEERAR R ERER) @NEZZ
RN ARARTER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s

interests.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is

recognised in the consolidated income
statements on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
under the heading of “obligations under finance
leases”.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance costs and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance costs are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits
Annual leave

Employee entitlement to annual leave is
recognised when it accrues to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees during the year. Employee
entitlements to maternity leave and sick leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), pension fund
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the
PRC is to make the specified contributions under
the schemes.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group are covered
by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and
paid by the Macau government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees
and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security
Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
government. The Group funds the entire
contribution and has no further commitments
beyond its monthly contributions.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity under the heading of share-based
payment reserve. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated income statements such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to the consolidated income
statement.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Share-based payment expenses granted to
consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including
those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before
it is handed over to the grantor, is the best
estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ac)

(ad)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key

management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ad)
(b)

Related party transactions (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);

or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ad)

(ae)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale if earlier.
It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face
of consolidated income statement, which

comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised

on the measurement to fair value less
of the
assets or disposal group constituting the

costs to sell, or on the disposal,

discontinued operation.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised any
deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.

Classification of Sparkle Star Entertainment Limited
(“Sparkle Star”) as a joint venture

Sparkle Star is a limited liability company whose legal
form confers separation between the parties to the joint
arrangements and the company itself. Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other
facts and circumstances that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements.
Accordingly, Sparkle Star is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Trade receivables

The aging debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade receivable
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods
have been exceeded. However, from time to time,
the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivable balances are
called into doubts, specific provisions for bad and
doubtful debts are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aging analysis of the trade receivables
balances and write-off history. Certain receivables may
be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the collectability of trade
receivables for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account factors
such as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and tear.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes
to the estimates used can result in variations in their
carrying amounts.

Impairment of films in progress

The directors of the Company review films in progress
at the end of each reporting period, and identify the
slow-moving films in progress that is no longer suitable
for use in production. The directors of the Company
estimate the net realisable value for such films in
progress primarily based on the latest available market
prices and current market conditions. In addition, the
Group carries out review on each film at the end of
each reporting period and makes allowance for any
films in progress which no longer proceeds.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in this
assessment, including the forecasted revenue, may
result in additional provision being made in the financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected as
a result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, may result

in material provision for impairment loss.
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5. QEQI/E_\ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) SRIAER: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
—E—+tF TE—RF
2017 2016
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
SRMEE Financial assets
A ESREE AFS financial assets 173 -
BBER AN TFEENEY Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE 725,816 286,933
ERkEYRE (2ERER Loans and receivables
IRITHERR) (including cash and bank balances) 1,206,274 2,367,779
SEesE Financial liabilities
BB Amortised cost 997,592 986,321
(b) cHEREEEEREE (b)  Financial risk management objectives and

AREREFEREEBZIEZSRTA
BREAUHLESREE BRERURTF
BENRZEREE RETREFZ
BER pRECNZE E¥RE BH
EMRR - ENEE - HMERR - &
WER  EMER  ReRRITER R
TREE ANE BEBREER BEH5RE
IR Bdiee EFIEE REMEN
FOR (N B RYGRIR) kA I3 B
HRE - ARESRTAZFBERAENY
BRMKRMERE
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policies

The Group’s major financial instruments from
continuing operations include AFS financial
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, loan to a
director, deposit paid for investment, investment
in film, trade receivables, deposits paid, other
receivables, loan receivables, time deposits,
cash and bank balances, bank borrowings,
promissory note, obligations under finance
leases, trade payables, deposits received,
accruals and other payables (excluding receipt
in advance) and amounts due to non-controlling
interests. Details of the financial instruments for
the Group are disclosed in respective notes to
the financial statements.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, equity price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
Netherlands and PRC and
majority of transactions are denominated
in HK$, US dollar (“US$"), Macau Pataca
(“MOP"), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises

Macau,

from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Group.

The Group is not exposed to material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of HK$ against US$ and MOP as long as
these currencies are pegged. Therefore
US$ and MOP are excluded from the
analysis below.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F ik



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The transactions and monetary assets
denominated in EUR and RMB is minimal,
the Group considers there has no material
foreign exchange risk exposure in
respect of EUR and RMB. Therefore EUR
and RMB are excluded from the analysis
below.

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The
management will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its equity investments
classified as held for trading investments
in financial assets at FVTPL which are
measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities operating in acquisition,
exploration and development of iron ore
in Australia and the PRC, provision of
securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, margin and initial public
offering financing, corporate finance
advisory services, futures brokerage and
asset management services and provision
of gaming and hospitality services in
Macau, provision of aviation and logistics
services and provision of online financial
market information. In addition, the Group
will monitor the equity price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

SRMIA(&Z
(b) SHEREEBEERMEE)
TEE R (&)
(i) BRAEEE ()
BB T

(iii)
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AEEBHZE-_ZTZ—tF+=A
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BIRCZEeMEEZRTFEEY
Ebo

T a2
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it AR A BEEAFNERR
A o
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5.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group’s pre-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$25,412,000 (2016: pre-tax loss
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$14,347,000). This is mainly due to the
changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL that trades in the Stock Exchange.

Interest rate risk

At 31st December 2017, the Group has
no material variable rate interest-bearing
borrowings. Therefore, the Company is
not exposed to significant interest rate
risk exposure.

At 31st December 2016, the Group was
exposed to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate borrowings (note
39 to the financial statements for the
details of bank borrowings). The Group’s
income and operating cash flows were
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
At 31st December 2016, 50 basis

points increase or decrease are used

year.

when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
loss for the year ended 31st December
2016 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$4,018,000. This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate of borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable

to trade receivables, loan to a director, loan

receivables, time deposits and cash and
bank balances. At 31st December 2017, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts
of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

EWMIR(ZE
(b) SHMEBEEABRIE ()
ERER(E)

WZZ—tF+-_A=+—8 ARAAE
E99% (ZZ— RF :97%) 2B HEW
ERNEREREF (ZE—AF 1 3% %
P) ARAEEFEEETEFEERR -
RARERERA HRALEESREA
EBREEREBEROCRPENTES MW
FERBRER EEESHEZREBTA
CHBEERBE -

REEERRRERE EEECSRK—
EEEERECEERE FEMHERK
MEERF  WERRRITSERAHNE
Koo Mt REER KRG B AR E @5
HEEPMERERZATKEI SR - A
REATEESBEELEERERE 3
BEfME ARAEERRAKEZEER
RPN IR N

R-F—tF+-A=1+—08 FAKEE
BN—FERT - REF-FRAEER
WEERBRAR REZAKEESREM
ERTARBABEELHRRIFEEZE
FARAEFEARBEETEXMEREZMH

BERREE-

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31st December 2017, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 99% (2016: 97%)
of the trade receivables of the Group were
due from 2 customers (2016: 3 customers).
Management of the Company considered the
credit risk is limited since the Group only trade
with customers with an appropriate credit
history and good reputation. The management
monitored the financial background and
creditability of those debtors on an ongoing
basis.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits,
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual

credit

trade debtor and loan receivable at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At 31st December 2017, the Group had
advanced a loan to a director. The directors
of the Company considered the credit risk is
limited since the Group only provides loan to
director who has an appropriate credit history
and good reputation. The directors of the
Company monitored the financial background
and creditability of borrow on an ongoing basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group deposited time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group’s right with respect to time
deposits and bank balances held to be delayed
or limited. The directors of the Company monitor
the credit rating of these banks on an ongoing
basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk at 31st December 2017 and 31st
December 2016 were minimal.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by the management. Reports with maturity
dates of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following table shows details of the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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ﬁﬁm THA (/Z/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) <RBEAMREEEERBEE(Z) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and

mBEZmE (&)
FOTEMBREZIHBTINABEERA
HMRERRE - RAFATDREADOKRR
BNREEOT

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are prepared based on the agreed
repayment dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are as follows:

BER RER
ERNZE  gR-FR  ZZEIER BENLE RERESH REESG
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
TiEn TR TR TiEn T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-tF+-H=1-H  At31st December 2017
FTEeRER Non-derivative
financial liabilities
EES Promissory note 17.49% - 212,500 - 212,500 173,817
BHEAER Trade payables - 26,589 - - 26,589 26,589
BliEe - BBEA R Deposits received, accruals
EfERFE and other payables - 294,070 - - 294,070 294,070
R FERERTE Amounts due to
non-controlling interests - 503,116 - - 503,116 503,116
&5 Total 823,775 212,500 - 1,086,275 997,592
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5. @®WMIA(#& 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) <REABREEEERBE(EZ) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REBELER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
BEX AER

ERFE  FR-FR  ZE0ERM RENE RERESH  REESH

On demand Total Total

Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying

interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

Thx ThL T T ThAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MZZ—R"E+-A=t-H At 31st December 2016

HTEcEat Non-derivative

financial liabilities
BORE Bank borrowings 2.65%-3.50% 138,082 372,600 320,850 831,532 803,513
RERERR Obligations under

finance leases 5.00%-7.52% 244 373 - 617 584
E5EAER Trade payables - 43,820 - - 43,820 43,820
EYERS  EEER Deposits received,

EfEATE acoruals and

other payables - 138,194 - - 138,194 138,194
EfFERERTE Amounts due o

non-controlling interests - 210 - - 210 210
st Total 320,550 372,973 320,850 1,014,373 986,321
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5. ﬁﬂl =1 (/Z/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) SMIECAFEE (c) Fair value of financial instruments
cREERERABZAFEENIZTY The fair values of financial assets and financial
ZIHET liabilities are determined as follows:
. BEAEEBRRRGMH RRERR . the fair values of financial assets and
PMBEEENETREEREZRA financial liabilities with standard terms
B AR EMEMSERR and conditions and traded in active
ERERETATER: markets are determined with reference to

quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

. METAZAFEBTARER . the fair values of derivative instruments
EoMAMSERBERS A FH are calculated using quoted prices.
AT AENTAFES 2 @A When such prices are not available,
AERETHTRRSRST M a discounted cash flow analysis is
AT AR ASMEEBER performed using the applicable yield
ETFRBEERAT & curve for the duration of the instruments

for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives;

and
. HthvemaERkemaE (a1 . the fair values of other financial assets
ExAmE) 2 AFEEIREE and financial liabilities (excluding those
BEMAEERN (ERFTRERESR described above) are determined in
DT ETE ° accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

BTRAFREIN RARESERAE © Except as detailed in the following table,
HEELRSRABRVBHREANER K the directors of the Company consider that
AEEENTEERMLS the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair values:
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5. %EQI,E{ (/lzl/g 5.

(c) SBMIAZAYEHEE) (c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

RHF—ZESZEXK
AT

Loan to a director
Promissory note

RUT—REBREZERNANENRFE

FRRE-RRFEEESL  DERE
BARERMANR -—REZ 2 EEBRLE
E o ERBREBAZB AR KRR
BARKREREUSHTAMERAEIR

TRENAERZ M TARREHARE
BRELEEFBZATEE  BAAFE

BER=ALFEEBR(ERRER
HBEREENBIBRLAFEEE) - R
FTEEFEMFEAZERR2Z HERN
FIERZBABBE L IERERERNET
EE - BRWT

. E-ERMHE ATEEERA
F-ERBABEE DRE
ERMHREERAENERTS
ZAREHBRE

. E_ERGE ATEERAS
—ERBARE (ARTESE %
MzAERRAZE) FERTE
RBETABEGASE - T
BERAANBEBES T ESTH SR
BzBARE &

. E=ERHE-AFTEELRE
ETABREAREAE -
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R=B—+F RZZ—RF
t+=HA=+—-H +=-A=+—~
AR L W ETPDE A At 31st December 2016
EREE AVEE REE NHEE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
THERT THET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
293,371 294,636 - -
173,817 184,059 - -

The fair values of loan to a director and
promissory note are classified as level 3
category in fair value hierarchy which have
been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the
return required by the holder for investing in
similar financial instrument.

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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ﬁﬂlﬂ (/,Zég FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) EMIBCAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
%4 =3 E=ZEH @zt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THT THER TR TR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R=Z—-+tE+=A=+—-H At 31st December 2017
BEEMEEZ N FERE Fair value on a recurring basis
BREBHENATEEIEY Financial assets at FVTPL
PREE
—EEB LT RAES - Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 508,237 - 3,635 511,872
-RET-EEFZ - Call option embedded in
ERAME 2 R EE loan to a director - - 213,944 213,944
508,237 - 217,579 725,816
E-FH -5 E=EH @at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEL TEL TR FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—R"F+ZA=F+—H At 31st December 2016
BAEENEEZ N IEE Fair value on a recurring basis
BBBENATFEENERZ Financial assets at FVTPL
PHRBE
—EEB LT RAES - Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 286,933 - - 286,933

REBZHRRERANEHER 2 FFK
EREHHBALRENAFEESR
R o

RZB—+F+—-—A=-++tH FTEEH
hENBERBBIERUNFEENEL
TREENEABLTRABSREREE
B MERRMERETIS MR RHER
B -AREZR2E[/ELEERNARAA
PETHHEMAEZFRES 2 QA FE
B HPQAFEENERREE TR
KRAZE  AUZFREF A FEE
ME-—SRRENMDBEF=SNMHE-

REE-_Z—+tF+_A=Z1+—HLILF
B UTERE—SHHEEE_SHMASE
TEREEE=ZL o
RBEZE=_Z—A"F+-_A=+—HLHF
B VEEE-—SHREF SR HEET
. R AREHE=SR -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date
of the events or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

On 27th November 2017, one of the Group’s equity
securities listed in Hong Kong classified as financial
assets at FVTPL was suspended trading, therefore,
no unadjusted quoted price in an active market is
available. The Group measured fair value of suspended
trading security by reference to the valuation carried
out by Graval Consulting Limited in which fair value was
measured by using significant unobservable inputs,
thus, the fair value of suspended trading security was
reclassified from level 1 to level 3 valuations.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, there were
no transfers between level 1 to level 2 and level 2 to
level 3.

During the year ended 31st December 2016, there were

no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers
into or out of level 3.
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5. €MIA(E

(c) =EMIAZAFEEE)
TRENBE-_T—tF+-A=+—H

TEERDBRE=F

SR Vallprdy ¥ Rk

WRFEEIGZEREEZE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in
financial assets at FVTPL which are classified
as level 3 category for the year ended 31st
December 2017:

FAT

HK$'000

RZE—tF—H—H At 1st January 2017 -

RET—R2ZFF2EFRFEEZ Call option arising on advance from

R loan to a director 228,092

EERE—EH Transfer from level 1 34,500
BRERNATEEIRZEREEL Loss arising on change in fair value of

N EEESELBHE financial assets at FVTPL (45,013)

R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—8H At 31st December 2017 217,579

EHEF=FSRAFEETEZEHN

Information about level 3 fair value

measurements
BETTEE BETTEE
fhERIS BARE WABBRATVEEZBRE
Significant Relation of significant
Valuation unobservable unobservable
techniques input inputs to fair value
REF—RESFZ ZIA HARe HEEERBE HREEBEARBEREL
ERAEZ EEERN NP EEFEFELEERE
R
Call option Binomial option Underlying The underlying assets value is
embedded in pricing model assets value positively correlated to the fair value

loan to a director

RIEES LTHES
Suspended trading

security listed in
Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

mi5A

Market
approach

TE AR IR

Expected
volatility

FEAR El A
£21.65%
Holding return
basis of
negative
21.65%
TREEA
51.47%
Price-to-earning

basis of 51.47%

BRI R B 84.61%

Discount rate of

negative 84.61%

measurement of the call option

TE ER % 0B B SRR B 2 N B (BRI 2 FELE
ERAR

The expected volatility is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the call option

FRCIREEREEES TTESFZATE
BEFt87FEEERE

The holding return basis is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

MRRERREREEE FHESFATEE
FTEFEEEBER

The price-to-earning basis is
positively correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

BN REUERE S T RS AT EESE
FHEEEBER

The discount rate is negatively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
suspended trading security listed in
Hong Kong
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

ERMIA(E

(c) EWMIAZAVEEMHE)
EHE=ERAFEETBZEH (F)

REFEEZAFEER  EEEBREE
CEEMARAREINEIE  WELEE
RERMEZEA ZGARE - EEER
BHREMRARRBEERE AP
DREBEEEATEENDZREA -

FRBEERHET REFCERAMEZ
REMERFEEELTESZATEE
PR A ERM KRB ABE 2 AR TR
EXXHEE -

PARBHEKN 2 AERA A REE
EBEA - R_FT—tF+-A=1—H (K
RBEAH) ZBRAZGARBNT :

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
management work closely with Graval Consulting
Limited to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors
of the Company at the end of each reporting
period to explain the cause of fluctuations in fair
value of the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of the
call option embedded in loan to a director and
the suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong are disclosed above.

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation for the call option component. The
inputs into the model at 31st December 2017,
being the subscription date are as follows:

Rt 5 N tayie-s

=Rzl +—A=+—H

At At

<Rl 31st December

2017 2016

HHEEERE(THET) Underlying assets value (HK$'000) 384,000 N/AZ3E A
TEE (FHET) Exercise price (HK$'000) 500,000 N/AZ~E A
T8 HA R 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 38.59 N/AZ~E A
& S = (P TT) Dividend yield (HK$) N/ATEA N/AZ 3 F
BARER ER () Option life (years) 4.27 N/AT i
3 B ) 2 (%) Risk free rate (%) 1.58 N/AZE A3
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ﬁlli““ﬂ
FEEEBREER  UHREEE @8
BRFELE  TEBBIERRERS
REBFNEERZTALR - NBEFE -
AREZERRBEAFE

FEEZEAFEBERERZE (AR
RITEE  ANE REBREEHREN
R AE SR RAREHEA ARG

& HBRERARREE -

AEKEYEEEETAINREMOEAREL -

BERBLF
ARBERRFEEERMELRERE - 1F
BEtREZ —#HD  ARAEFEERER
RAREEERERAB AR - NEE
BRBEARDEST I HBEZEBINR
B BITHR I KB EIRAE B0 AR ETT
FESKBEOREEEMPELRRBER
K o
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2017

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts (which includes bank borrowings,
promissory note, obligations under finance
leases and amounts due to non-controlling
interests) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any external imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of new shares or
repurchase of existing shares as well as issue of

new debts or redemption of existing debts.
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b EEBBIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Capital management (Continued)
Gearing ratio (Continued)

The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at the
end of the reporting period was as follows:

BEK (H772) Total debts (note)

A EBETARR S Less: Time deposits an
RRITH balances

ERi e Net debt

ARAEE ARGHER
of the Company

FEBEE S Net debt to equity ratio
BEBE RS Total debt to equity rati
Wit BEBBERTEE ANELRE
HEEBL (FED /”J‘Jiﬁ]fﬁ%iﬁi%%ﬁi
39 40241)
PEER 6.
AEERBANFRES (N ELEBERKE(XE

BEARED B2 REMEAEEAS o
HRMEERS EREEN AR L ARKMR

7]
e
AEBEREATHRED R BERBYREE
LR EYHBEEBRERL MERELE

X MmUETREEBREBUERSEER - %
ENHNRBEARASEREXRH2ER (BE
& RAEHIRR) 80

Equity attributable to owners

o N
2017 2016
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
844,170 804,097
d cash and bank
(424,355) (769,939)
419,815 34,158
3,281,574 3,208,362
13% 1%
0 26% 25%

Note: Total debts comprises bank borrowings,
promissory note and obligations under finance
leases as detailed in notes 39, 40 and 41 to the

financial statements respectively.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
for the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments and that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments — hotel and
gaming service operations, film related business
operations, property development operations, Nam Pei
Hong operations and gaming promotion operations. The
segmentations are based on the information about the
operations of the Group that management uses to make

decisions.
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TREHR (E)

AEBATHREDBIRETREH LT 2 K
XGBEMN - -mRBBEEHETATEREETR
R TS 1R R S - MR F BB IR -

AEERBECEEBRRORIIREEBSATR
SRR ABHENT

BESEER

BYHBEBEE — RE - 82F - BTEY

RERSEERTREE
Frar g~ AR H At
EXHERGEEZEA
EEIRT

MEREBEREEE — REKRABLUREER
SEFTE Y 2

DRIEREER

BE R IR RIS FOR P B A 58 5 12 4

EE BIERRT « B R M
BEEHRE RS
WERERBERLEE
Bz hiSHERE

BATEEEY - HEREREMREE
T REBER - 2HHE
RE@THEFIREE
72 LA B2 A B8 B R AR 75

BRI ELE 5 RERBERHERED

W ER i ) 2 AR 3 TS

INTHREDRERTBRERITEEERBZE
e ERMBHRRMEIEEFARE -
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Particulars of the Group’s reportable segments for
continuing and discontinued operations are summarised

as follows:

Continuing operations

Film related - Investment, production,
business distribution and licensing of
operations films and television drama

series and provision of other
film related services including
artist management services

Property — Investment and development

development of properties located in Hong

operations Kong and Macau

Discontinued operations

Hotel and gaming - Provision of hotel services,

service operations food and beverage operation
services, provision of right to
occupy site and marketing
services for gaming operation
in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
Nam Pei Hong — Sales of Chinese and other
operations medicines pharmaceutical
products, health products,
ginseng and dried seafood
products to wholesalers and
retailer as well as Chinese
clinical services
Gaming promotion - Investing in operations which
operations receive profit streams from the

gaming promotion business

The segment information reported below does not
include any amounts for the discontinued operations,
which are disclosed more detail in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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6. ,;Eﬁ*;} (/ )) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
%%ﬁ%é‘é’é%i% Continuing operations
ERZSREEB HBEENZMT Segment information about these operations is
presented as below:
(a) AEBEREPHES 2B REEI N (a)  An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments

AENE PERE
Segment revenue Segment results
—E-tf “E-RF —E-tf “E-RF
2017 2016 2017 2016
THAL TEL TARL TATL

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

162

EYRBEBEREH Film related business operations 9,264 266,240 3,817 (257 ,264)
NERBLEES Property development operations 8 180 3,935 (35,840)
9,272 266,420 7,152 (293,104)

”\*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁmﬁﬂw Reconciliation from segment

wfl/ (B8) 28k results to profit/(loss) before tax
9 EE&%W\ Unallocated corporate income 75,147 100,868
FRBHEALTEETE  Gain/(loss) arising on change in

LEREAEZATER fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

BYFMELL

wHl/ (BR) 210,791 (18,879)
EE-ReBrERA Share of result of a joint venture 223 (90)
AABLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (183,877) (80,723)
BiaIER/ (BR) Profit/(loss) before tax 110,036 (291,928)

EXMERZ D BREREREIMEEFLZ
Wik o MIEFREAGEDBREE -

NEEEREDBERIEEIRANED
¥R BT ZRBITHRMA  FHRE
RARBDEMEERAT  [ROEEE
BAJETEHDEMREREBKA &
BESUATFEEIEZEMEEZAF
BEEZDMEELEZEN, (BE) ARE
E—MAERERERMRRZ SR, (F
SEZER) WMDHRATELERRKE
ERFERDELFEEBFETE -

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales for both
years.

Segment results represent the profit earned/(loss
suffered) by each segment without allocation of
central administrative expenses, partial finance
costs, and partial other operating expenses
under the heading of “unallocated corporate
expenses”, partial other revenue and other
income under the heading of “unallocated
corporate income”, gain/(loss) arising on change
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL and
share of result of a joint venture. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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6.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position

BEKEER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(b) AEFERKLESEEPZHBARRSN (b)
by operating segments
BE ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets
— B RBEELKLEER - Fim related business operations
—MERBELEER — Property development operations
NEEERR Total segment assets
BEERIEREERH Assets relating to discontinued
BE operations
ROBREE Unallocated assets
=N LIABILITIES
SEEE Segment liabilities
— B HEBEEBLEEL -~ Film related business operations
—MERBELEER - Property development operations
SEAGERRE Total segment liabilities
BREERIEEEEB 2 Liabilities relating to discontinued
=R operations
AOBEBE Unallocated liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
TR FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
296,211 355,941
2,216,602 672,984
2,512,813 1,028,925
725,635 1,045,835
1,861,355 2,202,444
5,099,803 4,277,204
—E—+F ZT—RF
2017 2016
FHET FIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
76,967 74,315
528,303 3,174
605,270 77,489
820,751 103,406
392,322 888,382
1,818,343 1,069,277
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6. SXEER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BHEREER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(b) AEBRKLESFE P Z2HBEMRRD K (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position
(#) by operating segments (Continued)

HRDBEIEERD BN HERME

For the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment between segments:

164

FBBEDNETETHREDE
AL ESREE RHT—
ZEEZEF R-HeBELE
fm - MhREe ENFRERE
W KR - BRBEIADTE
BIRZERMEE BREN .
MinRE RRITES  (FRMT
BREZEBNDME BIERRHE
FHAE TSR &

FEREDNNETETHRENER
HEHORITERE ALE - HH
Blme  EFEE REMEN
FECBEEHBREBERIB D EN
TR A R SRIARR D o

all assets are allocated to reportable
segments, other than AFS financial
assets, loan to a director, interest in a
joint venture, partial deposits, prepayment
and other receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL, loan receivables, partial cash and
bank balances, partial property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land
for central administrative purposes; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments, other than partial bank
borrowings, promissory note, partial
deposits received, accruals and other
payables, deferred tax liabilities and
partial amounts due to non-controlling
interests.
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6. DEER (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEKEER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(c) Htt 2 EER (c)  Other segment information
EYRBRBEERE NERREERE i) &8
Film related Property development
business operations operations Unallocated Consolidated
ZE-tF Ml CT-tF Peblal TE-tF Pty “2-tF Pekagnd
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TR T Tn Thn Fn Thn F#n Thn
HKS$'000 QEGLEYUNMN HKS'000 [ HKS'000 S HKS'000 HK$'000
FAGEAREED Amounts included in the measure of
PBEECHE: segment results or segment assets:
EYhiERS Amortisation of film rights 8373 487578 - - - - 8373 487578
RELHERES Amortisation of interests in leasehold land - - - - 1,873 1873 1,873 1873
% KERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 146 - 112 250 2,839 2818 3,097 3,068
BERN-FaELENEL Impaiment loss recognised in respect of
ERAAEER amount due from  joint venture - - - - - 12 - 12
EBie BHHER Impairment loss recognised in respect
AhEYE ERTRESE of deposits, prepayment, and other
receivables - 3,900 - - - - - 3,900
EEEYRELCRDRESE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
film rights 1,024 4877 - - - - 1,024 4877
BERFREYCDRDAAGE  Impaiment loss recognised in respect of
films in progress - 422 - - - - - 422
BEESERENZERTAERE  Impaiment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables - 1,132 - - - - - 1132
EEESRWEN CERARAE Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
BEER respect of trade receivables
1% - - : - . 13 -
EBEHREREREUSEL Reversal of impairment loss recognised
BRIAEERER in respect of deposits paid and other
receivables 3,152 - - - - - 3,152 -
HENE BERREL (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant
(&%) /B and equipment - - - 1,794 (225) (33) (225) 1,761
REMZLTEEEY L (Gain)floss on fair value change of
(7)) /B% investment properties - - (41200 33440 - - (41200 33440
RENE KERZE Additions to property, plant and equipment 960 - 163 - 2,021 1,129 3,144 1,129
EHRITEERRERY Amounts regularly provided to the CODM
BRFATESEEE but not included in the measure of
PREECHE: segment results or segment assets:
H-BeELRER Interest in a joint venture - - - - 384 161 384 161
HERA Inferest income a 1,189 10 6 72187 98007 T4 99042
BERK Finance costs - - - - 63,896 30,220 63,896 30,220
ElE-HAERE2ER/(BB)  Share of profiti(loss) of a joint venture - - - - 23 (%0) 23 (%0)
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁ*ﬂ (/:ZE_ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BHEREER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(d) BBXEEFZEH (d)  Information about major customers
RIBEFEEMAEELHETEI0%U £ Revenue from customers of the corresponding
ZERPZWEWT years contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group is as follows:

=zt QY
2017 2016
T T
HK$°000 HK$'000

HHBERREER Film related business operations

BER(H) Customer A (note (i) N/ATE A 185,931

BB (B ai) Customer B (note (ii)) 4,446 N/AT 3

BEER (B a2(ii) Customer C (note (i) 1,664 N/ATiE

RREFE  HERE6EFEBARERK No other customers contributed 10% or more to

#@10%3 A L o the Group’s revenue for both years.

it - Notes:

(i) RERFRZUEITEEMASEEE (i) Revenue derived from Customer A did not
EZE—+F+ZA=+—HILFE contribute over 10% of revenue of the Group
ZWEH10% A £ o during the year ended 31st December 2017.

(ii) REBPLEREFPRZ W& &5 (i) Revenue derived from Customer B and
AEBBE-_Z—R"EF+=-A=+— Customer C did not contribute over 10% of
HIEFEZHEE10%8 A L o revenue of the Group during the year ended

31st December 2016.
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6. f_—,\ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ (HZE 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BEKEER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)

(e) i EE R (e) Geographical information
TRV EBBOINRE P 2 Wz R (i)FER The following table sets out information about
PEE(SRIARIN AR ZE geographical location of (i) revenue from external
B o BREFEMIR Ty ERNIE MRS L customers and (ii) non-current assets (excluded
EMZFEME - JERFBEEZEME financial instruments). The geographical location
DERNZEEEZABUE - of customers is based on the location at which

the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of non-
current assets is based on the physical location
of the assets.

RENREF Z Wz FRBEE
Non-current assets
Revenue from (excluded financial
external customers instruments)

Sl TN gl —T—<F
2017 2016 2017 2016
FET FAT FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BB Hong Kong 768 4,448 148,809 161,877
B P Macau - - 141 685,640
s The PRC 2,260 252 252 6 -
R (BESE)  Southeast Asia (including
Taiwan) 1,723 9,409 - -
Hth Others 4,521 311 - -
9,272 266,420 148,956 847,517
A2
7. W& 7. REVENUE

—E2—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FHBxT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BERSEER Continuing operations
BTBIWA Distribution fee income 6,559 264,334
BAEEREKA Artist management service income 2,392 1,906
BEREZHBA Income from investment in film 313 -
e WAL Gross rental income 8 180

9,272 266,420
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8. Eﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬁ&ﬁﬁ’,%{l 8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
—E—+tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
FBT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEQSEER Continuing operations
B8 ] AR 75 M A Consultancy service income 959 972
& B A Dividend income 1,722 1,679
HEME  #ER Gain on disposal of property,

XA 2 A plant and equipment 225 -
s — BB QR 2 & F Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,150 -
F B U A Interest income 72,244 99,242
EREPA Management fee income 340 734
P& 5 % M) )R 58 Net foreign exchange gain 16,237 -
EHEE SEBERZ Reversal of impairment loss recognised

BRREEERER in respect of trade receivables 135 -
BHEEfZe R Reversal of impairment loss recognised

H e kI8 2 in respect of deposits paid and

BRERIBEEER D other receivables 3,152 -
MW A Sundry income 221 306

96,385 102,933
9. BWEMRAL 9. FINANCE COSTS

—E—+tF —ET—RF
2017 2016
FHET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000

FREREEK Continuing operations
RITEEZFE Interests on bank borrowings 25,933 30,220
AR ZFE Interest on promissory note 37,963 -

63,896 30,220
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10. B,%ﬁﬁij}ﬁ*lj/(gﬂﬁ) 10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
BREDERN (BE)EH% (Gt A) T 3&E : Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
THER FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

BREEXY

THE i

EX MR
(FFAHERA)

B & & E A AR
—EA RS
—REARH

ME MERRBHE
EERAME X (HZ15)
FREK—HAELEFEL
ERRRERR
(FFAEMEERX)
AREE  BARERAEMD
[EWHRIE 2 B RRERR
(FFARMEERX)
AREFREZCERRE
ERGIARMBEERS)

BRRFPEY 2 EHRRE
B GIARMBEERY)

ARESRURR 2 CHARE
BRGIARBEERX)

HEME BRERREZ
CEM) /BB
ERERAMNEZEE
FFARMBEERR)
REMEANTEEZDZ
CaFl) /B8
GEAEMEERX)
BRBEEARTEEINEZ
EREECATFEERE
FREEZ C&F) /BE
EXCEF) BRFE
BRENFcR2HERS
B 7 B OB
REWEZHE WAL
B FRNREMERELZ
BEREERX
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Continuing operations

Amortisation of interests in leasehold land 1,873 1,873
Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales) 8,373 487,578
Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
- audit services 1,002 1,012
- non-audit services 1,207 557
2,209 1,569
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,097 3,068
Employee benefit expenses (note 15) 40,789 37,125

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

amount due from a joint venture

(included in other operating expenses) - 12
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

deposits, prepayment and other receivables

(included in other operating expenses) - 3,900
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

film rights (included in other

operating expenses) 1,024 4,877
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

films in progress

(include in other operating expenses) - 422
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

trade receivables (included in other

operating expenses) - 1,132
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (225) 1,761
Loss on early redemption of promissory note

(included in other operating expenses) 66,110 -

(Gain)/loss on fair value change of

investment properties (included in

other operating expenses) (4,120) 33,440
(Gain)/loss arising on change in fair value of

financial assets at FVTPL

(210,791) 18,879

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (16,237) 15,989

Operating lease rental in respect of premises 4,823 3,360

Write-down of obsolete inventories - 14

Gross rental income from investment properties (8) (180)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for

investment properties during the year 127 167

119 (13)
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BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

Fr8BiB X

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense is as follow:

S ] = ~F
2017 2016
TR T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEBimxmT

BEREXEK Continuing operations

B AR 1A - Current tax:
B E TS

EENNEGHAMBEFERGEHAERB RN
16.5%T & o R B HY B A 5 7 W 8 F 2 1225% 5
AP BEERER o RPINE A R M EFE R
B EHERBUG Fl 2 Fm BT EA2% AR A
ST o m # M B A F & £ FR200,0008K 7T £
FESR B A Z20% B 1 S = ik B IR B R
25% %t o

RN A B BLAR BB 2 BRTUEF &
SZERATGN D 2B ARG HEBE - &
W BB A FE 2 BB NGHIE LB -

MR A KB BRI R B E L ERBUER
WY BRZMEFEZRPIRNSHARREHE
EL A

HRAEERBE-_Z—RF+T_A=1+—B1It
FELERPBREL RGN - FHUt I &S
FEIDEPTISH AR

PRC Enterprise Income Tax 5 -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. The PRC
subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries are
subject to Macau Complementary Tax at the maximum
progressive rate of 12% on the estimated assessable
profit for both years. Netherland subsidiary is subject
to the corporate tax at 20% of the taxable income up
to and including EUR200,000, above which the rate is
25%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or taxable profits were wholly
absorbed by estimated tax losses brought forward.

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax and
Netherland corporate tax has been made for both years
as the Group has no assessable profit arising in Macau
and Netherland.

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has

been made for the year ended 31st December 2016 as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC.
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11. ﬁfr.?gﬁﬁﬁ 3'2 (/{éﬁ_ 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
FRATHRGAERARANBRBALES (F18) Hik The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
ZHEREASLET to the profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated

income statement as follows:

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEQSEER Continuing operations
B AEF S (F1E) Profit/(loss) before tax 110,036 (291,928)
REHEMBESH ZMIE Tax at domestic income tax rate 19,104 (47,343)
MBEE Tax effect of:
B —BAaEDEREE Share of result of a joint venture (37) 15
T PE R T A Income not taxable for tax purpose (60,846) (11,672)
OGR4 Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 29,665 18,191
AERZ G HEEE Estimated tax losses not recognised 12,161 41,362
BABTEARERMIBEEE Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (52) (5583)
FAFREHAX Income tax expense for the year (5) -
12. HQE\ 12. DIVIDEND
FRTERMASZZRMA RS RRERR No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year,
% BEENEERRNENKRE (ZE—XREF nor any dividend has been proposed by the board of
) o directors subsequent to the end of the reporting period
(2016: nil).
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13.

St 5 ¥ = Wi

BE_T—

CRIEEERK
R=B—tF=A=tNE - $ElJiﬁﬂ#

EEREULELCLEMILITEEER AR
ZW{/E A AlAce Season Holdings Lmted(TAce
Season]) R EM B R Rz 2 H R AR A KAce
Season# R 2 #HE &5 - B {E 585,000,000/
JC e ﬁ’%ﬁéitﬂ%&%%i‘*ﬁé$%$ﬁﬁé$%
EEMEBRAEE REEEEER S —t
FRA=ZTHZER  MBILTEEER TR
ERZBRIE -FIHEEERBENURBEBE
ZETEFH BN M B RERM AT

RZE—+tF+A+RH AEETIBRHGE
S B AKERELEMEAREEA
KA TF 2 EK B RARCharming Era Investment
Limited * Exceptional Gain Profits Limited }z
Most Famous Enterprises LimitedA & % & &
BExHEBELAR (MBIHESEE]) 22HKRE
REabrHECEEMERHEEER LREAR
2,000,000,0008 L (T RFERLEE S TIAH
B)((HMESHESE]) - HESEERMKE
/@E&% CIRBELEEE -WMESHEFEER
—NF-AZB%K  MBERERRBELE
A%F‘ZHW}R%%E"*EEE%%EZ‘“%%FK i
SERLCEEHABE I EARBELEEET
,ﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁﬁqﬂﬁﬁiﬁll

13.

hiEl 2 BB AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On 29th March 2017,
conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose

the Group entered into a

the entire equity interest in Ace Season Holdings
Limited (“Ace Season”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its subsidiaries which carried out the
Nam Pei Hong operations, and a sale loan due by Ace
Season at total consideration of HK$85,000,000. The
disposal of Nam Pei Hong operations was consistent
with the Group’s long-term policy to focus its activities
on the Group’s other business. The disposal was
completed on 30th June 2017, on which date the
control of Nam Pei Hong operations ceased. Details of
the assets and liabilities disposed of and the calculation
of the loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 47 to the
financial statements.

On 10th October 2017,
conditional sale and purchase agreement,

the Group entered into a
in which
the Group agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed
to buy the entire equity interest in Charming Era
Investment Limited, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
and Most Famous Enterprises Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Disposal
Group”), and sale loans due by the Disposal Group
at total consideration of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject
to adjustment of actual working capital) (the “LKF
Disposal”). The Disposal Group is engaged in hotel
and gaming service operations in Macau. The LKF
Disposal has been completed on 3rd Janaury 2018 and
the financial results for the hotel and gaming service
operations have been classified as discontinued
operation. The assets and liabilities attributable to the
Disposal Group have been classified as assets held for
sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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13. DRILBEEK (&

RZBE-RETA-ZTHA AEEFTIL—HA
RIS BHAKBERERLENDEXREEY
HEEEXBRNZEN (BIDEEM —HRESE
EEELZ04%RF B\ Z2EMN)  WWEFE
10,000,000/ 7T » R IEBHHEELEXHTAA
SEFIRAKEEMEBZRPRR - RIES
HERZZE-—RFTA=+HTK  MAEET
ZENBERERKL ABTHEELCEXRTAH
ZEVMEENRTERE -

EABARZLEREFRBBMEIRRFAL
EHBEREYREEEEBREILTREEHR
MEERLRMECHTERRIEMERZS -

AEBRECRUIEREEBZBBEITWT

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

On 25th October 2016, the Group entered into
a termination agreement pursuant to which the
Group agreed to terminate the rights in sharing of
profit streams from the gaming promotion business
represented the rights in sharing of 0.4% of rolling
turnover generated from a casino VIP room located
in Macau and received an amount of HK$10,000,000.
The termination of gaming promotion operation was
consistent with the Group’s long-term policy to focus its
activities on the Group’s other business. The termination
was completed on 30th October 2016, on which date
the rights in sharing of profit streams ceased and the
intangible assets associated with this gaming promotion
operation no longer existed.

The comparative figure for the consolidated income
statement and related notes have been re-presented as
if the operations of hotel and gaming service operations
and Nam Pei Hong operations discontinued during the
year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period.

Loss for the year from the discontinued operations are
analysed as follows:

—E2—tF —T—RF
2017 2016
FERT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERGHEE LG R Loss for the year from hotel and gaming
KEEB 2 EE service operations (36,965) (44,958)
FEREMILTEEERZ Profit/(loss) for the year from Nam Pei Hong
wm AL (ER) operations 869 (1,255)
HERILITREER 2 BB Loss on disposal of Nam Pei Hong operations (599) -
FEREBERHERLE Profit for the year from gaming promotion
EY - pl operations - 2,410
IR EBEE 2 & Gain on derecognition of intangible assets - 120
FERBERIELEER Loss for the year from discontinued
) Ei= operations (36,695) (43,683)
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13. E,"\ _|J:l£".§§ %5]’% (/“ ) 13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)
FEBRIEEEBR 2EE (Bt ABERAR) The result of the discontinued operations for the year,
(N which have been included in the consolidated income

statement, were as follows:

—E2—tF —T—RF

2017 2016

FERT FHTT

HK$’000 HK$’000

& Revenue 715,494 839,918

4 & AR Cost of sales (403,056) (498,949)

E Gross profit 312,438 340,969

HAth Yo 25 N E A A Other revenue and other income 17,393 20,796

T Administrative expenses (308,445) (319,307)

MIGHE - HERETHX Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (57,405) (85,478)

Higemx Other operating expenses - (460)

K EE Loss from operations (36,019) (43,480)

BB Bl AN Finance costs (65) (323)

R T Al S 48 Loss before tax (36,084) (43,803)

FRiS R X Income tax expense (12) -

(36,096) (43,803)

HEmMILITEEEL 2 BB Loss on disposal of Nam Pei Hong operations (599) -

BRITEREEEZ &M Gain on derecognition of intangible assets - 120
FEREERILES Loss for the year from

E ol it discontinued operations (36,695) (43,683)

UTALTEEFERABLRIE (Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued

R (BIB) S5 F operations attributable to:
KRAEHEB A Owners of the Company (36,701) (43,681)
JER R Non-controlling interests 6 2)

(36,695) (43,683)
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13. E%ﬂ:ﬁﬁf %7']'%(/ ) 13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)
REEKREBDRIMEEER 2 BRSNS,/ (5 Loss for the year from discontinued operations has
A) been arrived at after charging/(crediting):
—E—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERIEREER Discontinued operations
THE T ey Amortisation of interests in leasehold land 19,776 21,285
% BRI B & & B At AR 7 - Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
— &5 R - audit services 292 527
— FEER R - non-audit services - -
292 527
BEEFEXA (FFASEERA) Cost of inventories sold (included in
cost of sales) 65,397 106,495
M BB RRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 56,717 67,042
EERAFXZ Employee benefit expenses 140,596 149,152
FHREFEEZEERME  Impairment loss recognised in respect
EiE (GFARE M ERE) of intangible assets (included in
other operating expenses) - 449
EHEE SHEBERZ Impairment loss recognised in respect
ERAEEE of trade receivables (included in
(Gt AEMEER %) other operating expenses) - 11
HEME  WRENEEZEF  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (507) (875)
BN Cafl) BT E Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (1,132) 747
BRMFE s EEHERES Operating lease rental in respect of premises 10,191 18,302
i85 17 B OB Write-down of obsolete inventories 30 44
AEFERIEELEEB2RERENT Cash flows of the discontinued operations for the year

were as follows:

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FHExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REEBRE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
CRd) R AFEE operating activities (320,158) 151,894
REXEB RS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
WA G 88 investing activities 392,972 (4,466)
MEEBZESRLFHE Net cash outflow from financing activities (159,880) (152,327)
Be M FE Net cash outflow (87,066) (4,899)
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14. QEE*U/ (E’_J'E) 14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
REFELCERCRERSEER From continuing and discontinued operations
ARBEBEABMIFECERDRIEEEER Y The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
EREARESERT (BE) R TEETE - per share from continuing and discontinued operations

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BF, (B#E) Earnings/(loss)
ARTEERERNRES Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of
B,/ (BE) 2&8F,/ (EE) basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
(KREHEE ANEERFE per share (profit/(loss) for the year
w AL (F5E)) attributable to owners of the Company) 73,312 (335,609)
—E-RF
2016
F &
‘000
ROHE Number of shares
ARETEERERRES Weighted average number of ordinary
BF, (F518) Z ik shares for the purpose of basic and
g EimRE e diluted earnings/(loss) per share 904,764 780,910
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14. BRERN (F8B) (&

RIBAF AT AR ES 2 FERE - A AT RRE
FWMTHBAEARRRARREANE 28R K
R &R o B - 5 AT 1L 48 58 49265,0008 T (=
— 784 1 265,00078 7T) 2 8 AR AT R AL FI AT R (&
FH 1,060,317 (ZF — 734 : 1,060,317%)
FREBE0CIETZHEEBRIATAARTES
EXRAF (BB 2MEFHLBEREE -

MRARBEHAITEZBRESEREARER,/
(BR)AEAARBENE  YEMEFES
REERF, (BE) B TRRTE LLETES

REFHEASLER
ARBBEEARERBELLEEB Z2ERELRLE
SRR, (B18) DRIATHIEE

14.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)

Pursuant to the deed poll of the Bonus CBs, the
Bonus CBs conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, 1,060,317 (2016: 1,060,317)
fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each which
shall be convertible from an aggregated amount
of approximately HK$265,000 (2016: HK$265,000)
outstanding Bonus CBs are included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for calculating the
basic earnings/(loss) per share.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic
earnings/(loss) per share calculation, the exercise of
the above potential dilutive shares is not assumed in
the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for
both years.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

ZE—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FTExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BF, (B#E) Earnings/(loss)
ARTEERERNRES Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of
ar,/ (e 285,/ (EBE) basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
(RARER ANEEARFEE per share (profit/(loss) for the year
BECEER 2N (EER)) from continuing operations attributable
to owners of the Company) 110,013 (291,928)

EBE P ER AR 2 DN F 19 B AR B B B B AR At
DHRNFESBELCERCRIEREEB B8R
EAREERN /(BB MRAERR -
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The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used herein are same as those detailed above for
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from continuing and discontinued operations
respectively.
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14. gﬂﬁ%*IJ/ (Eﬂﬁ) (ﬂf/éﬁ_) 14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)
RECRIEEEER From discontinued operations
RABIEEANEEDRIEEEEBZERERK The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
EESB T EIEAE discontinued operations attributable to owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B8 Loss
RAREAEGRERNREEEE 2 Loss for the purpose of basic and
EE (A RRES AES diluted loss per share (loss for

REEDRIEEEELZEBE) the year from discontinued

operations attributable to

owners of the Company) (36,701) (43,681)
WEMEBZINETH LT BIREE 8 et The weighted average number of ordinary shares
PDRBUAEHERERD RIS 25K used herein are same as those detailed above for
EAREERF (BB FERBERR - the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

share from continuing and discontinued operations
respectively.

= oy
15. EERAIBX 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E—t& —E—XEF
2017 2016
T FiE T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
HEREXER Continuing operations
S| Directors’ remuneration
—EEWE — directors’ fee 360 360
— & R EAERL — salaries and other allowances 10,891 10,850
— RRAE F FT Bl — retirement benefits scheme contributions 36 36
11,287 11,246
o kHEMER Salaries and other allowances 28,621 25117
BRAREMEMER CREIEEEZ  Retirement benefits scheme contributions
RURAE FIET B 50 (excluding directors’ retirement benefits
scheme contributions) 735 639
EERAFXZ Staff welfare expenses 146 123
40,789 37,125
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15. EERFBEX (&

(@)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
EEWHS (a) Directors’ emoluments
ARG EEGERNHR=-R(ZT—R~F: The Company’s board of directors is currently
CR)BUEBTESR=R2(ZZE—X composed of three (2016: three) independent
Fr=ZB)PITEFRAX - non-executive directors and three (2016: three)
executive directors.
BEEEER Continuing operations
e HeREfEE BRBRHEMS ag
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
b Ed T F b -1 % IE-RE
2017 2016 2016
T T j ; ; Tt
EESf% Name of director HKS'000 EGICYONM HKS'000 WIEXOOM HKS 000 HKS’000 L6V
HTES Executive directors
mESRLE Mr. Heung Wah Keung - - 4,940 4940 - - 4,940 4,940
CUEy el T6u) Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(“Ms. Chen") - - 4,680 4,680 18 18 4,698 4698
FIERT Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 1,21 1,230 18 18 1,289 1,248
BUsunES Independent non-executive
directors
HERRE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - 120 120
feERE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - 120 120
HERLE Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Giloert 120 120 - - - - 120 120
360 360 10,891 10,850 36 36 11,287 11,246
BRIEEER Discontinued operations
e HeRHtRE RIERT LS ag
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
ZE-NF
2016 2016 2016
T TiEn AL
EEfe Name of director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
91782 Executive directors
mESLE Mr. Heung Wah Keung - - 960 960 - - 960 960
Bt Ms. Chen - - 960 960 - - 960 960
FERNL Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - - - - - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
ERZEE Mr. Hung Cho Sing - - - - - - - -
AREEE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul - - - - - - - -
BEMiL Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert - - - - - - - -
- - 1 - S180 19
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15. EERFBEX (&

180

(@)

(b)

EEMe (B
HEZZ—ttFRZT-—A~F+=ZA
=+—BLEFEAR AEERERELQF
BEEINHESEAMAREENNBERZ
HEISK KR EBAZHE R EFIREFE
VEEENEIRERECAHNS -

BB RMERZERBEALRS
FAREES  RERLFREMER - &K
RE AR BERMNE QARG EREET L
FRASREEBMESERAFRAERE
RERZHEMRZ S RHRAH -

LEREHFMAL

KEBAFERE G T N A TBEE
ME(ZE—RF WMB)EE - EfeC
£ X(a)F R A11,558,0008 T (=&
— 7N 11,558,000 L) - BIEK B H
BReXBREKBIEELEB MG - F
NERES=F(ZZE—R"F ZR)ZA
T(BRELEEB 2 EE)ZHEWT !

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31st December 2017
and 2016, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments in both years.

Except for those disclosed in material related
party transactions in note 52 to the financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company was a party and in which a director
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2016: two) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in (a) above and amounted
to HK$11,558,000 (2016: HK$11,558,000),
including those from continuing operations
and discontinued operations. The emoluments
payable to the remaining three (2016: three)
individuals during the year which are employees
of the continuing operations were as follows:

BESEER Continuing operations
—E-+t#F —E-RF
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e R EH MR Salaries and other allowances 8,344 8,190
RKTEFIET S Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 54 54
8,398 8,244
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15. EE?EE BFIJ F;'ﬁ 3'2 (/” ) 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(b) TEBREFMAL(E) (b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
ZHE(ZE—RFZR)ReFMAL The three (2016: three) individuals include one
BRE—%(ZE—XRF E)REELS (2016: none) senior management as disclosed
BEBRAERBE] —HHEBEZERNEEA in the section “Biographical Details of Directors
8 o and Senior Management”.

Ep =R (ZE—RFE =ZR)xa5FMN The aggregated emoluments of each of the
ATEBzMeBREEEN TLATHER : remaining three (2016: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:

AR
Number of individuals
—E—RF
2016
1,500,001 7Tt £2,000,000/ JT HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 7t &2,500,0005% T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
4,000,001 7T 24,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 1
3 3
16. ERIREF 2 16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

() AEBREEBIMERES BN ZHE
&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%%%%Zﬁé&iﬁ
EarrE c AEEMAEEREHESM
BRELHE - AEEDBEREETHRK
RE NEEREEGRABHMEA Z5%
- BEAKA LR BEE 230,000
mcﬁ%%@iﬁ&ﬁé%A%ﬁ%oﬁ

CEHECVEERAEB 2 EESARF
ﬁ YEH-—EBUEEESHE -

(a) The Group operates the MPF Scheme under
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in
Hong Kong. All employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme.
The Group has chosen to follow the minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ monthly relevant income but
limited to the mandatory cap of HK$30,000. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrative
fund.
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16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

16. RBRIKEFFE (&

182

(b)

AREZHMBRRAERMEAZEER
BERLEBEHKE - EEEKET
MBVEEARRYUNRERE ARERE
BRZAEELSRARK - HERNESL
BREABARAIIX -

AREZMBARRTEREFREE ST
BIIR T P& i It R B R B IR 2 R IRAE AT
ZKE - ZEMBRARAARFHRAS 2B
TEDLRERKENFEIHR - REER
FREBGER RN BMTEMAaR—§’
ETRZEFBELF K - HRTIR
EERREARARANL -

(Continued)

(b)

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.
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BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

17. ¥ R BE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HEWE B
BT R RERRB RE ok
Furniture
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
FET FEL FET FET FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Cost

RZE-"E—-A—H At 1st January 2016 306,572 315,231 339,337 15,864 977,004
RE Additions - 3,247 7,297 3,21 13,755
HE Disposals (8,702) (1,250) (12,307) (1,294) (23,553)

WZE-R"E+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2016
ER-ZZ—t5—-A—-8 and at 1st January 2017 297,870 317,228 334,327 17,781 967,206
nE Additions - 1,368 8,466 1,505 11,339
& Disposals - (56) (5,096) (2,244) (7,396)

HERBAR (H247) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 47) - (3,693) (2,486) - (6,179)

ENPEENBEABELEZ  Reclassified to assets classified
BE(Wits7) as held for sale (note 37) (285,590) (308,374) (326,357) (3,977) (924,298)
MZZ—tF+ZA=1+—H At 31st December 2017 12,280 6,473 8,854 13,065 40,672
BiirE Accumulated depreciation

RZE-7"5—-A—-8 At 1st January 2016 73,020 252,962 215,738 8,651 550,371
FRHE Charge for the year 11,608 37,602 18,004 2,806 70,110
HERHE Eliminated on disposals (522) (1,116) (12,200) (1,294) (15,132)

RZZ2—RE+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2016

ERZF—+&—f—H and at 1st January 2017 84,106 289,448 221,632 10,163 605,349
FRHE Charge for the year 5,897 27,334 23,877 2706 59,814
HEREE Eliminated on disposals - (56) (5,076) (1,907) (7,039)
HENB LGS (MiF47)  Eliminated upon disposal of

subsidiaries (note 47) - (3,090) (1,380) - (4,470)
ERPBENBEBENEY  Reclassified to assets classified
BEMW#37) as held for sale (note 37) (83,165) (308,013) (231,361) (2,633) (625,172)

WZZ2—+F+-FA=+—H At 31st December 2017

6,838 5,623 7,692 8,329 28,482
REE Carrying amounts
R-B—+t&+=-F=+—H At 31st December 2017 5,442 850 1,162 4,736 12,190
RZE-~"FE+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2016 213,764 27,780 112,695 7618 361,857
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BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

17. %% N %%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ (/Zj;f_ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
RZZE—+E+_A=+—B BEEHAEY At 31st December 2017, buildings with carrying
202,425,000/ 7T (=& — X £ : 207,896,000/% amounts of approximately HK$202,425,000 (2016:
) ZEFERBERRIEEEEBIE—RIR HK$207,896,000) have been pledged to secure general
TEEREZJER ERN-_Z—+E+=-A=1+— banking facilities granted to the discontinued operations
HEEHDHEEDEABELEZEE - which was reclassified to assets classified as held for

sale at 31st December 2017.

R-E—+tF+_A=+—H G EEX At 31st December 2017, the carrying amount of
REFETEOEREREBEANEBEZEED furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an amount
353,000/ 70 (=& — 75 F : 584,000 L) + £ of approximately HK$353,000 (2016: HK$584,000) in
—E—+tF+ A=+ HEEFBEENEA respect of assets held under finance leases which was
BELEZEE - reclassified to assets classified as held for sale at 31st

December 2017.

FXFIREFEmERRE The carrying amounts of buildings shown above
comprise:

—E—+tF —E-R
2017 2016
FTExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
UREBEBZETF Buildings located in Hong Kong:
— R AR 4V - Medium-term lease 5,442 5,868
LRI 2 BT - Buildings located in Macau:
—HHEL — Medium-term lease - 207,896

5,442 213,764
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B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

18. *ﬂgiiﬂﬂgﬁ 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
—E—tE AN
2017 2016
FExT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
22N Cost
H—H—H At 1st January 590,385 590,385
EFOoBRESBABELEZ Reclassified to assets classified as
BE (Wi#37) held for sale (note 37) (520,725) -
Rt+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 69,660 590,385
BN £ Accumulated amortisation
Hn—A—H At 1st January 195,088 171,930
NEE TR R Amortisation provided for the year 21,649 23,158
EHOBEENEAFELEZE  Reclassified to assets classified as
E (K715237) held for sale (note 37) (202,359) -
R+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 14,378 195,088
BREE Carrying amounts
®w+=—A=+—8 At 31st December 55,282 395,297

EXFRREEL R REERRE

: The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land
shown above comprise:

—E—t& AN

2017 2016
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BIEFHBAOIEE ZMLREER  Leasehold land located in Hong Kong,
HELH held on medium-term lease 55,282 57,155

REFHAALT A 2 ®RPIR  Leasehold land located in Macau,

AELTH held on medium-term lease - 338,142
55,282 395,297

RZFE-—EtFFTZA=+—-H HKHEHD
318,366,000/ 7T (= F — /X 4 : 338,142,000/
) ZRE LR R EE RIEEERBEM
B—ARITEEEIER ARZF -5+
A=+ HEEN D BEENBRFHELEZEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

At 31st December 2017, interests in leasehold land with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$318,366,000
(2016: HK$338,142,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the discontinued
operations which was reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale at 31st December 2017.
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BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

19. }ﬁﬁ%¥ 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Kn—A—H At 1st January 82,620 116,060
&S BB R | (M E47) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) (5,640) -
NFEEEEZEL 2 HF,(E18) Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair value 4,120 (33,440)
®R+=—A=+—8 At 31st December 81,100 82,620
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SFFAGEWMARZEE Unrealised gain/(loss) on fair value change
MEANFEBEESHZ of investment properties included in the
KB EF(EE) consolidated income statement
GtARMK L) (included in other operating expenses) 4,120 (33,440)
REFREKEHENSEURIES S ERNEE The Group’s properties interests held under operating
BgrzWERZHRBATEAERRME UH leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
BEARBRENE - purpose are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.
XA EME s ERERSE The carrying amounts of investment properties shown

above comprises:

—E—tE —E—RF
2017 2016
T FHBIT

HK$°000 HK$'000

BIFERBAOEEZMNESBN  Investment properties located in Hong
"EY Kong held on long-term lease 81,100 82,620
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HE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—HI-%E For the year ended 31st December 2017
20. REYES N BHEHE 20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(a) AFLBEER (a) Fair value hierarchy
T%%W$%@&§%¥%ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ
BUHEEGEVHEEA-EAEHRATEE
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring

TEGEHEVHATEE AL EESS basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
SR LM R E AR R A hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
ErAEREENEEMMETNT Measurement. The level into which a fair value

measurement is classified and determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

. F-ERMHE ATEEERA
E-ERBABEE DRE

Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted

ERMRAEAES BN ERTE quoted prices in active markets for

TR (E identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

. EoEHEE AFEEEAS Level 2 valuations: fair value measured

ERBUABE(ANAFEE -2
%&Zﬂ&ﬁ%%’i)\%ﬂ%)ﬁg&ﬂi
RBETABEGARE - T
BROAUBATIESTSH
BZRABE &

. E-EREE A FEEFTRE
+T\T iﬁl)\%ﬂfén-l-i °

using level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available; and

Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

E-ZER E_ER B=ZEH £y
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FTHERT FTHER THERT FTER
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
R-ZE—tF At 31st December 2017
+=—BA=+—H
LA E I EEZ )N F(EE  Fair value on a recurring basis
URBREZREYE Investment properties located
in Hong Kong - 81,100 - 81,100
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(a)

(b)

b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

ATEEEBER(E) (a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
EF—ER FER F=%Y Er
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THET TET TET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—RF At 31st December 2016
+=-—A=+—H
AR M EE N F(EE  Fair value on a recurring basis
URBREZLEYE Investment properties located
in Hong Kong - 82,620 - 82,620

REBZBREABRANERERE  BFx
BRESHHR s BNATEEBRABE
B-Hz—_2—+tF+-_A=Z+—ARE=
TR F+-A=Z+—BLFE VTEX
F-SHEFE-_SHMETER IBA
FEHE=FR -

AREZREMEREE ARG B LA
EBMTRIEEEMARAR(EETIA
BEENEMBEERZER  HiKkiEE
MEMEMERMBEMNABTHAERZ
BELR) ET REREHR AR F
EREEDHNATRERARAGERR
RAGEAREBEBEMEITAWR

EtMELZRFRER  DEZED IR
ERERAEAMAR -

E_ERQATEEFERRAZGERD
R AHE
REMEZNFEEDRATSLELE
E o NAARASHSEE2ETLRY
RTHEEBRS Y T RREBZEES
o

(b)

The Group’s policy is to reorganise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. During
the year ended 31st December 2017 and
31st December 2016, there were no transfers
between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or
out of level 3.

The Group’s investment properties were
revalued at the end of each reporting period
by an independent firm of surveyors, JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, who have among their
staff member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The
management of the Company have discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties are their
current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties are
determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis using market data which is publicly
available.
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HE-ZT—+F+-A=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December 2017

21, AHHESLRHEE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

—E—+tF —E-RF
2017 2016
FHET FHAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

FLETEBES Unlisted debt security
BES Club debenture 173 -
ZIELETMEBEZ VRN ERRZ KA REE The unlisted debt security measured at cost less
HE EAAAGEATEEMTHERA AR impairment at the end of reporting period because
AEERREDFEETREAEE - the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so

significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

RZZBE—t+tF+A=+—B ALQAEE5A At 31st December 2017, the directors of the Company
HEMS LA REERELRRREKANR had referenced to comparable sales evidence as
REAWE WEE-T-—EF+T-_A=T—AH1 available in the relevant market and considered that
FENBEIELRERIE - the cost of investment are still considered to be

recoverable, thus no impairment loss was made during
the year ended 31st December 2017.

22. FE 22. GOODWILL
—E—tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A Cost
Hn—H—H At 1st January 109,614 118,589
ENORESRARFIELEZ Reclassified to assets classified
BE (HiE37) as held for sale (note 37) (911) -
FRE TR Derecognised during the year - (8,975)
W+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 108,703 109,614
ZitREEE Accumulated impairment losses
w—HA—H At 1st January 109,614 118,589
ENOBEESEABIELEZ Reclassified to assets classified
EE(H1:37) as held for sale (note 37) (911) -
FRNEIEER Derecognised during the year - (8,975)
R+ZA=+—A~ At 31st December 108,703 109,614
IREE Carrying amounts
R+=—A=+—8 At 31st December - -
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22.

hEHAE2EBBIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill generated from hotel and gaming service
operations has reclassified to assets classified as held

BZBE- for sale at 31st December 2017.
ELfOBUHEREEER  AENR _E—RFE+ Goodwill generated from gaming promotion operations
A=THRESERI—HRESETEEE Y were derecognised on termination of the rights in
0.4% 25T HE T 2 EF B AR | EHERR o sharing of 0.4% of rolling turnover generated from a
casino VIP room located in Macau on 30th October
2016.
AMERER Impairment testing of goodwill
RNEZREEEN SEEReELEUEEGY Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
PEREBENT : amounts of goodwill were allocated to groups of CGUs
as follows:
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B HAERSEER Film related business operations 108,703 108,703
B JE MR RTS8 & 55 Hotel and gaming service operations - 911
108,703 109,614

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £F¥k



b EEBGR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B4 B $#t 7 M} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

23. ﬂﬂ;ﬁg 23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
A EEF
ZHER BE BROEE wat
Rights in
sharing Exclusive
of profit distribution
streams Trademark right Total
FAT FHET FAT FAEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2% Cost
R-ZZE—RF—HF—H At 1st January 2016 989,205 12,483 2,021 1,003,709
FREIEER Derecognised during the year (989,205) - - (989,205)
RZE—XRF+=A At 31st December 2016
=t+—8AxK and at 1st January 2017
W_ZE—+&%—H—H - 12,483 2,021 14,504
HEMWB ARG (Hit47) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) - (12,483) (2,021) (14,504)
AZE—+F At 31st December 2017
+=ZA=+—H - - - _
Bt EBE R REEIE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses
RZZE—RF—HF—H At 1st January 2016 978,876 4,901 2,021 985,798
FARIEER Derecognised during the year (979,325) - - (979,325)
EMR 2z REEE Impairment loss recognised 449 - - 449
RZT—RF At 31st December 2016
+—A=+—HBK and at 1st January 2017
RZZE—+tF—HA—H - 4,901 2,021 6,922
o BB A B R Eliminated upon disposal of
8 (K iF47) subsidiaries (note 47) - (4,901) (2,021) (6,922)
RZE—tF+=A At 31st December 2017
=+—H - - - -
BREE Carrying amounts
R-EBE—+t&F At 31st December 2017
+=-A=+—H - - - -
RZE—RF At 31st December 2016
+=ZA=+—8H - 7,582 - 7,582
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b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of

amortisation:

Rights in sharing of profit streams Indefinite
Trademark Indefinite
Exclusive distribution right 3.5 years

On 30th June 2017, the Group had disposed the entire
equity interest in Ace Season, which carried out the
Group’s Nam Pei Hong operations.

On 30th October 2016,
rights in sharing of profit streams which carried out the

the Group terminated the

Group’s gaming promotion operations and received
the amount of HK$10,000,000. A gain on derecognition
of intangible asset with the amount of approximately
HK$120,000 was recognised and included in loss for
the year from the discontinued operations for the year
ended 31st December 2016.

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

For the purpose of impairment testing, the trademark
and rights in sharing of profit streams are allocated
at acquisition to the CGU that are expected to benefit
from such intangible asset.

The intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are considered by the directors of the Company as
having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives will not be
amortised until its useful life are determined to be finite.
Instead they will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there are indications that they may be
impaired.
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A ﬂ:/ ﬁ E (/:'5’

TRETEAFHZELEEZRENR (F)

RZB-RET-A=1+—H ARAREZREZ
EBEUAEREXMGEMTRIBEBRRAERA
ARBRERReREFETZMHE  FEARZ
ReEABN MREE5E  YETEHEEAR

B -BETREXRG ARRSELEML ZAY
OERCRECABEFEET R EEER

Wéf@%tt&ZﬁEHHBMﬁE%i%ELEZEEu;‘ﬁ‘f
BRI AREF20% 2 HBREAE  AFNLEZ
& E 3% L & FHEHT - FZIL R ETIREM
MEXRRELN BYEBLHABEEFIRS
EEEX - FREEHNEEZZIEZERIARESRA
SRS AR REENE MR RITRE
ZEFVEREBERATRERERERTMISER T
H o

ARREZREAWE S EMKETARRNE
MeErEEs BEIe8 AR cRkEERD
AT e £ o

B E

LB E D168 M 2 BRI 15 R H 0 16 R P
—FEJZI L5 8

BRELZ204%ZFTHEHTE ZHEM -
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23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (Continued)

At 31st December 2016, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the trademark
with reference to the valuation performed by JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers, which valued the trademark by
using the discounted cash flow method and determined
that no impairment loss should be recognised against
the trademark. The recoverable amount of the CGU
of the trademark from Nam Pei Hong operations was
determined based on value in use calculation, which
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
and discount rate of 20% per annum and cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using
a 3% growth rate. This growth rate was based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and did not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included gross margin, growth and
discount rate, such estimation was based on past
experience and management's expectations for the
market development.

The directors of the Company believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount of the trademark
exceeds the recoverable amount.

The intangible assets associated with the rights in
sharing of profit streams from the gaming promotion
business represented the rights in sharing of 0.4%
of rolling turnover generated from a casino VIP room
located in Macau for an indefinite period of time.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (Continued)

The junket licences associated with the rights in sharing
of the profit streams was renewable annually by the
Macau government. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group would renew the junket
licences continuously and had the ability to do so.
Therefore, the directors of the Company considered
that the junket licences associated will the rights in
sharing of the profit streams had an indefinite useful
life because it was expected to contribute to net cash

inflow indefinitely.

At 30th June 2016,
assessed the recoverable amount of rights in sharing

the directors of the Company

of profits streams with reference to the valuation
performed by JP Assets Consultancy Limited, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers, which
valued the rights in sharing of profit streams pursuant
to the respective junket representative agreement using
the discounted cash flow method and determined that
intangible asset associated with it was impaired by
approximately HK$449,000. The recoverable amount of
the CGU of the rights in sharing of profit streams from
gaming promotion operation was determined based
on value in use calculation, which used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and discount
rate of 19% per annum and cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using a zero growth rate.
This growth rate was based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and did not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included
gross margin, growth and discount rate, such estimation
was based on past experience and management’s
expectations for the market development. Accordingly,
the intangible assets associated with rights in sharing
of profit streams was impaired by HK$449,000 during
the year ended 31st December 2016.
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24, BHHF—2EESEH 24. LOAN TO A DIRECTOR

—B—tfF —E-RF
2017 2016
FTHET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

n—HA—H At 1st January - -
MRFEREEEAR 2 B HEH Loan portion advanced at initial recognition 271,908 -

BB WA Imputed interest income 39,955 -
B U R YR B Interest received and receivables (18,492) -
W+=—A=+—H At 31st December 293,371 -

RZTE—RFE+—AZ+tNAA ARFRZ2EM
JB A FBest Combo Limited ([Best Combo] -
EAERAN) B2+ (FEREBRA) ST ERH
# ([EstaEl) - ¥t - Best Combot Al & M
PR % + % ) — 28 N & % /500,000,000 7T (18 F
ERSBELAZR) 2EMER(TER] - EX
REMESEFE  BARER ZREA 60
BAERAERE RUABRZLI2EHAZRE
BEZBES((EBELEHE]) MKz AR
Reform Base Holdings Limited ([ Reform Base])

EMEBITRAIERER -

Rzt RNiER B SR EEERCERAFBE)M
% E K - B Best Combo¥ A+ 8%
¥AMELEMBL -

BHE T +E+-A=1+-HIFEERN A&
E &5 K 3 A500,000,0005 7T °

RIBEERWSE Mz Lt2 R E M Best Combo %
HREHE ((REHE]) - /£ FFBest ComboH
EIREBRE6ME A E Rz THEHANERRL
=4 14500,000,0007% 7T (T E 5 & B IE L #H%)
5 Reform Base® % & B /TR A -

R-ZZ—+EMANE ERENR &2
BYEEGEMTBECEBRMARARENTZ
HEMSHOQAFEBE AAREEERAERY
B RREBEISD 2B R4 5271,908,000
7B 70 12228,092,000 Lo IR F—REEZE
FERERZBERFEF20.76% °
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On 29th November 2016, Best Combo Limited (“Best
Combo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a lender, and Ms. Chen, as a borrower, entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) pursuant
to which Best Combo has agreed to grant to Ms.
Chen a fixed term loan (the “Loan”) in the principal
amount of HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment). The Loan is interest bearing at 5% per
annum, repayable on the date falling 60 months from
the drawdown date of the Loan and secured by way
of a share charge over the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base Holdings Limited (“Reform Base”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") and wholly owned by Ms. Chen.

Ms. Chen may prepay the Loan (together with accrued
interest) in full after the date of drawdown without
penalty provided not less than ten business days’ prior
written notice has been given to Best Combo.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the
maximum amount outstanding to the Group is
HK$500,000,000.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Ms. Chen has
agreed to grant the call option (the “Call Option”) to
Best Combo which allows Best Combo to require Ms.
Chen to sell the entire issued share capital of Reform
Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment) during the exercise period falling on the
expiry of 60 months from the drawdown date of the
Loan.

On 6th April 2017, the drawdown date of the Loan, the
directors of the Company has recognised the amounts
of approximately HK$271,908,000 and HK$228,092,000
for the loan portion and the call option portion
respectively by reference to the fair value arrived on
the basis of valuation carried out by Graval Consulting
Limited, a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers. The effective interest rate of loan to a director
on initial recognition is 20.76%.
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=N\
25. )‘J'Q— Eﬂéﬁ JL%Z*EE 25. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—E—+tF AN
2017 2016
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—EEEREZRAEKAK Cost of investment in a joint venture,
WEE LT unlisted in Hong Kong - _
EE—HAEECERER Share of post-acquisition profit
Al K HAth 2 and other comprehensive income in a
WA - MBS joint venture, net of dividend received 384 161
384 161
REBEZEECERFE LM OEMEE  WEEE The Group’s joint venture is unlisted corporate entities
BEMES®RE - which quoted market prices are not available.
REBEGECERBSHRZFABHINDOT - Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the

reporting period are set out below:

rEEfKE
RELEER EEEY i FisRBER MEEEERREEZLE IEXK
Form of Proportion of ownership
business Place of Class of interest and voting power
Name of joint venture structure incorporation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
—B-tfE  CZE2RE
2017 2016
% %
REREERAT Rl BE Lak 50 50 REBAEERBER
Sparkle Star Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BEEHEER
Provision of artist
management
services and
production of
television drama
series
ZARECEDNRBAESEZRESHBHRERAAR - The joint venture is accounted for using the equity

method in these financial statements.
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25. )‘J'Q — & é‘ﬁﬁ%zgé (/Z/éﬁ 25. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)
BRFEAZEELEZHEEN Aggregate information of a joint venture that is not

individually material

e T -—=~F%
2017 2016
FHR FiBT

HK$°000 HK$'000

REEEGFEREEAN, () K The Group's share of profit/(loss) and
2EUWA (EE) L%E total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 223 (90)

TEER—HEELEERE Carrying amount of the Group's interest

BRHEE in a joint venture 384 161
1
26. & 26. INVENTORIES
—E—tF ZERF
2017 2016
TR FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BN KT E Food materials and supplies - 7,002
2UpK mh Finished goods - 59,004
- 66,006
BEHEFEER —FRAYE o Inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year.
BE-Z—AE+-A=+—HLFER HF During the year ended 31st December 2016, certain
FEBBRETHELERRZENZ  WRRA inventories were obsolete that could not generate
YT\ 3k B 2R 38 B 17 5 R £58,00078 7T © future economic benefits and a write-down of obsolete

inventories of approximately HK$58,000 was recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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NEEFE

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

—E—ifF A
2017 2016
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIEEEZE#RTYE Properties under development
held for sales
mn—HA—H At 1st January 583,240 567,973
NE Additions 136,051 15,267
FEBUHENE QT Acquisition of assets through
BEEE(WiH46) acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46) 1,388,085 -
R+ZA=+—8H At 31st December 2,107,376 583,240

MEFEMUNRFILREDBEORKE -

RELEZERTOERINEBR —FRED -

RZZB—=F1A BRFIFHTTHRERBA (NHRF]
B B L (xR =-F
—ME=ZRER - LHERTE  RPIBFA R
BEERREINSMEMEMRTERZDEER R
/R B B N R P I R 8 3 T SR A
R FRER AEEARE - B RFIBF TR T
AR SNE G m6H B 6B B ([556Bi R )
ZMENBRAFBUIRA  BHFEBHET
BEMMERMAMBFEMBRE L2 THT
fF - 6B A — AR (ERRIAR DM A
Z— UTHRERA—EARBLER AKEER
E-RE+ZA=TRRAEMFFERK KRG
L& ERRERES HARBR U EELEE ©

The stock of properties is located in Macau and held
under medium-term leases.

Properties under development held for sales are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

In September 2013, the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
promulgated the Macau New Land Law (the “MNLL")
which came into effect in March 2014. The MNLL
provides that the Macau Government will have the right
to resume the land of any property development that is
not completed and/or where the conditions as stated in
the land concession for which have not been fulfilled by
the stipulated expiry date without any compensation to
the property owner. Owing to the delays caused by the
Macau Government in granting the requisite approvals
and permits for the development of the property located
in Lot B in Quarteirdo 6 at Zona de Aterros do Porto
Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot 6B”) , Lot 6B could not commence
development and the Macau Government has started
the administrative work to reclaim it. Lot 6B is one of the
four lots of land in a project held under development
and is intended to be developed as recreational area.
The Group has filed an appeal to the president of the
Macau Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016
and the Second Instance Court has not ruled on this
matter yet.
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27 %%ﬁ‘ﬁ /IZE_ 27. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (Continued)
ERAKEMBELZEER AKEEETEAR Based on a legal opinion obtained by the Group, the
WEBERRIVERBFRE AKBEERRE Group has sufficient grounds to apply to the courts
FRE T EAERTHWIESA®#T - BIBEEER of the Macau for remedies in all aspects. A few legal
MER  ZREBZEMBMABFERLTERNE actions have been initiated by the legal representatives
B T 7R 5 B R R AR (B A RE R VR AU - of the Group and are now in progress. Based on the

opinion of the legal expert, the court will consider and
judge on the essential points regarding the delays
caused by the Macau Government and the right of the
Group to claim for compensation of loss.
ERNFRERAT AR EECZEMANE As the outcome of the appeal is still uncertain, the
BHEE BEIEEZRERAREEAEEBAS directors of the Company have taken into account
IEEBERESEFHARSICEREE - At all available evidence, including the opinion of legal
BERAR_E—+F+_A=+—HERZ=ZE experts and believe that the Group has strong legal
—RNFT A=+ HBEFTHUETEERRE grounds to obtain a favourable judgement and seek
18 - for legal compensation. No impairment loss should
be recognised in respect of stock of properties was
considered necessary at 31st December 2017 and at
31st December 2016.
28. %%ﬁﬁ*& 28. FILM RIGHTS
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A Cost
mn—H—H At 1st January 758,178 266,383
EERIEPER Transfer from films in progress - 501,356
T 83 Expired - (9,561)
Rt+-—A=+—H At 31st December 758,178 758,178
Rt B R RESE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
n—A—H At 1st January 736,732 253,838
REEPTE IR B 8 Amortisation provided for the year 8,373 487,578
B 3 Expired - (9,561)
ERRZBIEERE Impairment loss recognised 1,024 4,877
R+=A=1t—H At 31st December 746,129 736,732
REE Carrying amount
R+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 12,049 21,446
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St 5 ¥ = Wi

BE_T—

EXME(E

BEXREZRENR
RENANE  EXMECS IR
BEBIZREELBM -

EYHBE

RZE—+F+-_A=+—HB EFECLEBL
AERBEMEMTETEEBRMERA RS
A ThREREsCReEESEL 2z D
©F - WETE E &R RE41,024,0008 7T (=
T — X4 ¢ 4,877,000 T) °

EYMEcReELBU 2 RESEDREE
REEAEZERE ZFELZERLEREEIE
CEFHYMBREERERZRERTN  UEE
F17% (ZF—RF : BF18% ) 2MAEFE
hENEZRERPMEFENERTEREHE

cRERXVEBLABEXRFHRMERE -
EREEFEEZIERRERSRA/ REMA
AR BRESHEBEREMNET - BERERF
RE ZAFA/KBEEEIEREREEENTHH
R2IEH -

FABRZREBEEEAEE EFHBE
BREEBER BRZRSELBNBHIRE
H Al Yy B & 58 4912,049,0008 7L (Z T — X & ¢
21,446,000/ 7T) - M E AR B 2 BB Z
B2 EATFE 5| B — P REBIE -

28.

hiEl 2 BB AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

Impairment testing of film rights

For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
been allocated to the CGU of film related business
operations.

At 31st December 2017, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of film
rights with reference to the valuation performed by
JP Assets Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers, and determined that film
rights was impaired by approximately HK$1,024,000
(2016: HK$4,877,000).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights has
been determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and discount rate of 17% per annum (2016: 18%
per annum) and cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using zero growth rate for both years.
This growth rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin, growth rate and discount rate,
such estimation is based on past experience and
management’s expectations of the market development.

The impairment loss recognised during the year
solely relates to the Group’s film related business
operations. As the CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of approximately HK$12,049,000
(2016: HK$21,446,000),
assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable

any adverse change in the

amount would result in further impairment losses.
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29. ;ﬁiz'ﬂz |:|:| =5 E’ 29. FILMS IN PROGRESS
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hn—A—H At 1st January 81,461 380,606
NE Additions 87,531 202,633
HREEZIRE Transfer to film rights - (501,356)
BRRZBERIE Impairment loss recognised - (422)
R+=—A=+—AH At 31st December 168,992 81,461
SUERBZ R AR E:REEE (B2 - The films in progress were measured at cost less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

REBNRSHREHREBLREMVEREZ ZEL The Group performed impairment tests at the end of
BEEEHTKESEmMETRERS - each reporting period by comparing the attributable

carrying amounts of the films in progress with the
recoverable amounts.

ENEEEZEEREYE  NEBTHRITSEN In light of the stage of film production, the Group
HEZEE BHEZT-—RFT-A=+—AL regularly reviewed the progress of film production of
EERN ZERERMN ARATESAFTEES each film. During the year ended 31st December 2016,
TEATEERER EZNEE WEFTERD the directors of the Company decided to suspense
FE U AR A HEZRE #422,00078 7T © the production of certain films in different stage of

production due to the prevail market circumstances,
and determined that amount of approximately
HK$422,000 was impaired and recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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INVESTMENT IN FILM

HBERATEZ B RIERE

Investment in production of film

—=-—+7 IR
2017 2016

FERT FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

measured at amortised cost - 11,325

PREBREREFEEZRE  DEAEMRIE
NAEIHERE -

REZAEERRERRCOHEBBERE -
BUHASBESZHBEEYRERITHEMNE -

HE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—BILEER K&
B U B 4 %8 4911,325,0008 0 2 B A N & 58
#49313,0008 L 2 I E WA ©

AR R EBRRAIR —FAKE  HERHE
BARBEE -

B Z BWRA

31.

The amount represents investment in production of film
which is co-financing with other production companies.

The investment is governed by the relevant agreement
entered into between the Group and the production
company whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of the related film
production.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, an
investment cost with the amount of approximately
HK$11,325,000 and an investment income with the
amount of approximately HK$313,000 was received by
the Group.

Since the initial investment is expected to be recovered

within one year the amount is classified as current

assets.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

B S5 EWRER Trade receivables 4,435 233,214
o RERE A Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,336) (1,437)
3,099 231,777
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31. S5 EWEZ (& 31. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
UTAEEEXZAH (B WEzERAEBRESE) The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
2B SEURRIFRRERE ZRR DO presented based on the invoice dates, which

approximates the respective revenue recognition dates
and net of allowance for doubtful debts:

—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016

FExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0230H 0 to 30 days 2,758 181,366
31£260H 31 to 60 days - 3,978
61290H 61 to 90 days - 538
B0 H Over 90 days 341 45,895
3,099 231,777

BTYEP 2R A30E90B 15 o The average credit period granted to customers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.

RZZT—tF+A=+—H BHRKEZRS At 31st December 2017, trade receivables with the
8 493,068,000 7T (= F — 734 : 224,903,000/ amounts of approximately HK$3,068,000 (2016:
) ITHAAEBZRE (ZE—ARF: =) &K HK$224,903,000) is due from the Group’s top two
REER - (2016: three) customers.

FRAREBEZZHNOT - The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

during the year is as follows:

—Z—-+tfF T —RF

2017 2016

FTExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

mn—HA—H At 1st January 1,437 305
BRERZBAEEE Impairment loss recognised - 1,143
BB 7 [ Reversal of impairment (135) -
HEMB AR (FiE47) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) (11) -
SNISTE 518 Cs 7)) Foreign exchange translation loss/(gain) 45 (11)
W+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 1,336 1,437
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BEZRWERR (&

RZZE—AF+-_A=+—8 REEERTA
ERIRE 2 B 5 MU AR KA #2491,143,000%8 7T -
HRBERREBBERNM - HRREREDAE
EEXEEAEDEABSERRATIRE -

EXFRBEBEZEIREEREENRENRE B
PreB(ATXREAN)  HEAREELER
HAREEE  DARECRERYEREAEDY -
MzESRDEELSTERE - AEELERZSE
EHBATAERS -

MTREBHERREZESEBER KRS
#r

31.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31st December 2016, included in the allowance
for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with a balance of approximately
HK$1,143,000 which are past due at the end of the
reporting period. The allowance for doubtful debts
recognised because there has been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are
considered irrecoverable.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts
(see below for aging analysis) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired:

—E—+tF “E-RF
2017 2016
TER FER

HK$’000 HK$'000

B3890 H Over 90 days

KEEEZRUER 2 TREEE  AARES
EZEESRUERZEEREANSELAME

341 45,895

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable,
the directors of the Company consider any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period.
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32. 4 FANSEREMPEWSIE 32. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEREi7A Deposits paid 6,183 11,867
MEECNZES Deposit paid for investment - 400,000
SEEN ] Prepayment 4,532 22822
H A & Y R IE Other receivables 279,266 117,871
289,981 552,560
B BRI RS Less: Deposits, prepayment and
T8 A FRIE f2 H A E Y kI8 other receivables classified
as current portion (289,981) (152,560)
DA NI S 2B MRS Deposit paid classified as non-current
portion - 400,000

BE_Z-REFT-A=+—HIEEEAR ARV
EEEZEHEARAEEAR/TAINE - A
SEZEE  ANFBEREGCEREFEERELD
3,900,000/ 7T ©

RZE—A"FTZA=+—RH pEREEFZ
¥ £400,000,0008 THEA S ERIFE A A -
T-RET-—AZtTNAZERHEEE H#A
I #Modern Vision (Asia) Limited ([ Modern
Vision]) + REKIE A7 ([Modern Vision&E |)
EHREMRNzReRke WEFHEER_-Z
—tFMARATEK
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During the year ended 31st December 2016, the
Group’s deposits, prepayment and other receivables
are impaired with amounts of approximately
HK$3,900,000 due to change in credit quality and the
directors of the Company considered irrecoverable.

At 31st December 2016, deposit paid for investment
with amount of HK$400,000,000 represented cash
deposit paid by the Group in respect of acquisition of
the entire equity interest of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited
(“Modern Vision”) and its subsidiaries (“Modern Vision
Group”) pursuant to a conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 29th November 2016. The acquisition
was completed on 6th April 2017.
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BRUATEENES 33

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—E—+tF —E-R
2017 2016
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
DIEARBIEEEREZ Listed securities classified as held for trading
EmESH investments:
—REB LT ZRAFES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 511,872 286,933
PTESRBIA Derivative financial instruments:
—REF—HBEEZEFRA - Call Option embedded in loan to
A& 2 BB B2 a director 213,944 -
725,816 286,933

RBEMR MEEBBRENAFEENEZE
BMEEHUARTEEIER - DEAKEEERE
ZEmER(FREELTESZRIN 2R FEE
N2ERBLTHRTEMETE -

RZTE—+tHF+-_A=Z+—0 FBREELTE
%2 N FBEEH3,6350008THELEBLA
EREEGEMTELACEBRARARETZ
HEMSL - ZEEEELTHEFZAFEAED
FRATSEAER _E—+tF+_A=+—H2ZE8
BEE8461%ETTHE - FAZUREEERB
FENEEEEMEBBS Y ENRH Z2TEE
HEMBBEUCEE R BROTRBUERTK
B HERBAEE -

NZT—tFE+-_A=Z+—8 REPEZIATF
BE#213,944,0008 T KL EB U AEKRE
EEEMTIEECEEBBRARETZEEM
B -REHREZAFEENRA-BASET
BEANZZE—+F+_A=+—HZHEX
21.26%#ETHE - BIIR K BRI EERENEIZKR
B mMAREREREEMRERSEE 25
BEFENZE 2 BHERE (k) o

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Fair values of listed
securities classified as held for trading investments
(other than suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong) are determined with reference to quoted market
closing price.

At 31st December 2017, the fair value of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong with the amount
of approximately HK$3,635,000 was reference to the
valuation carried out by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers. The
fair value of suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong was valued by using the market approach with
a discount rate of negative 84.61% at 31st December
2017. The discount rate is used to reflect the risk of
exposure to corporate governance, illiquidity and
financial distress etc perceived by market participants
who hold the suspended shares with remote likelihood
of trade resumption.

At 31st December 2017, the fair value of the Call Option
with the amount of approximately HK$213,944,000 was
arrived by reference to valuation carried out by Graval
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. The fair value of the Call Option
was valued by using the binomial option pricing model
with discount rate of 21.26% at 31st December 2017.
A discount rate is the expected rate of return (or yield)
that an investor would have to give up by investing
in the subject investment instead of other available
alternative investments that are comparable in terms of
risk and other investment characteristics.
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33.

34.

35.

BREBZUATEEIEZ
TREE (&

PHEZEWBHREAE  AEBFE LR
AELE(THAR-_E—LF+-_A=+—H2EF
[RESH) 2 A F(EEH H257,938,0008 T (=
— 754 £ 236,094,000/ 7T) °

W&

33.

34.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed
in Hong Kong (excluding suspended trading security
at 31st December 2017) at the date of approval
of these financial statements were approximately
HK$257,938,000 (2016: HK$236,094,000).

LOAN RECEIVABLES

& E BB R

JEW E R Ty IREFEIE (ZF —RF - FHE3
EZE128) 55 LAR B RERA R W24
AEREE BRUERBEAANERREEZ
GR B BARDEE -

R-E—RET-_A=+—0 EUWERsHE
150,000,000/ L) WA S BEBERAZE—BFxR
BEAREEZHAERERA -

Fixed-rate loan receivables

S Ll = ~F
2017 2016
TR T
HK$’000 HK$'000
200,000 825,000

Loan receivables are interest bearing of 3% per annum
(2016: 3% to 12% per annum) and repayable on the
date falling 24 months from the first drawdown date.
Loan receivables contain a clause of repayable on
demand and thus classified as current assets.

At 31st December 2016, loan receivables with
amounts HK$150,000,000 are secured by the personal
guarantees of the sole beneficial owner and the director
of respective borrowers.

E/H\Hﬁ%k 35. TIME DEPOSITS
e ] -==
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RIRTT 2 TE BFE Time deposits held at bank 155 -

FHFERUFERN R0 225E 8 WH92H WA
g,q o

T HTF A 4136,0008 L T E M AE R B R A
RRFNMEFRSG TRFBGZER -

RER1T 2 E F T ARPITTSIE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

The time deposits are interest bearing at 0.225% per
annum and mature within 92 days.

Time deposits with amount of approximately
HK$136,000 are pledged for guaranteed to Macau
Government for development of stock of properties

located in Macau.

Time deposits held at bank is denominated in MOP.

207



36.

208

(172 T H

BE_T—

iﬁ:%&ﬁafj—nﬂ%

RITERIRFRF LTS WHERRAHRETR
R BEREERT RUTHERAZEER 2
HE=Z([EATE SEFASEISREFE2ME -
TEREEZEMERFRNFFEFNER0IBER
1.3 (ZZ—7R%F : F£F/%0.06E £2.80/F) HM
B o

BEmEeReRERAME We KBIT4HE ﬁ%
BRe RORSREHTHER -
¢+_ﬂ:+—5&13—ﬁ¢+: =
EGaReREXR IR ZRE RIRITH
HEEBEERNT

36.

b EEBBIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

it Notes to the Financial Statements
+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one week to three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates ranged from 0.13% to 1.3% per

annum (2016: 0.06% to 2.80% per annum).

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
and bank balances at 31st December 2017 and 31st
December 2016 as shown in the consolidated statement
of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items as
follows:

—E—t#F —E—RF

2017 2016

FERT FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEREEMRITRS Cash on hand and cash at banks 43,755 426,509
MHITE BRER Short-term time deposits 380,445 343,430
424,200 769,939

R=F—CFF=AS+-8 FRMIAGR

BITH B  EL BRI BT RARE SR
5T B #) /574,000 7T (ZZ — 754 : 1,860,000
7 7T) ~ 825,000/ 7T (= Z — 7N 4F : 24,905,000

PEIT) ~ 752,000/ 7T (ZF — /<4 1 374,000/ 7T)
%34,218,000/ Jt (=T — 75 4F : 15,128,000/
JT) °

ARBEFTEYFTEARLBRZER  AELS
BZESXPEBNETHINEEHIRE - KK
BEUARBIEZRE RBRTERUREE LR
Fl> EASZIMNEEH] -

At 31st December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in US$, MOP, EUR and RMB
are approximately HK$574,000 (2016: HK$1,860,000),
HK$825,000 (2016: HK$24,905,000), HK$752,000
(2016: HK$374,000) and HK$34,218,000 (2016:
HK$15,128,000) respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the government of the PRC. The Group’s cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB which located in
Hong Kong and Macau are not subject to the foreign
exchange control.
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37. " EAEAEEBIELHEZEE 37. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE
BEGHEEET e R BRI EERE R n e W Disposal. fhe Blsposal Group are engaged
WY RHEE LY —F— \F—AZARARY

in hotel and gaming service operations in Macau. The
EHEEFL HECEEELSERBBONE assets and liabilities attributable to the Disposal Group,

ARELHEIRGAMBRAKRTERZZT -

HEEE AERARAS AR FHENEER

AT

which the disposal of the Disposal Group has been
completed on 3rd January 2018, have been classified
as held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Disposal Group classified as
follows:

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the

held for sale are as

—E—tF
2017

TERT
HK$’000

HEKBCEER-T—tHF
TZRA=T B2 ERFEHE

Assets of the Disposal Group classified as
held for sale at 31st December 2017

I - MBS ERE (MAT17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 299,126
HE ke (Ma18) Interests in leasehold land (note 18) 318,366
FE Inventories 3,616
B 5 REWARK Trade receivables 49,487
&~ TERFRIE K E M B WK IE Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 13,690
R e MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 41,350
725,635
HELEBZEBR-Z—+t& Liabilities of the Disposal Group classified as
+TZA=t+-HBoEARELHE held for sale at 31st December 2017
Z 5 IR Trade payables 34,233
BUEIES - B EE REMERFIE  Deposits received, accruals and other payables 35,277
RITEE (HFE39) Bank borrowings (note 39) 670,000
BEHEBL (Hit41) Obligations under finance leases (note 41) 353
IRIETRIE B & (1 it42) Deferred tax liabilities (note 42) 80,888
820,751
R-ZZE—tHE+=ZA=+—H Net liabilities of the Disposal Group
HESEE-EEEH at 31st December 2017 (95,116)
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38. SHARE CAPITAL
%12 8 B =8

Number of shares Amount
S EEA —= ~F
2017 2016
FTET AT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BREE.0IB T Ordinary shares of
TER HK$0.01 each
EERA Authorised:
R—A—BRK At 1st January and
+=ZA=+—H 31st December 50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
BETREBRZKRAE : Issued and fully paid:
wn—A—H At 1st January 903,704 753,104 9,037 7,531
il & F A (H77E) Placement of new shares
(note) - 150,600 - 1,506
R+-_A=+—H At 31st December 903,704 903,704 9,037 9,037
Wit RZZ—R"E+A=Z+N\B  KRAAHEEGRRK Note: On 28th October 2016, the Company allotted and
190.537 7T 2 BAR BL % & 3174 #£150,600,000 issued an aggregate 150,600,000 new shares of
BB EECOTE T Z MMM - 5 NEFHE HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.53 per share. The
#)77,767,000%8 T AR B RUE © net proceeds of approximately HK$77,767,000 were

intended to be used for film production.
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BE-ZE—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017
39. BIFHEE 39. BANK BORROWINGS

e A - ~F
2017 2016
Tl FiHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

RITIEE - Bank borrowings:

—FHEM - Secured - 790,000

— R — Unsecured - 13,513
- 803,513

JEEBRTEE : Carrying amounts repayable:

—F R Within one year - 133,513
BiE—F BETHBBERF

More than one year, but not

exceeding two years - 120,000

HEME BENEBRF More than two years, but not
more than five years - 360,000
HidAF Over five years - 190,000
- 803,513

R BBEE TR ZRE Less: Amounts shown under current

liabilities - (133,513)

FEMBAMEE TR ZHE

Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 670,000
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b EEBGERAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

WITEE (&

R-Z—+tF+-A=+—0B AEEzHHK
R 17 15 B # %8 £670,000,000/ 7T (=T — X
£ : 790,000,000/ 7T) * IARKEREES A
#7202,425,000/ 7t (= Z — /X F : 207,896,000
L) }318,366,0008 T (= T — X F -
338,142,000/ 70) 2 EF R E Liifga - UK
BEESDBEERAAMCHETEREERA
AI(MERER]) 2 EREEARERM - Z A TR
TEEMERA ARG RERRMIER - HEF
RITBERFNEISE (BEBRERNE525E
B E1TEE) TR WEARB T EENEEE
1Z 5 #30,000,0008 T A BEE R B&E —BHRE
HA T E 3 5 B 88 #4%870,000,000/ 7T
%6 I 4R 178 §670,000,0008 TR =ZZE — &
F+-_RA=+-—BEEFHEELEABEHE
ZEENHEBEEE -

RZZE—AF+-_A=Z+—HB AEEHFEKHE
#OE 5 EHH13,513,0008 T - EEIFHE O Z
S5 EFHANPH Holdings Limited— % Al B B A A
ER R—EABBHRITEERBNEF E2E
AFEBEREREE - EOZEZEREREZZ
T—+tF+A=+—BLEFEREE-

B 5 BR1T IS B A T ME -

39.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31st December 2017, the Group had secured bank
borrowing with remaining balance of HK$670,000,000
(2016: HK$790,000,000) which is secured by the
Group’s buildings and interests in leasehold land with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$202,425,000
(2016: HK$207,896,000) and HK$318,366,000 (2016:
HK$338,142,000) respectively, quota capital of
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited and Classic
Management & Services Company Limited (“Classic
Management”). The secured bank borrowing is also
guaranteed by the Company and Classic Management.
The secured bank borrowing is interest bearing at
3.5% per annum (Hong Kong Prime Rate 5.25% less
margin 1.75%) and repayable by remaining of 20 equal
consecutive quarterly instalments of HK$30,000,000
per quarter and a final repayment of HK$70,000,000
at the maturity date of the secured bank borrowing.
The secured bank borrowing of HK$670,000,000
was reclassified to liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale at 31st December 2017.

At 31st December 2016, the Group had unsecured
import trade loans of approximately HK$13,513,000.
The unsecured import trade loans are personally
guaranteed by an ex-shareholder of NPH Holdings
Limited, interest bearing at 2% per annum over one
month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate and repayable
on demand. The import trade loans had been fully
repaid during the year ended 31st December 2017.

All interest-bearing bank borrowings are denominated
in HK$.
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40. FATE 40. PROMISSORY NOTE

—E—+tfF ZZT—X
2017 2016
FExT T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—H—H At 1st January - -
BATHENE (M5E()) Issue of promissory note (note (i) 483,913 -
AR ZHEEFRE Imputed interest on promissory note 37,963 -
BAS M A RS Interest paid and payable (14,169) -
BRI (B3 (i) Repayment of promissory note
(note (ii)) (400,000) _
IRBEEANZE 2518 (A722(3ii)) Loss on early redemption on promissory
note (note (ii)) 66,110 -
R+=A=+—H At 31st December 173,817 -
Hiat - Notes:

(i)

(i)

RZZ—tFMANA K2R WKEModern
VisionZ & i 2 4 25 Modern Vision%t R 2 $5
EE R AR EA1,000,000,000% 5T Hf
600,000,000/ 7T B 4% 22 &) LA ) B 22 + B 17 %
RHEFRGEE ANZERBEEFRIZFFEE
sHE WA —F A365H At BEB L EEF
MFE—K WEANEETHHBRI24EA
HE o ARFAMBRZTE#ETLRTEEE
BrELEDAN RTHEZREERNER
ERASBEzAMNBS REEERFENA
EYBEE - ANERBETAHZAFEED
483,913,000 L N2 EB U E X B ERMITE
R EBRERARETZEETS L o &M
ERBETHBRZEBRFER17.49% °

BE-_Z—tH¥+-_A=+t—-HLEERN:
ARBEMRZLTHDEEANERE B
400,000,000/ 7T - REERANRE 2 EELTE
#166,110,0008 TE R AR AR & WA RER °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#k

(if)

On 6th April 2017, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest in Modern Vision and the sale loan
due by Modern Vision with total consideration of
HK$1,000,000,000, in which HK$600,000,000 was
settled by issue of promissory note to Ms. Chen by the
Company. The promissory note was unsecured, interest
bearing at 5% per annum calculated on the basis of
365-day year and payable semi-annually in arrears
and mature 24 months from the date of issuance of
the promissory note. The Company can give a notice
to Ms. Chen not less than ten business days’ prior
notice in writing of its intention to repay any part of
the outstanding principal amount of the promissory
note. The early repayment option is closely related to
the host contract. The fair value of promissory note
with the amount of approximately HK$483,913,000 at
the issue date have been arrived by reference to the
valuation carried out by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers. The
effective interest rate of the promissory note at the
issue date is 17.49%.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the
Company has partially redeemed promissory note
with principal amount of HK$400,000,000 to Ms.
Chen. Loss on early redemption on promissory note
with the amount of approximately HK$66,110,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement by
the Company.
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Eﬂﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁﬁ% 41. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
AEEREREVEEAEETRE RAMEF The Group leased certain of its equipment under
B rHHEBRYARE - FMERMEMEBEH ZMH finance leases. The average lease term is 5 years for
BRNEREAZEHNBHETE N FEHE5.00 both years. Interest rates underlying all obligations
BZE752B 2 (ZZF—"F 5.00EE7.52E) ° under finance leases are fixed at respective contract
FEREYATHESE mTEIVIRBEM dates ranging from 5.00% to 7.52% (2016: 5.00% to

Rz zHE -

7.52%) per annum. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

RiEEE BEASZRE
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments

= —TRF B Al —TRF
2017 2016 2017 2016
TR TET TR TET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

LREHEREMN 2 HE
—ER
F_EERER

W R B ER
HEGEBHE

W RR2EANEEZ R

Amounts payable under
finance leases:

Within one year - 266 - 231

In the second to fifth year - 407 - 353

- 673 - 584

Less: Future finance charges - (89) - -
Present value of lease obligations - 584 - 584

Less: Amounts due for settlement

(RBEEBTHAR) within 12 months (show
under current liabilities) - (231)

R12(E A& EE 2508 Amounts due for settlement after

(ERBEBEETHMR) 12 months (show under non-

current liabilities) - 353
R-E—+tF+-_A=Z+—HB AEEZHER At 31st December 2017, the Group’s obligations under
EEBAHHEAREELN353,0008T (ZF—R finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge
F :584,00087C) 2 EBEMTIEEIR o over the leased assets with the carrying amounts of

approximately HK$353,000 (2016: HK$584,000).
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. MEHEE® (& 41.

A& E & 353,000 0 (2T — N
5840008 R—E—+E+—-HA=+—HES
HOBEDEARBEHEZAENHEBER -

FrERERERBIAETIINE

42, EEFHIEERE 42.

NTAREERABZ IR ERBBEHIEES

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(Continued)

Obligations under finance leases of HK$353,000 (2016:
HK$584,000) was reclassified to liabilities associated
with assets classified as held for sale at 31st December
2017.

All obligations under finance leases are denominated in
HKS.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax balances
recognised by the Group and movements thereon:

WIEHME AR 2
AFEERE
Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries

FHET
HK$'000
RZE—RF—H—H At 1st January 2016, at 31st December 2016
RZZE—AR"F+ZA=+—HBXK andat 1st January 2017
RZZE—+tF—HF—H 82,948
HEMWB AR (Kit47) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) (2,060)
EMOBESHEARBELEZ Reclassified to liabilities associated with
ﬁEE’WH WaEHiF37) assets classified as held for sale (note 37) (80,888)

R-B-—+tH+=ZRA=+—H

ERAEBEZEEME BRTEREMEDR

EBKERASEMERNRESEERREDMER

BEMBRBHLCER S (MITFEBEBHE) &

SETARREMERTFEELZDRREMEL

%RIE RAAEEEEGRHELREMERMTM
TIH o

RE|EER - AEEF 4555,719,0008 7T (ZF
— 734 814,421,000 7T) AT SE B 18 5 F) 2
REAMETRISEE - BN RETET BEZEF
A T ERRECEHEEE  MABRZH
BEE B ER AR -
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At 31st December 2017 -

With regard to the Group’s investment properties,
as none of the investment property is held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
change in fair value of the investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income tax on disposal of
its investment properties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$555,719,000 (2016: HK$814,421,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward
indefinitely.
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43. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,

EZENRR

UNTREZENEFIZEZ A ZREDIT

based on the invoice dates:

0£30H 0 to 30 days

31£60H 31 to 60 days
61290H 61 to 90 days
HBiE0H Over 90 days

HEEGE T 2 FHRKRMA0ENRATE -

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
23,328 19,659

211 6,611

- 92

3,050 17,458
26,589 43,820

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.
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44. CWEES - EStIEE R H4it 44. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND

@ﬁl’ ;—-ii IE OTHER PAYABLES
—E—tE —E—RF
2017 2016
FERT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BUEE (KaEi) Deposits received (note i) 82,693 81,187
HERIEKEEFREBR Deposits received associated with
B EIE © (4 #ti) the discontinued operation (note ii) 200,000 -
fEETIEE Accruals 9,344 51,039
TEU IR Receipt in advance - 8
H &~ 5108 Other payables 2,033 5,968
294,070 138,202
Hat - Notes:
(i) BUEEEEEREY LERIMNIENKE (i) Deposits received mainly represented deposits
BIIRZESE - received from distributors prior to the theatrical release

and delivery of master materials of film.

(ii) RZE—+F+_A=1+—H HERIEE (ii) At 31st December 2017, deposit received associated
¥BBEBsEWNRZeEERBEES HNEEE with the discontinued operation represented the
MEWEZIES ° deposit received in relation to the LKF Disposal.
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AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

45. B FERER KA

ENFERER REAERER RERARE

KREFEE -

46.

218

ZRRENBARBEERE

(a)

Y EEModern Vision
RZZE—X"F+—HA=-+N1H " Best
Combo (tEREF) BE XL (EAE
75) 5t A B Y Modern Vision® & B& 7&K
# 2§ - Modern Vision# R 7 & & &
V- EAEBKMHEEHE BREAR
1,000,000,000% 7T (18 T EEEHL
)+ H/h400,000,000% T (fFAES)
AR % 1 52 % 600,000,000/ 7T LA 8 17 7
N ZE 4 F - Modern Vision& — fi1& & %
f% A & fiModern Vision®= B H) X & %
BRYERERER BEFXEEEALUR
RPINYEFEENK  ZWESER-Z
—tFMANBREN - WERETERE
BEMIL BB REENE -

I B&Modern Vision's £ & K A& & B 722
FIRIMIEIR BT -

INTERESTS

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Acquisition of Modern Vision

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo as
purchaser and Ms. Chen as vendor, entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement in
relating to the acquisition of entire equity interest
in Modern Vision and a sale loan due by Modern
Vision at total consideration of HK$1,000,000,000
(subject to purchase price adjustment), in
which HK$400,000,000 as a deposit was settled
by cash and HK$600,000,000 was settled by
issue of a promissory note. Modern Vision is an
investment holding company and the principal
activities of Modern Vision Group is property
investment and development and its major asset
consist of stock of properties located in Macau.
The acquisition was completed on 6th April
2017. The acquisition, being not constituted as
business combination, has been accounted for
using the acquisition method.

Modern Vision was acquired for expanding the
Group’s property investment business in Macau.
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16, FBENBHEATRELE (&) 4.

(a) Y EEModern Vision ()

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a) Acquisition of Modern Vision (Continued)

FrEZzRE: Consideration transferred:
REZ
HE AEEE
Fair value
of the
Face value consideration
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

REE MBS &S (MiE32) Cash deposit paid for investment

(note 32) 400,000 400,000
BATHEAN R (H5F40) Issue of promissory note (note 40) 600,000 483,913
HwRE Total consideration 1,000,000 883,913

ZWEEHRCREUBEERAGBARA
Bo-ZWBERZZERAMT

The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of
the acquisition is summarised as follows:

FHEx

HK$’000

MEFTE (HiZ27) Stock of properties (note 27) 1,388,085
FEFTIER Accruals (1,126)
FETIEFE AR R 2 2 RRIE Amounts due to non-controlling interests (503,116)
EEFE Net assets 883,843
FESE I Non-controlling interests 70
Tz EEFE Net assets acquired of 883,913

Y FEModern VisionfF E4£ 2 B £ 7% 1

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of

JFEE . Modern Vision:
FET
HK$’000
REeERHEFEE Net cash outflow 400,000

BEEREZLE  AEERKESZEST
BB U B T #9499,909,000/8 T 2 SHE B

Eoy
A °
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According to the deed of assignment of loan,
the sale loan amounted to approximately
HK$499,909,000 was acquired by the Group
upon completion of the acquisition.
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WEERRZARAT ([EXER))

H

RZZE—EFZA++H AEEZHK
BERBT 2 2BRARERERGTE
R2ZBEER  BREAB173,0005 T -
EXRBVYIIEEBRENTEYRERE
BE - WESETEKERSAHILERA
- YN

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Riche Video Limited (“Riche
Video”)

On 17th February 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Riche
Video and a sale loan due by Riche Video at
total consideration of HK$173,000. The principal
activity of Riche Video is distribution of films and
television drama series. The acquisition, being
not constituted as business combination, has
been accounted for using the acquisition method.

FrEZEZAE: Consideration transferred:
FET
HK$’000
BeERE

ST B LR A R AR
g gWEEE BT

Cash consideration 173

The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of
the acquisition is summarised as follows:

FHEx

HK$°000

AHEESRMEE AFS financial assets 173

Re MRITER Cash and bank balances 1

FE&TIE B Accruals 1)

Tz EEFRE Net assets acquired of 173

KBERFEFTELZ R E ML FHE - Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of

Riche Video:

FHET

HK$’000

BB NRE Cash consideration paid 173

B FTREZ2ReERIREEMEIER Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired of 1)
ReEREFRE

REEFEZLE  AEFRWESZER
B UGB T 4939,851,0008 7T 2 S5 E B ©

Net cash outflow 172

According to the deed of assignment of loan,
the sale loan amounted to approximately
HK$39,851,000 was acquired by the Group upon
completion of the acquisition.
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47. I':H % M:J‘E N 47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) i EAce Season (a) Disposal of Ace Season

RZE—+tF=ZA=ZF+ B x&EH On 29th March 2017, the Group entered into
AN A GEE S HE U E S RAce a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
Season (HEX2REmitTRea%E®%) 2 dispose the entire equity interest in Ace Season,

2 EBAY AN #E 5 MAce Seasonfi R 2 35 & which principally engaged in the Nam Pei Hong
féfﬁ 4 % {8 A85,000,0008 7T ° % & operations, and a sale loan due by Ace Season
EER T —tFNA=ZTHEK - at total consideration of HK$85,000,000. The

disposal was completed on 30th June 2017.

EEZMNE: Consideration transferred:
FEx
HK$°000
BeERE Cash consideration 85,000
KEZHEZEEHEEL - Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
FHET
HK$’000
YIZE - B MR (MaE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 1,709
mILEE (M:i723) Intangible assets (note 23) 7,582
re Inventories 52,185
H 5 R Trade receivables 3,841
Be  BNREREAMEWRKIE Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 7,213
JE U5 FE 428 AR A 5 FROA Amount due from non-controlling interests 371
RekBRESEIEE Cash and cash equivalents 19,502
2 5 e BRR Trade payables (1,837)
JEFHIE B &Eﬁﬂfﬁm Accruals and other payables (3,274)
FERTEBER A FRIA Amount due to immediate holding company (92,724)
BRI B & (W iF42) Deferred tax liabilities (note 42) (2,060)
FrTHEZEBFE Net liabilities disposed of (7,492)
#iEAce SeasonZ 55 - Loss on disposal of Ace Season:
FHERT
HK$’000
EWRERE Cash consideration received 85,000
PR E 2 BEFE Net liabilities disposed of 7,492
HiE %EﬁZﬁEHE% 2 NS S Amount due to immediate holding company
assigned to the purchaser (92,724)
FEIEIR Non-controlling interests (425)
H 5 BT B8 2 B By B L ot A ) Release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries 58
i EAce SeasonZ Ei 18 Loss on disposal of Ace Season (599)
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47. HEWBRF (&)

222

(a)

(b)

47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
i & Ace Season (&) (a) Disposal of Ace Season (Continued)

HiEAce SeasonfiE4 2 H& A FHE - Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ace
Season:

FHET

HK$’000

BEUIBEESRE Cash consideration received 85,000

WM EZHe RS EFBEEE Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (19,502)

BHERNFHE Net cash inflow 65,498

HEIDERR DA (M40 1)

HEBRAESRIDESER ZHEER
4 X {8 56,800,000/ 7T » U 3 RN BB
EMERELEER - HESHER T
—tFELAF+NBEK -

(b)

Disposal of Rainbow Profit Limited (“Rainbow
Profit”)

On 9th May 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to
dispose the entire equity interest in Rainbow
Profit, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a sale loan due by Rainbow Profit
at total consideration of HK$6,800,000. Rainbow
Profit is engaged in property investment
operations in Hong Kong. The disposal was
completed on 18th July 2017.

FrEZEZAE Consideration transferred:
FHET
HK$’000
BeENRE Cash consideration 6,800
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47. I':H % M{J‘E N (/ng_) 47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
(b) HEIRERLT (R (&) (b)  Disposal of Rainbow Profit Limited (“Rainbow
Profit”) (Continued)
KEZHEZEEHEEL - Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
FET
HK$’000
WEME(HiE19) Investment property (note 19) 5,640
e RIEN RIE Deposits and prepayment 10
R EEERARFRIE Amount due to immediate holding company (7,086)
FFHEzBERE Net liabilities disposed of (1,436)
HEM B2 ER - Gain on disposal of Rainbow Profit:
FERT
HK$’000
BRREKE Cash consideration received 6,800
EETEH CENEEERAGNIE Amount due to immediate holding company
assigned to the purchaser (7,086)
FrheEzaEF8 Net liabilities disposed of 1,436
& T 5% 2 5 R Gain on disposal of Rainbow Profit 1,150
HEN SELEZEE A FEE Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
Rainbow Profit:
FET
HK$’000
RERANFE Net cash inflow 6,800

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4§ 223



48.

224

b EEBBIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—+HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

HERE

FEBEREEA

R|BERR - REBERBER TR E W2 7]
HEReBORBEREEENEZ RAREEEA
BT

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

—F R Within one year

F_2FRF(BREARERMF)

REBHVFERAREREMERN2ES - B
MEEERZABFORLF (ZF—RF: —
ELF) AKEYEREREREEEEEY
RZERE-

RZB-RETZA=+—H BTUENKE
M E M S AR 5 AR B A B 160 % PR B IR K I IR A 1R
EHEMRZEVENHERTENIAEEM
EPReEAE ARNBEUEREAZSEVED
ARHER LRI BEEEAHELAES  kE
BRERREBESHAE -

In the second to fifth year inclusive

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FERT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
4,786 15,003
15,494 10,656
20,280 25,659

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
by the Group for its premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of 5 years (2016: 1 to 5
years). The Group does not have an option to purchase
the leased premises at the expiry of the lease period.

At 31st December 2016, the operating lease rentals for
certain premises were based on the higher of a fixed
rental and a contingent rent depending on the sales in
these premises pursuant to the terms and conditions
set out in the respective rental agreements. As the
future sales in these premises could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent rent had not been
included above and only the minimum lease payments
had been included in the above commitments.
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48.

49.

HERE (&

FEEEREAA

FRBMzZWERS KA A8000E T (ZF
— 7N 180,000/ L) c REB B EMESE
EHERR -R-T—R"F+-_A=+—8 &
SEEE  BHMEELTESWER0.22% o

RFER  AEECHARTH  AEKER
EANE- S N

48.

LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$8,000 (2016: HK$180,000). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes.
At 31st December 2016, the property expected to
generate rental yields of 0.22% on an ongoing basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

—FR

EERHA

BEETIRREZEECBTERAAERBITE
EZER(BMBEREMEI) TR _F—tF
TZAZT—BEENHEZEIEARELES
=

Within one year

49.

—2-tF A
2017 2016
TR TAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
- 8

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have
been pledged to secure bank borrowings (note 39
to the financial statements) of the Group which was
reclassified to assets classified as held for sale at 31st
December 2017:

—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

B Buildings 202,425 207,896
HEL iR Interest in leasehold land 318,366 338,142
520,791 546,038

o AEE R EREER (M HREMeE41)
DUAHBAASHEEEE 2 XRERR ZSEE
2 B8R {2 A353,000/8 7L (ZZ — 7N 4F : 584,000
B) WRZE—tF+ZA=+—RACEH
PHEENBARFELEEE -

7K 52 B 49136,00078 7T 2 € BT 3% (B4 75 R B o
3B) HEAMERARBRUNBRIINMEFER
TRFBFZER -
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In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance
leases (note 41 to the financial statements) are secured
by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which have
carrying amounts of HK$353,000 (2016: HK$584,000)
which was reclassified to assets classified as held for
sale at 31st December 2017.

The Group’s time deposits (note 35 to the financial
statements) with the amount of approximately
HK$136,000 are pledged for guaranteed to Macau
Government for development of stock of properties
located in Macau.
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50. &I 50. COMMITMENTS
AEBRBREPRRZABITRENT ¢ The Group had the following outstanding commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

—E—+tfF —E-R
2017 2016
TR FH&IT

HK$°000 HK$'000

ERERCEITH BEREE: Authorised and contracted,
but not provided for:

—URRFIZMERE 2R - Development expenditure for
FEE = stock of properties in Macau 1,218,512 38,690
—BEXRE BEPER R — Film rights, films in progress
- Z2&n and film deposits 43,133 6,118
— M KR RRBIEER — Purchases and renovation expenses for
K% property, plant and equipment - 698
1,261,645 45,506
51. sz\ﬂﬁﬁjzﬁ-z;‘ég 51. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS
BER-_Z——F A+ N\HEITZAQATK Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general
HERA® FRBZ—BRABE  AQREMNT meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new
—IE R R ([ 5 e sl ) - share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.
HRARANB LR 2B ETE ([EEEESZ ) The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
ER-ZE——FRA-t+BEm EItFEEE “Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
PR RIEERRETEMEBEL - EAER it no further options can be granted under the Old Option
EmAT R ERREFSEREMARITEZER Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
HEAMDABN WO EBREASE KT option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
PATTAE to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable

in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.
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S 5 e 3% B

BE—T—

51. LRGN 25 (&)

B R Bz T2 ERER T

(iii)

AEEESARFRARNLKESERS
BERLBRE  UMERARSMALER
AREFARAES 2 EMNKERE[EE
(MBREEE D FL 2 BRI ATRERRIZ
RE B -

RERZ2EEERAKELTAREERE
B2RBAFBER (BREARARENM
MEBARSEMRREERZENES
ERATRIFNTRERBLESLS) A
SEMBTEMNEF 2EASEA BA
SEFIEMRRERB 2 ENEBLAE
DEEH - AEH KEIREX - B
ERA HER LEBXARBEA T
P HEA(BEEMDFEAN) XD H
B EXIFEF(BREAIERP)HES
SR2RENBERRER ALY AREE R
HEEERELEBRZEMAL -

IR RS B T AR Y BAREE R
TR A )24 B854 (0 4 B8 AR B 80 T B
B BRI R RO E ERTE

AR AR BEREEEAARRDH
TTIRAZ10% - &% LR AT B RRERR

R LEH - BITERBREABERES S R
EE B R 8 (B R ERREE)
EREMARTEZBRESAEETL
et B LR T SBENKEETRN
30% °
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#f Notes to the Financial Statements
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51.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The purpose is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group or any
invested entity in which the Group held an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The eligible participants include full time or part
time employees of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or
not, of the Company or any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity); any holder of any securities
issued by the Group; and any business or
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors,
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors, has contributed or may contribute to

the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.
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51. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

51. LRGN 25 (&
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BROFESRRI L  NMEM+ZEARRK
TEREERSEEZRBEE (BREET
- CEERERTEERE) BITER
BEBRTEBBETZRODBBETFSEBETE
EETRNZ1%

REBEZEBEEHAE (BEZA) L2
TZEARARAARIBEREIERE (TE
RETHRADSKEFMNSEHEA LIS
UERTEERETAHEALER Y
ERE(BEDATE BEERERITE
B BITEREEIRETEITZR
MBE - (a)g HTBBBALDALET
B 201% : R(b)REGXZ L B EAR
REIRMD ZWTEFE BEETEEA
5,000,000/ 7T  BrRIFEFARE L& ©

TEHREFENRKHBRER AT A
RE[ABRT  AHEEBERGLAHET
Fo

BREEZRERNREEBEREZZD
FETEASN - 3 AR E R AR I AT 1T (R BT
WBARBERRERY -

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per
cent. of the shares in issue; and (b) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, unless the same is approved
by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.
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51. UROXN2XRB (&

(vii) AR AERE L B 308 R K E R
E(NEW)  TERARBSNIBTZ
RAREFIA -

(ix) BREZTEELARITREEZESE

a. REH B HA R F — BB £ B
R Z W E

b. ERZHAPIAEEER (AL
MARR AT 2 ) AR A — B
Dz FHRTE: Rk

c. REHNABRARF - KRN ZE
1 o

(0 FERESER R B BEI0E A -

RBERR BEFTERET S REBERES
e B REARITE CBREREITER A%
T2 BB B53,916,7141 (Z T — <& :
58,014,574%) - HE R AR AR Z A 2 B &#1T
Bt 25.97% (ZF—7RF : 6.42% ) °
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51.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(ix)  The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 business days
(has the meaning stated in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

(x) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares
in respect of which may be issued upon exercise of
share options granted and remain outstanding under
the New Option Scheme and the Old Option Scheme
was 53,916,714 (2016: 58,014,574), representing 5.97%
(2016: 6.42%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date.
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51. LRGN 25 (& 51. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
TERBEBARGEEBRE ARFEE - A& The following table discloses details of the Company’s
EERHEM2HEEMBARNAEREZFBRE share options held by the Company’s substantial
e - shareholders, directors of the Company, employees of
the Group and other participants and movements in
such holdings:
BREHR
Number of share options
i
ZE-7F
+-F R
Ri Z1-HR “E-tf
“R-RE o REE-tE T24
R ) ) -f-B ZBR-AE -A-B ZE-tEp ZE-LER =t-8
SEERH iTHER Ly EROEE  HAGE REE 0 réﬁ(’?ﬁ ik XM HATE
utstanding
Exercise  Outstanding Expired at 31.12.2016 Expired Lapsed  Outstanding
Category Exercisable price at during and at during during at
of participants ~ Name of scheme ~period® per share  01.01.2016 2016 01.01.2017 2017 2017 31.12.2017
B
HK$
A£HER ERfEE
Employees of Old Option 21.11.2006-20.11.2016 511.925 8,116 (8,116) - - - -
the Group Scheme 25.05.2007-24.06.2017 776,575 20,329 - 20329 (20,329) - -
27.06.2007-26.06.2017 772,675 13,359 - 13,359 (13,359) - -
23.10.2007-22.10.2017 367.050 46,675 - 46,675 (24,546) (22,129) -
21.08.2008-20.08.2018 47.350 174,585 - 174,585 - - 174,585
HBREE
New Option 14.01.2013-13.01.2016 4175 4878788 (4,878,788) - - - -
Scheme 04.05.2015-03.05.2018 3150 41,000,000 - 41,000,000 - (4,000,000) 37,000,000
46,141,852 (4,886904) 41,254,948 (58,234)  (4,022,129) 37,174,585
Eftpa% ERRETE
Other Old Option 21.11.2006-20.11.2016 511.925 3,246 (3,246) - - - -
participants Scheme 25.05.2007-24.06.2017 776.575 8,002 - 8,002 (8,002) - -
23.10.2007-22.10.2017 367.050 9,495 - 9,49 (9,49) - -
21.08.2008-20.08.2018 47.350 22,129 - 22,129 - - 22,129
HBREE
New Option 14.01.2013-13.01.2016 41975 3044363 (3,044,363) - - - -
Scheme 04.05.2015-03.05.2018 3150 16,720,000 - 16,720,000 - - 16,720,000
19,807,235 (3,047,609) 16,759,626 (17,497) - 16,742,129
65,949,087  (7934513) 58,014,574 (75,731)  (4,022,129) 53,916,714
TR ()
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 4291 4902 4.207 591.806 5152 3311
# TR B AR RE AR A L B AR 4G - # The exercisable period commenced on the date of
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BREERD TEXREH RBEE_T-X

TR~ RAEFESH

grant of the relevant share options.

No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled

for the year ended 31st December 2017. No share
option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled for
the year ended 31st December 2016.
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52.

52.

EABEALRE

BRUMBHRRZBEAEEEN

AEBEREAL

AL NIERRS

R=—ZZ—+%FMANA  Best Combo
B SE R A FE 22 = Y BEModern VisionZ
B % 17 B A& LA X Modern Vision# & 2
8 & B 30 49499,009,0008 T ([ iE =
1BE]) - # R {8 A1,000,000,000% 7T (18
TEEBELAE) REZINFR
BRETEEBHZFORZ LM
% ©400,000,000% 7T R(i)\RKES
BRMEBAAARMARZTEHTASE
600,000,000/ 7T 2 & 22 o & 2% F
FESE R B R A BANFEEITH MR
24 A%EIE - RIE LW BIH14AE -
WESEMERA—BHERS -
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group entered into the following

material transactions with related parties:

(a)

On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had completed
the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Modern Vision from Ms. Chen, and
a sale loan due by Modern Vision with the
amount of approximately HK$499,909,000 (the
“Acquisition”) at an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,000,000,000 (subject to purchase price
adjustment). The consideration was satisfied
by (i) the payment of HK$400,000,000 as a
deposit to Ms. Chen upon the signing of the
sale and purchase agreement; and (ii) the issue
of the promissory note with a principal amount
of HK$600,000,000 by the Company to Ms.
Chen upon completion of the Acquisition. The
promissory note is interest bearing at 5% per
annum and will be matured after 24 months from
the date of issuance of the promissory note. The
Acquisition was also considered as a connected
transaction pursuant Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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52. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

52. ERBEALIRS (&

232

(b)

R=ZZ—t &M AXH  Best Combold
Wk 2z & #% i 75 & %8500,000,000/% 7T 2 &
R RERIRFERRSEFE - BREX
A HRFT60E A ER 2 BEE - WA
Mat2EBEARRBEXHS ML
Z A a]Reform BaseZ B B 1T AR A LA %
DERFAERER REERHZE K
Z+ B R E FBest Combof® A 23k
2 +1%500,000,00078 7T (A8 T E RS E
%) H EReform Base2 ZE % 1T
Rz REHE - RELEWHRNE4AE
ZERNHER R —HEERS -

RER  REEBEEBEALTITY TR
5

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had granted the
Loan in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000
to Ms. Chen. The Loan is interest bearing at
5% per annum, repayable on the date falling
60 months from the drawdown date of the Loan
and secured by way of a share charge over the
entire issued share capital of Reform Base, a
company incorporated in BVl and wholly owned
by Ms. Chen. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement,
Ms. Chen has agreed to grant the Call Option to
Best Combo which allows Best Combo require
Ms. Chen to sell the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to
the loan amount adjustment). The Loan was also
considered as a connected transaction pursuant
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its related parties:

REMHE

ERREEXDRAEERR
RESEREREZWA :

AU A

EWEMRE-—BEELES
WA

BEEBRA

ERRERRBARRQF
FERRREEZHA:

EHA B HA

ENRENELAREERR
RESEZRAX:

ENRZHE

Nature of transactions

Income received from family member
of the substantial shareholders and
the directors of the Company:

Rental income

Income received from a joint venture:

Management fee income

Income received and receivable from
substantial shareholder and the
director of the Company:

Loan interest income

Expense paid and payable to
substantial shareholder and
the director of the Company:

Interest on promissory note

—E—t# SE-AE
2017 2016
FH Fi
HK$’000 HK$'000

8 180

340 734

39,955 -

37,963 -
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52. ERBEALTRRS (,z/g-? 52. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) WMBEHR BEBALTZRSEHFAS
53 R E A B 755 S 3R I 5224 Je45 ©

(e) MMBBMRMIGHAEE  TEERAE
ZHE(BEENARRIZEERETRS

(d)

Details of the balances with related parties at
the end of the reporting period are set out in
notes 24 and 45 to the financial statements
respectively.

Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the directors of the

FEE 2FKE)WT : Company and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in note 15 to the
financial statements, is as follow:

BFEREER Continuing operations

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e L E A ER Salaries and other allowances 14,242 14,155
RORAE FIET S50 Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 108 108
14,350 14,263
BRIEREEK Discontinued operations
—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
o kHEAMER Salaries and other allowances 3,407 5,111
RURAE FIET B 50 Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 12 35
3,419 5,146

ARBEERTIBERABZHMIIdH
HWZEEREERBARBRTEBEME
T o
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The remuneration of the directors of the
Company and key management personnel is
determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.
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53. M:j%@ﬁjﬁ% 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AKATIMB AT HEHINNOT - Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are listed
as follows:
N
Hh/RL/ g8 s b fiEfaR BETRAR
WEAFAR BR/1% &5 BRERRERLA Ra/ifhEs  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZE-tfF  ZE-5E
2017 2016
% %
Ace Season Holdings Limited EERREE ERR - 100 1000 REERK
BVI Ordinary US$1,000  Investment holding
ERARLA B AR 100 100 BT BfieREREE
Art Lord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$t  Art Piece investment and rental
Asiatop Data Limited B LEk 100 100 08T REREARS
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10  Provision of nominee services
Best Combo Limited ABREAHES Lk 100 100 T REER
BVI Ordinary US§T Investment holding
FEERAT Eh Lk 100 100 B REER
Best Joyful Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. EERAHE L 100 100 10051 #e
(#7#b) (note b) BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment
Bestjump Holdings Limited REBRAEE TER - 100 =T REER
BVI Ordinary US§T Investment holding
Big Century Limited & Lk 100 100 1B BANEELEAS
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Holding of property for rental
purpose
Business First Limited ABENES Lk 100 100 ET HRRRERE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Holding of cable right
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53. HEBRTRE (& 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
ELYA YA+ FrEke frifER BERAR
WEAREH 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IE-tf  ZEE
2017 2016
% %
Charm Faith Holdings Limited RERAES LER 100 100 1005 REER
BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding
Charming Era Investment Limited EERAHS Lk 100 100 1#n REBRR
BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
THEEAERARAT (3 EEB 100 100 BT BAER
China Star Artist Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Artist management
hEEANERARAA W) el AR 100 100 100,0005F%  THERRRRE
China Star Creative Development Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Limited (note b) development and
investment
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited EERRES TR 100 100 N0XT KEER
(“CSBVI") BVI Ordinary US$200  Investment holding
TEERLERERAT 3 LRk 100 00 2ETZERERR  REZR
China Star Entertainment Holding Company ~ Hong Kong ERZEELR 1,000,000%7T2  Investment holding
Limited Ordinary/ ERZEELR
Non-voting (Wiita)
deferred HKS2 for ordinary
shares and
HK$1,000,000 for
non-voting deferred
shares (note d)
HEEERETARLT 3 LEk 100 100 1000008  BYREEEEHLT
China Star HK Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000  Distribution of films and
television drama series
HEEERREERAT 3 HER 100 100 100000087 HEREXTRRARR
China Star HK Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000  Distribution of video rights and
Company Limited Investment holding
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53. BB DTS (& 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
L]
ELYA YA+ FrEke fiEfaR BRRAR
WEAREH B%/%% 23 BERRRELA Ra/idfer  TEER
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IE-tF I
2017 2016
% %
TEESRERRAT Bk Bk 100 100 %n RETYRELE SRR
China Star i-Content Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 UE ARE

Provision of film production
controller, director and

producer services
China Star International Distribution RERUBE LR 100 100 8001XT  EPREREEHEN
Limited (47 a) (note a) BVI Ordinary US$8,001  Distribution of films and

television drama series

China Star International Movie Limited EERUBE LR 100 100 #r YA
(#b) (note b) BVI Ordinary US§1 Film production
hEERSFRARAT B R 100 100 1500000E7  REEERERREER
China Star Laser Disc Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000  Provision of management
services and investment
holding
HHEERARLA WD) g TRER 100 100 10000027 %  MEERERRREBEEE
China Star Management Company Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Property project management
Limited (note b) and construction project
management
MEEERARAA B Lk 100 100 B REER
China Star Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Investment holding
hEAESYARLA B Lk 100 100 2T EYBIEREN
China Star Movie Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Film production and
distribution
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53. M:j%/;\ﬁjﬁ'% (lgg 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
Hh/RL/ g frisif frifER BERAR
WEAAAR 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IE-tf  ZEE
2017 2016
% %
HEEEY(RR)ARLA (WD) A TRER 100 100 B000%ME  BEREREA
China Star Movie (Macau) Limited Macau Quota Capital MOP25,000  Film production and
(note b) distribution
HEEZBARLA (3 3l 100 100 %N RAEVME
China Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding of film rights
HEEERLRARAA Bk Lak 100 100 2n BEREFHARE
China Star Publishing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding and licensing of
song rights
China Star Trademark Limited EBRAES Bk 100 100 FT WABRRRE
BVI Ordinary US§1 Holding of trademark and
copyrights
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. wH LRk 100 100 181518 BYREREREIRNT
(Wit a) (note a) Netherlands Ordinary EUR18,151  Distribution of films and

television drama series

Classic Champion Holdings Limited RERLBE LR 100 100 % RERR
(W& b) (note b) BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
HAERRBERAD (Wb i1y EEEA 100 100 100,0008F%  RERLZEERH
Classic Management & Services Company ~ Macau Quota Capital MOP100,000  Provision of casino
Limited (note b) management service
Crown Gem Investments Limited AERAES LRk 50 - BT REBR
BYI Ordinary HKS1 Investment holding
Empowered Century Limited AERAEE LR 100 100 #r REER
BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
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53. HEBRTRE (& 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
ELYA YA+ FrEke frifER BERAR
WEAREH 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZE-tE  CI5F
2017 2016
% %
Exceptional Gain Profits Limited RERUES LER 100 100 1#r REAER
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments Limited EERAHS LRk 100 100 11 EABERREREARE
BVI Ordinary US$T  Artist management and
provision of agency
services
#e7(BE)ERAA (30 AR - 100 T 8%
Geurnsamwon (Korea) Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Trading
ERERERAT 0 EER 100 100 BT BFEM
Gold Choice International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1  Film production
BEBRERAD (WD) A TRER 50 - B0RAYE  RELK
Hercules-Holding Company Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
(note (b))

RERLARAANBFEREARAR)  FE 2EB 100 100 BT SREEMRERE
Hero Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 (ZB-7E HENR)
(formerly known as Well Star Television drama series

Investment Limited) production and distribution

(2016: Property holding)

High Productive Trading Limited ERRHE LRk 100 100 #r RERR
BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
EABEGBEERAA (D) il AR 100 100 500000271 RAMEEEERBR
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Macau Quota capital MOP500,000 RERR
Limited (note b) Provision of hotel services in
Macau and Investment
holding
Intrinsic Value Limited EREREE LEk 100 100 Er o RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
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53. M:j%@ﬁjﬁ% (/gg’?} 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
ELYA YA+ frisif frifER BERAR
WEAREH 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IE-tf  ZEE
2017 2016
% %
WEERAR (Hib) i AR 100 100 N000RMAE  REESRE
Merit Noble Company Limited (note b) Macau Quota capital MOP30,000  Provision of catering services
Modern Vision (Asia) Limited KBRuEE Bl 100 - =T RERR
BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
Most Famous Enterprises Limited EERGES TRk 100 100 Xk BARR
BVI Ordinary US$2  Investment holding
BECEERAA (W) Bk Lak - 70 N000ET  2EAKERES
Most Trade Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000  Trading of ginseng and dried
(note (c)) seafood products
BILA2EEHERLA B FER - 100 120000087 2ERKESREE
Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,200,000  Ginseng & dried seafood
Limited trading and retail
ZR(F3)ERAT Bk i 100 100 2L RENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Property holding
BEARLT B 2R 100 100 00T REER
Noble Million Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100  Investment holding
NPH Holdings Limited KBRAEE TRk - 100 5000051 REER
BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Investment holding
BT BHERAT Bk Lk - 100 Br REER
N P H Sino-Meditech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Investment holding
~BEEYARLA (3 Lok 100 100 3000000 EFRM
One Hundred Years of Film Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Film production
Company Limited
Over Profit International Limited AERAES LRk 50 - 0057 RARRK
(“Over Profit") BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding
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53. HEBRTRE (& 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
ELYA YA+ FrEke frifER BERAR
WEAREH 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IE-tf  ZEE
2017 2016
% %
FEEERAT B FER - 100 BO0ET  RETRRE
Poo Yuk Loong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$350,000  Provision of administration
service
REERA (RI)BRAA (Hcke) hE iR - 100 3000000ARE  2HEREZREE
Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered RMB3,000,000  Ginseng & dried seafood food
Company Limited (notes ¢ and'e) Capital trading and retail
TEERAT (3 Erels - 100 BT BEDE
Rainbow Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Property holding
ERGFERLR B EaR/ 100 - 10010008 E¥EM
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong ERZRELR BLER  Fim distribution
Ordinary/Non- 12,000,000
voting deferred BERZREL
Wth (Hita)
HK$1,001,000 for
ordinary shares and
HK$2,000,000

for non-voting
deferred shares

(note d)
BAREARLA 3 BER 100 100 BT BIFERRERESE
S & W Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Production of mation pictures
and television drama series
Smart Value Developments Limited g LRk 100 100 1= REER
BVI Ordinary US$T  Investment holding
RFREEXRARRLT (Wit B ETEER 50 - 100,0002F%  THEXRRRE
Splendid Construction and Investment Macau Quoted Capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Company Limited (nofe b) development and
investment
RFRERRLA (3 2EM 100 100 BT REER
Star Choice Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$T  Investment holding
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53. ﬁj%/&ﬁjﬁ% (lfg) 53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
VN
Hh/RL/ g frisif frifER BERAR
WEAAAR 8%/ 4% E3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Countrylplace of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZE-tE ZE5%
2017 2016
% %
Summer Sound Investments Limited EERAES LER 50 - 10051 REER
BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding
EBERERAA W) A TRER 50 - B00RFAE  REELK
Stronghold-Holding Company Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
(note b)

SEERARDT Bk LR 100 100 BT REER

Star Joy International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$!  Investment holding

Superb Glory Investments Limited EERREE TR 100 100 #r REARR

BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding

Triumph Top Limited AERAHS LER 100 100 =T REER

BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
Turbo International Company Limited EBRAHE LR 100 60 500005 KEEREEIRE
(“Turbo International”) BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Holding TV drama series
licensing right
EEGERLR)ARAT G EMAR 100 - 10000000AR®  EPEEY CERE
(Bicke) (notes c and e) The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 EYRAMRERRER
capital 8t
Distribution of PRC film,
corporate planning, props
and equipment rental and
dramatic creation

Hiat - Notes:

(a) ERIRIEE R - (a) Operating internationally.

(b) TR EETE - (b) Operating in Macau.

(c) TERB A T o (c) Operating in the PRC.

(d) BERERECROHERLEEN S ZZAAMK (d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
BoBUZARBREAGZALS HEZEX rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
EHES ERECEN EEEBNTAESR or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to
FRDIE ° participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) PHNERE - (e) Wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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Eoy- PGS

Best Combo * Best Mind Intenational Inc. *
CSBVI ~ China Star Worldwide Distribution
B.V. » Classic Champion Holdings Limited
Turbo International I A RBIEERFE - MAA
HiERBHIAARARMERE

REBEAEN MBRARAZEELEXMME AR

PIAEMBARREEBRFhEMSERERE
[ 2 B 5

ARREERR AEEZFERESHAKE
MEAER Bt WERMEFEZZFNH
WMERANBILED - SN UERZFHFZEMBER
AZBIYMBEERATINES -

53.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Best Combo, Best Mind International Inc., CSBVI, China
Star Worldwide Distribution B.V., Classic Champion
Holdings Limited and Turbo International are directly
held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is in Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
non-controlling interests were insignificant to the Group
and thus are not separately presented in these financial
statements for both years. In addition, no separate
financial information of these non-wholly owned
subsidiaries is required to be presented.
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54. ZLRTMBRARKFREE 54

(a)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

QAR ERR R (a)  Statement of financial position of the Company
—E—tF AN
2017 2016
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current asset
LTS NGIE E Interests in subsidiaries 1,142,386 1,823,177
RBEE Current assets
JE U BT B A A F B Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,078,864 1,206,063
Re -  BNRER Deposits, prepayment and
H b pE UK SR IB other receivables 270 687
I\ e MIRITHEH Cash and bank balances 76,546 328,647
2,155,680 1,635,397
BMEE Total assets 3,298,066 3,358,574
BERREHES Capital and reserves
fig 7% Share capital 9,037 9,037
i 8 Reserves 2,407,022 2,521,346
R Total equity 2,416,059 2,530,383
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
EZSNES Promissory note 173,817 -
JE T BB A B FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 691,247 809,502
865,064 809,502
REEE Current liabilities
R NGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 5,306
Bl HRIZS - EEIEE Deposits received, accruals and
H b BT FRIB other payables 16,943 13,383
16,943 18,689
BEHARH Total liabilities 882,007 828,191
EERABEEAE Total equity and liabilities 3,298,066 3,358,574
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,138,737 1,516,708
BEEBRARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 3,281,123 3,339,885
HUTEZERRESEHFZE Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:
PEX:H PR B 2E
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EZE EZE
Director Director
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54. DT RRERLEESE) 54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) FATREEED (b) Movement of reserve of the Company
BB  ANTAR
REE  BAR®  ZREHE  EREGE ERHEBE 0 2HEE @it

/IR

Bonus
Share-based  convertible Capital
Share  Contributed payment bonds  reduction Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total

TEL TEL TEL TERL TEL TEL TERL
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
(Wita)  (BEb)  (iEe)  (Wdd)  (Wide)

(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d) (note e)
RZE-~F-f-H At 1st January 2016 1,411,925 1,946,363 88,834 1,132 316,008 (1,011,632 2,752,630
FEERRZEFRNLE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (307,545) (307,545)
BRED S Expiry of share options - - (12,690) - - 12,690 -
REHR Placement of new shares 78,312 - - - - - 78,312
EGL IR Share issuing expenses (2,051) - - - - - (2,051)
RZF-R"EFZA=1+—H At31st December 2016 and
RR=E-t%-A-H at 1st January 2017 1,488,186 1,946,363 76,144 1,132 316,008  (1,306,487) 2,521,346
EEERRZABRLE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (114,324) (114,324)
BREXK Lapsed of share options - - (6,284) - - 6,284 -
D HE] Expiry of share options - - (14,195) - - 14,195 -
RZE-tE+-A=1-H At31st December 2017 1,488,186 1,946,363 55,665 1,132 316,008  (1,400,332) 2,407,022
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M.@gﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 54.

/IR

(b)

ARERERY ()

Het -

(a)

REBRE-NAN-FREDE (KE
F1) - AREZ B B R MR R A
REZRBEITED - FRBRARHE
TFARRBRRE »

ARRZAERMBABBDEAR T
ZoFENATHERZBRAHIRRE

BEREXREIRME ERAKRZEH

A

BREBRE-NAN-FREDE (KE
7)) —HERRZEARBKRAHDIK
R RATHER XARFATEER
ABRBPEMRZAREREL DI :

(if) ARBEEZNERERAM
BERERBEREBHETRAI
B B 1 i (B R 2 480 ©

PR X 2 SOREE  HEREH
MR ER A RIS B R
NBREBZRBZATEE HBED
NEHEREHBREZATEER
ER -ZENERERZEE AUZRH
ERBREZATEECRREES
(A RS E  YIERETHK
AREEEIAR  ARIBERS N
AR S5 2 FRIE A
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserve of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company
can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to shareholders of

the company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company
brought forward represents the balance
transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th
September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus account
of a company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(i it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium accounts.

Share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received
in exchange for the grant of the relevant share
options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the
options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair
value of the share options over the relevant
vesting periods (if any) and is recognised
as staff costs and related expenses with a
corresponding increase in the share-based

payment reserve.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the special general meeting of the Company
held on 25th October 2012 in relation to
the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive Bonus CBs in
lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs convertible
into ordinary shares at initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share were issued by the
Company. The Bonus CBs are recognised as
equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights
entitling the bondholders to convert into an
equivalent number of shares as the number
of bonus shares which the bondholders would
otherwise be entitled to receive under the
bonus issue had the shareholder not elected
for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do not
carry voting rights at any general meeting of
shareholders of the Company. The bondholders
can exercise the conversion rights at any time
after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject to the
terms and conditions of the applicable deed

poll constituting the Bonus CBs.

(e) The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a
resolution passed by the directors pursuant to
Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off
any loan capital or for equalising dividends or
for any other purpose to which the profits of the

Company may be properly applied.
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55.

56.

METBMELEABZHE

TERFANHBEZDAELEZAEBEERE (B
NHEARFEHEZEEZHRAR NEY (B
RelFRe8s) RECHAELBERM
FRAEREELXBUARKREREFENA
SEZEARRERERTHIEAREZDZES

=B

55.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities (including
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sale), including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

m=E ° which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
RITEE MEHEEHR ANE ERRE wst
Obligations
under
Bank finance Promissory Interest
borrowings leases note payables Total
THT TR TET TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZE—+5—H—H At 1st January 2017 803,513 584 - 909 805,006
REZHENE Financing cash flows (133,513) (231) (400,000) (37,860) (571,604)
FHzE Non-cash changes
BITRFE (H740) Issue of promissory note
(note 40) - - 483,913 - 483,913
REERANECER Loss on early redemption on
promissory note - - 66,110 - 66,110
BRERAZAEHY Interest expenses recognised - - 23794 40,167 63,961
R-Z—+HE+=-A=1+—-H At31st December 2017 670,000 353 173,817 3,216 847,386

BEHEERERZZRS
W B Turbo International Z40% /& 7 ## %

RZE—+tFRA=Z+=H AEEE—SP K
#ETurbo International Z 40% % 2 # & - 4 K (&
£5156,000 7T » E &% W F 78 - A& E R Turbo
International Z f% # F160% 1% i Z=100% - /& & E
T 3R JE 12 AR H2E 2 Rl D 958,000/ 7T R AR A R HE B
AFEIERE R 498,000 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

56.

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Acquisition of 40% equity interests in Turbo
International

On 23rd May 2017, the Group further acquired
40% equity interest in Turbo International at total
consideration of HK$156,000. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group’s shareholding in Turbo
International increased from 60% to 100%. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$58,000 and a decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$98,000.
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RZZE—+FH A7XH  Best Combo
2 Y EModern Vision#] 2 B A% 7 1 25 -
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B L %) - H+400,000,000% 7T &
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MRS K S KR TR MR 2+ 87 E R
EZARIAN -

—tERA-+=0 NEEE—

*FHSZ #Turbo International 2 40%% Z< #
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7 3% = 74500,0007% 7T - BICSBVIZE [ &
AENHAEFESRE -

57.

58.

#F Notes to the Financial Statements

+E+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2017

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a) On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had acquired the
entire equity interest in Modern Vision with an
aggregate consideration of HK$1,000,000,000
(subject to purchase price adjustment), in which
amount of HK$400,000,000 and HK$600,000,000
was settled by cash deposit paid in 2016 and
the issue of the promissory note to Ms. Chen
upon completion respectively.

(b) On 23rd May 2017, the Group further acquired
40% equity interest in Turbo International at
total consideration of HK$156,000 in which the
consideration was settled by other receivables
which was fully impaired in previous years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

(a) On 3rd January 2018, the Company had
completed to dispose the entire equity interest
in the Disposal Group and sale loans due by
the Disposal Group at the total consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject to adjustment of
actual working capital).

As per the condition of completion of the LKF
Disposal, the outstanding bank borrowings
owing by the Disposal Group should be repaid
prior to or as at the date of completion. The
consideration received by the Company had
been used to repay the outstanding bank
borrowings as at 3rd January 2018.

Under the sale and purchase agreement, if the
actual working capital (the “Actual Working
Capital”) represents a net assets amount of
the Disposal Group equal to or more than
HK$500,000, the buyer shall pay to CSBVI such
net assets amount; or if the Actual Working
Capital represents a net liabilities amount of
the Disposal Group equal to or more than
HK$500,000, CSBVI shall pay such net liabilities
amount to the buyer.
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58.

58. HEHRER (&)

(a)

59.

(%)

EREBESHRALERENARHEE
BEREB)HERERNTREHEREM
RIT ERMEBRIEME=TF 2 EFANLE
MAMERE B RELRERABEMNE
% B (BB E) TEIE()E R
BIEASME - B RNERE - RIKE
FEHEIMEN - REABRIZEERRZ
RAIRAPIHEEREEMRMKERAE
EmMatENRARBSHNERE (2%
RCSBVIZHEEFN - Q)L EEEKER
AZERERRDEROEFNEE  R(4)

BELEHRBEEXAE -
RZBE-NF-R=ZH HE£EH

EREEASRRAREEFESEY
34,400,000 7T - B E %K B 73 ZA [FICSBVI
X EE - FRANARARHAZT
—NFE=ZAtRRZAM -

R_Z—N\EF—A+NB ARACRF
BEZETTRLTIEDABONFSBEAE
£8200,000,000/8 7T 2 H (2 »

EBEF

AETHBRBFETEHIE  UNEEHETBHR
KT IAEC KR LREEBORERF -

60.

it B B R AR

AUBHER _T-N\EF=ZA-FTHEEEE
et R RT3
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59.

60.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Actual Working Capital means (A) the total
current assets of the Disposal Group minus (B)
all borrowings, accruals and actual liabilities
and indebtedness owed by the Disposal Group
to any bank, lending institution or other third
party of any nature at completion, but (for the
purpose of (B)) excluding (1) accrued unpaid
staff bonuses or commissions, accrued unpaid
leaves, contribution to retirement benefit
schemes, long service or severance payments
calculated under rules and regulations of
relevant governing jurisdictions for employees
of any member of the Disposal Group, (2) the
sale loans due to CSBVI, (3) any liabilities owing
among the members of the Disposal Group
at completion, and (4) deferred tax assets or
liabilities.

On 3rd January 2018, the Actual Working Capital
of the Disposal Group was recognised a net
asset amount of approximately HK$34.4 million,
which means the buyer shall pay such amount
to CSBVI. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15th March 2018.

On 18th January 2018, the Company had
early redeemed the remaining outstanding
promissory note with the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 to Ms. Chen.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the disclosure requirements in respect of

the discontinued operations set out in note 13 to the

financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26th March 2018.
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T 4F Bt % BE 2 Five Year Financial Summary

AEBBRTRAEAGHEEZCHREENEEMABEM A summary of the published results and the assets and

Z(HHEaeBLEERVBRR) IR T - liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is
set out below.

RE Results
BEt-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31st December
= Lred —T-RF —T-1F Z—T-QmF Z—T-=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
TET FET FTET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(B E7) ¢ 27)

(restated) (restated)

o 2% Revenue 9,272 266,420 1,039,758 1,283,597 1,404,629
BRATERN (B1E) Profit/(loss) before tax 110,036 (291,928) 104,768 209,851 90,784
FEs (Ax) /H% Income tax (expense)/credit (5) - 149 160 555
REHBLEEKL Profit/(loss) for the year from

FERAN/ (BE) continuing operations 110,031 (291,928) 104,917 210,011 91,339
RECRIEBEER L (Loss)/profit for the year from

FE(BB) /5 discontinued operations (36,695) (43,683) 2,947 - -
FEEF/ (EBB) Profit/(loss) for the year 73,336 (335,611) 107,864 210,011 91,339
IATATEGEE Profit/(loss) for the year

mAlL/ (BE) attributable to:

KAREEA Owners of the Company 73,312 (335,609) 107,871 209,665 93,817

FEERER Non-controlling interests 24 2) (7) 346 (2,478)

73,336 (335,611) 107,864 210,011 91,339
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F.4F B % BE 22 Five Year Financial Summary

EEREE Assets and liabilities
R+=A=+-8
At 31st December
= e TR ZZ-hf ZT-WNE ZT-=%
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
FTEx FHET FAET FHEL FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EERE Total assets 5,099,803 4,277,204 4,791,461 3,458,795 2,619,573
BELE Total liabilities (1,818,343)  (1,069,277)  (1,325,704) (537,138) (987,087)
BESE Net assets 3,281,460 3,207,927 3,465,757 2,921,657 1,632,486

AARHEEAEHER Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 3,281,574 3,208,362 3,466,190 2,922,083 1,634,714
R g S Non-controlling interests (114) (435) (433) (426) (2,228)
B Total equity 3,281,460 3,207,927 3,465,757 2,921,657 1,632,486
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A 4 [ & B W) 3 The Group s Major Properties

KREER-_Z—+FE+_A=+—B2FE2YE:F1E%  Particulars of major properties of the Group at 31st December

BT 2017 are set out below:
1. BEPYE 1. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
B fhat
it HEBER HEEER r5E
wE R TIRE BRIFH (PAER) (THER) A2 BHERE%
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated sitearea  floor area Effective %
Stage of completion (square (square held by
Location Lot number completion date feet) feet)  Usage the Group
RN EEER 6fEMERB C DRE  HIKER 0% 57,000 495000 2E-LE HER 100%
FE5
Zona de Aterros do Porto LotB,C,DandE Construction stage 2019 Apartment, residential,
Exterior, Macau (ZAPE) in Quarteirdo 6 commercial, and
Carparking
RPIRAE T REH HERECETR FaER kSl 2 50,000 336000 HEERFES 50%
HERNE
Nam Van Lakes Zone, Avenida Lot 7, da Zone C do Development stage 2023 Residential and
Doutor Stanley Ho, Macau Plano de Urbanizagao Carparking
da Zone da Bafa da
Praia Grande
2. REY=E 2. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
b B Rl HEE R
Location Type Category of lease term
G e R EA
FEDE20 ~ 22K 2453
BIEE
g k-2
Cockloft and First Floor, Commercial Long-term

Kam Tak Building,
20, 22 and 24 Mercer Street,
Hong Kong
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